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MESSAGE FROM THE C

Mr.Ng Wee Siong, Leonard
Chairman of BOD of BCG Energy

1 ’ :

Dear Valued Shareholders, Investors, Partners and all BCG Energy employees,

As the global landscape grapples
with escalating challenges from
climate change, the movement to
convert to renewable energy has
become a crucial shift. This has
played a central role in the Green
Revolution. In Vietnam, 2024 has
proved to be challenging, but it has
also provided many opportunities
when the Power Development
Plan VIII was officially approved.

In addition, the 135th Decree
incentivizes the development of
self-sufficient rooftop solar power
and DPPA (Direct Power Purchase
Agreement) practices, establishing
a strong legal framework to support
and accelerate the energy sector’s
evolution.

2024 has marked a new chapter in
BCGEnergy’sjourney - acorporation

driven by a bold vision to pioneer
and lead in core sustainable values.
From large-scale solar and wind
energy projects to breakthrough
solutions in waste-to-energy (WtE),
BCG Energy is greatly contributing
to the new era for Vietham's clean
energy industry.

REVENUE BREAKTHROUGH — A SOLID FINANCIAL FOUNDATION

In 2024, BCG Energy recorded a
net revenue of VND 1,278 billion,
an increase of 13.5% over the
same period last year. In a
volatile business environment as
the energy sector, BCG Energy
has showcased its flexibility
by continuously reviewing and
updating its business scenarios,
selectively adjusting its investment
portfolio,  prioritizing  projects
that can generate stable cash
flows and are consistent with
the development progress of the
national power system. Thanks to
sharp strategic thinking, based
on data and market analysis,
the Company has been able to
maintain a sustainable growth
rate and consolidate its position in
the renewable energy sector. One
of the most notable milestones
in 2024 for BCG Energy was the
construction of the Tam Sinh Nghia
Waste-to-Energy Plant in Cu Chi
District (HCMC). The Tam Sinh

Nghia Plant is a symbol of BCG
Energy’s strategic vision by quickly
expanding its investment in the
WLE sector. The groundbreaking
ceremony of the Tam Sinh Nghia
Plant was honored to be in the
Top 10 groundbreaking events of
Vietnam’s energy industry in 2024,
reinforcing the important role of
the factory in treating urban waste
and producing clean energy.

With a scale of 20 hectares, the
Tam Sinh Nghia Waste-to-Energy
Plant is capable of processing
2,000 - 2600 tons of waste/
day, generating 60 MW of power
daily. The plant will produce 365
million kWh of electricity - enough
for 100,000 households and will
significantly reduce 257,000 tons
of CO2 per year. Phase 2 (2026 -
2027) will be raising the plant's
waste processing capacity to
6,000 tons/day and generating 130
MW of power daily, making Tam

Sinh Nghia the largest WtE plant
in the world. Phase 3 (2027 - 2029)
estimates the plant to continue
raising capacity to process 8,600
tons of waste/day and to generate
200 MW of power daily. BCG Energy
is also investing in other waste
processing plants in Long An and
Kien Giang, positioning itself as a
market leader in waste treatment
and clean energy production.

Another memorable milestone in
2024 for BCG Energy was for its 730
million BGE shares to be officially
traded on the UPCoM Stock
Exchange - a historic moment
that elevates BCG Energy's
position. Having been traded on
the exchange on July 31, 2024 not
only helps BCG Energy to mobilize
more capital to expand renewable
energy projects but also affirms
the Company’'s transparency
and sustainable development
potential.

VISIONS FOR THE FUTURE: GREEN LEGACY AND SUSTAINABLE MISSION

In 2025, BCG Energy focuses
its efforts on realizing strategic
agreements, pushing for faster
progress on solar, wind and waste
power plant construction projects
to satisfy the increasing demands
for clean energy in Vietnam. Driven
towards a total generated power
capacity of 2 GW in 2028.

On this journey, we put high efforts
into global cooperation, searching
and raising funding from financial
institutions and strategic partners.
BCG Energy will be committed to
mutually beneficial cooperation
with established globaltechnology
and energy firms, in addition to
generating solutions for gaining

access to green financing from
ESG investment funds, multilateral
development banks in order to
develop new projects.

BCG Energy will always commit
to upholding a pioneering spirit
through continuous innovation
and the pursuit of breakthrough
technologies, including battery
storage systems, hydrogen
energy, and pumped-storage
hydropower. Each investment
decision is made with careful
consideration to ensure a
balanced approach that supports
sustainable  growth,  financial
efficiency and environmental
responsibility.

On behalf of the Board of
Directors, | would like to extend my
deepest gratitude to the Valued
Shareholders, Investors, Partners
and all employees. Thank you for
your trust, accompaniment, and
support for the success of BCG
Energy. Let us continue writing
BCG Energy’s journey - not only for
economic or monetary values, but
also for contributing to a Net Zero
Vietham and leaving our future
generations a better green legacy.

I wish you all great health,
tremendous joy and blooming
success!

Best regards,

Chairman of BOD of BCG Energy

Mr.

g Wee Siong, Leonard
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% GENERAL INFORMATION

CONG TY CO PHAN BCG ENERGY

BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY
BCG ENERGY

BGE

0314445458 issued by Department of Planning and
Investment of Ho Chi Minh City, under first registration
dated June 8, 2017, with the 17th amended Business
Registration Certificate, issued on April 10, 2024

7,300,000,000,000 VND

7,300,000,000,000 VND

Mr. Ng Wee Siong, Leonard - Chairman of the BOD
Mr. Pham Minh Tuan - General Director

028 6268 0680

028 6299 1188

www.bcgenergy.com.vn

www.facebook.com/bcgenergynergyjsc

www.linkedin.com/company/bcg-energy-join-stock-company

27C Quoc Huong, Thao Dien Ward, Thu Duc City, Ho Chi
Minh City, Vietham
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ESTABLISHMENT AND DEVELOPMENT HISTORY

-« A hew era

BCG Energy aims to diversify its energy portfolio through plans of more investments
in wind energy and WtE, setting a goal to reach a total capacity of 2 GW in 2028.

............... -------- Major breakthroughs

BCG Energy cooperated with Singapore Group with the target of developing
and reaching up to 500 MW of power generated via rooftop solar power energy.
Partnered with Sembcorp with the goal of reaching 1.5 GW of power generated via
renewable energy projects.

--------- Making great strides forward

Expanded the project portfolio by the successful operation of a capacity of nearly
370 MW of ground-mounted solar projects and 46.8 MW of rooftop solar power in
provinces and cities across the country. Simultaneously, achieved “Top 5 Leading
Clean Energy Enterprises in Vietnam in 2020” organized by the Office of the National
Steering Committee for Electricity Development, Scientific Council of Vietham
Energy Magazine.

-+.02..= The first milestone

The first solar panel farm in Long An began commercial production with a capacity
of 40.6 MW.

........................................ Foundational establishment

BCG Energy was established in June 2017 with the aim of focusing on the
development of renewable energy.

m ANNUAL REPORT 2024 BCG ENERGYj
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VISION - MISSION - CORE VALUES

Become a leading Renewable Energy Company with
a diverse portfolio and full implementation of social
obligations and responsibilities in the localities where
BCG Energy operates.

Build value and trust for shareholders, partners,
and employees by taking advantage of BCG

' Energy’'s strengths of extensive knowledge of local
and international culture and capacity of project
implementation.

0 Pioneering - Creativity - Aspiration

0 Respect - Listening - Sharing

0 Taking customers and partners as top priority

0 Maximizing operational efficiency and business value

Q‘m ANNUAL REPORT 2024 BCG ENERGYj
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BUSINESS LINES

BCG Energy performs investment and business activities in the field of the following

Renewable Energy types:

[ 4 )

WASTE-TO -
ENERGY

7 |

WIND POWE
\

ROOFTOP
SOLARPOWER

GROUND-
MOUNTED
SOLAR

:%m ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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BUSINESS LOCATIONS

BCG Energy develops and operates
renewable energy projects in different
provinces and cities under corresponding
climatic conditions:

Quang Nam

» Ground-mounted solar:
Long An, Vinh Long, Binh Dinh

/ ’ [
»  Rooftop solar power: ¢

Tay Ninh, HCMC, Lam Dong, Quang

Nam, Binh Dinh, Thanh Hoa... Binh Binh

»  Wind power:
Tra Vinh, Ca Mau, Soc Trang

-

»  Waste to Energy:
HCMC, Long An, Kien Giang...

O\
Tay Ninh \ I ‘*‘/‘/ 9
Longan. A \:’{ ”:

BCG ENERGYj



f’@ JOURNEY 2024

BCG Energy cooperates with Tam
Sinh Nghia to develop Waste-to-
Energy Power Plants in HCMC and
Long An.

C

January 31, 2024

BCG Energy and SK Ecoplant (A
subsidiary of SK Group - the 3rd
largest Chaebol in Korea) signed
a mutual agreement to develop
and generate more than 700 MW

of renewable energy.

C

March 22, 2024

BCG Energy Joint Stock Company

was approved by the State
Securities Commission for public

registration.

C*

May 20, 2024

Groundbreaking of the Tam
Sinh  Nghia  Waste-to-Energy
Power Plant in HCMC. Phase 1 is
expected to be completed at the
end of 2026 with a total capital
investment of VND 6,400 billion,
processing 2,000 - 2,600 tons of
waste per day, generating 60 MW

per hour.

C

July 20, 2024

ENEEUT

730 million BGE shares fromm BCG

Energy are officially traded on
UPCoM.

-

C

July 31,2024

SKecoplant — BCG Energy MoU

0~ i ...~ 8. > &
F R - NP
S T 7§
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE, BUSINESS ORGANIZATION

~ AND MANAGEMENT APPARATUS

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

GENERAL DIRECTOR

GM OF SHARE

BOARD OF DI

HOLDERS

RECTORS

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT

EwmiEOY

DIRECTOR
of Solar Farm

BCG GAIA JSC
Subsidiary,
Affiliate Company

Asset
Management
& Operations

Team

DEPUTY GENERAL

DEPUTY GENERAL
DIRECTOR
of Wind Farm

AURAI WIND JSC
Subsidiary,
Affiliate Company

Asset
Management
& Operations

Team

D

t ANNUAL REPORT 2024

DEPUTY GENERAL
DIRECTOR
of Rooftop

SKYLAR JSC
Subsidiary,
Affiliate Company

Asset
Management
& Operations

Team

DEPUTY GENERAL
DIRECTOR
of Waste to Energy

TAM SINH NGHIA JSC
Subsidiary,
Affiliate Company

Asset
Management
& Operations

Team

=-HBOMLLC
- ATON JSC

_}

_}

DEPUTY
GENERAL
DIRECTOR

IT Department

ESG Department

BUSINESS
SUPPORT

HR Department

Administrative
Department

DEPUTY GENERAL
DIRECTOR
of Project Financing

BCG ENERGY
REPRESENTATIVE
OFFICE IN HANOI

DEPUTY GENERALDIRECTOR
& CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
of Finance and Accounting

DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR
of Project Development

FINANCIAL
ACCOUNTING

FINANCIAL
MANAGEMENT

Project Development
Department

_’ Project
Management Team
_} Tax Accounting _} MEP Technical
Team Team

Financial

_} Management
Accounting Team

_} Financial
Accounting Team

_} Technical
Construction Team

Statement

Consolidation
Team

_} Technical
Safety Team

DEPUTY GENERAL DIRECTOR

of Project Legal

Project Legal
Department

Profile
Management Team

Compensation
Release Team

Planned Economy
Team

Procurement & Asset
Management Team

BCG ENERGYﬂ



}'; SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Company hame

Direct Subsidiaries

BCG Thanh Hoa

Principal

activities

Manufacturing
of household

Address

31 Road No. 10, Hamlet 4, Nam
Long Residential Area, An Thanh

Charter
Capital
(billion

dong)

Direct and
indirect
voting rights
rate (%)

Direct and
indirect
benefits

rate (%)

1 Energy Joint Stock ) L 120 90.00 90.00
electrical Commune, Ben Luc District, Long
Company . -
appliances An Province
Clean Energy Vision Producin Provincial Road 639, Village 8
2  Development Joint electricitg Dong, My Thang Commune, Phu 1,835 51.00 41.28
Stock Company y My District, Binh Dinh Province
Thanh Nguyen Energy
Devel t and Produci Chu Jut village, ChuGu C ,
3 evelopment an ro u?lr\g uJutvi .ogg u u. ommune 240 51.00 51.00
Investment Company electricity Krong Pa District, Gia Lai Province
Limited
. . . No. 356, Group 13, Phu Tan Hamlet,
BCG Vinh Long Joint Producing ) )
4 . Trung Nghia Commune, Vung Liem 350 50.50 50.50
Stock Company electricity o . .
District, Vinh Long Province
Producing
Skylar Joint Stock lectricity & 27C H , Thao Dien Ward,
5 ylar Joint Stoc electricity Quoc. uong .ac-a |er.1 ar 500 99.00 99.00
Company Management  Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City
consulting
BCG GAIA Joint Stock Management & 27C Quoc Huong, Thao Dien Ward,
6 gem Q . g hao e 970.504 50.97 50.23
Company consulting Thu Duc City, Ho Chi Minh City
BCG Wind Soc Tran Producin Alley 1, Provincial Road 934, Hoa My
7 . 9 " 9 Hamlet, My Xuyen Town, My Xuyen 600 90.00 90.00
Joint Stock Company electricity L .
District, Soc Trang Province
Dong Thanh 1Wind )
Producing ) )
8  Power Company . Tra Vinh Province 633 100.00 99.90
. electricity
Limited
Dong Thanh 2 Wind .
Producing . .
9  Power Company . Tra Vinh Province 875 100.00 99.93
o electricity
Limited
Aurai Wind Ener Producin
o MY 9y €N Ho chi Minh City 750 99.00 99.00
Joint Stock Company electricity
BCG Dien Bien Dong Producin Dien Bien Phu City, Dien Bien
1 Wind Power Joint cing : v 30 99.98 99.98
electricity Province
Stock Company
Aton Joint Stock Electricity
12 transmission  Ho Chi Minh City 5 85.00 85.00

Company

and distribution

m ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Company hame

Indirect Subsidiaries

Principal

activities

Address

Charter

Capital
(billion
dong)

Directand
Direct and
indirect
indirect voting
benefits

rights rate (%)

rate (%)

Herb Solar Joint Stock Producin
1 “"J " Ho chi Minh City 7.8 69.00 68.31
Company electricity
Orchid Solar Joint Producin
2 ‘"I Ho chi Minh City 7.8 69.00 68.31
Stock Company electricity
Violet Solar Joint Stock Producin
3 ! 4eiNg o chi Minh City 3 69.00 68.31
Company electricity
Hanwha - BCG Bang Producin Thanh Hoa District, Long An
4 Duong Energy Joint €ing , + ong 785 99.90 50.23
electricity Province
Stock Company
BCG - Bang Duong . S
Producin Thanh Hoa District, Long An
5 Energy Joint Stock ueing , S 9 360 99.90 50.23
electricity Province
Company
Gia Huy Electric )
. Producing Lo .
6  Development Joint . Ho Chi Minh City 30 99.80 98.80
electricity

Direct Associates

Stock Company

Skylight Power Producin

1 ylight Fower 4eNd 1o chiMinh City 50 50.00 50.00
Company Limited electricity
Hanwha BCGE O&M Producin

2 Wha BCGE O& 4eiNg o chiMinh City 45 49.00 49.00
Company Limited electricity
Tam Sinh Nghia
Investment Solid waste

3 v , ow Ho Chi Minh City 1,470 25.00 25.00
Development Joint treatment
Stock Company
TSN Hon Dat Joint Solidwaste  Hon Dat District, Kien Gian

4 . 9 113.462 45.00 45.00
Stock Company treatment Province
TSN Long An Joint Soli t Thanh H District, Long An

5 ong An ol olid waste anh - Hoa  District,  tong 101.806 45.00 45.00
Stock Company treatment Province
TSN Ha Nam Joint Solid t D Ti C , Ha N

6 a Nam Join olid waste uy. ien Commune, Ha Nam 2514 45.00 45.00
Stock Company treatment Province
TSN Hue Joint Stock Solid waste

7 Hue City 28.125 45.00 45.00
Company treatment

Indirect Joint venture

Management

BCG - SP Greensky

Joint Stock Company

consulting
services

Ho Chi Minh City

548.024

50.00 49.50

BCG ENERGYﬂ
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f{g DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION

MACROECONOMIC SITUATION IN 2024

@ The world

The world economy in 2024 continues to
face significant market volatility, geopolitical
tensions and rising public debts, with the rise
of trade protectionism and escalating conflicts
in the Middle East and Eastern Europe. Global
inflation began to ease slowly, allowing central
banks to loosen up monetary policies. The
United States economy overcomes fears of a
recession and continues strong growth, while
China is suffering impacts from deflation and
a prolonged real estate crisis.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

While grappling with various challenges, the
world economy can still maintain a steady rate
of growth in 2024. According to data from the
IMF (International Monetary Fund), the global
GDP growth rate in 2024 reaches 3.2%, lower
than the 3.3% rate in 2023, and is 3.4% lower
compared to the peak of 6.6% in 2021. However,
the steady growth rate still reflects a recovery
trend amid continued significant decline in
inflation.

@ Vietnam

Having opened its economy to global
markets, Vietnham has also been affected
by global instability but recorded many
accomplishments in 2024. Thanks to effective
stimulus measures, Vietnam’'s GDP has
increased by 7.09%, exceeding the planned
target. Production recovery with the PMI
Index maintaining above 50 points while CPI
increased by 3.63%, which is within the scope
of controlling inflation. USD/VND exchange
rates increase from 24,500 VND/USD to 25,400
VND/USD due to pressure from global markets
and foreign investments retreating from new
markets.

Social investment capital increased by
7.5% compared to last year, mainly due to

registered Foreign Direct Investment (FDI)
capital reached USD 38.23 billion, a decrease
of 3.0% compared to last year, the actual FDI
disbursement amounted to USD 25.35 billion, an
increase of 9.4% compared to 2023 primarily in
the production, manufacturing and renewable
energy sectors. On the other hand, Vietham'’s
foreign investments grows significantly,
reaching USD 664.8 million, an increase
of 57.7% mainly due to strategic market
expansions and creating new opportunities for
Vietnamese corporations in many fields such
as agriculture, information technology and
energy industries. Despite global economic
turmoil, Vietnam is still considered a highlight
in the 2024 economy.

BCG ENERGY

FEIRT S



¥z,

/"—"{g DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION
MACROECONOMIC SITUATION IN 2024

The world

The world energy industry in 2024 continues
to witness major shifts amid green energy
conversion and global agreements to reduce
emissions. According to the IEA (International
Energy Agency), the global renewable energy
capacity is expected to increase over 5,500 GW
during 2024-2030, becoming a majority in new
energy production growth. However, the goal
to triple renewable energy production in 2030
still faces many challenges as many nations
have yet to agree on the correct necessary
policies and actions.

Renewable energy is becoming the cheapest
source of energy in many nations, thanks to
advancements in technology and government
support policies. China continues to lead in
this industry, contributing 60% to the global

Vietham

In 2024, Vietham'’s energy industry continues
to record important progress, especially in the
field of electricity production and renewable
energy development. The total electricity
production and import value of the entire
nation is estimated at 308.73 billion kWh, an
increase of 9.9% compared to 2023. Of which,
coal-fired thermal power accounts for the
largest proportion at 48.7% (125.99 billion kwh),
followed by hydropower at 29.5% (76.31 billion
kwh), natural gas at 7.1% (18.46 billion kwh),
and renewable energy at 12.7% (32.88 billion
kwh), including solar power at 22.44 billion kWh
and wind power at 9.56 billion kWh.

The Government has issued Decree 80/2024/

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

renewable energy growth, however, it still
has difficulties with implementing this power
source into its power grid. Meanwhile, Europe
and the United States are prioritizing shortening
the licensing process, as well as improving
infrastructure to promote new projects.

Despite high growth rates, many developing
and emerging countries are still struggling
with high financing costs, weak infrastructure
systems and a lack of effective support policies.
This has limited their renewable energy
potential. The IEA calls on countries to prioritize
addressing these barriers to achieving global
sustainability goals, particularly in the context
of climate change and increasing energy
demand.

ND-CP on the direct electricity purchase and
sale mechanism between renewable energy
generators and large electricity users (DPPA
Mechanism). In addition, Decree 135/2024/ND-
CP on setting the framework for mechanisms
and policies to encourage the development
of self-produced and self-consumed rooftop
solar power was also issued in October
2024. These policies not only promote the
development of the renewable energy industry
in Vietham but also bring great opportunities
for energy enterprises such as BCG Energy and
open up many opportunities for international
enterprises to participate in investment.

‘ﬁ’ Vietham

However, Vietham’s energy sector still faces

many challenges, including balancing
economic development and environmental
protection, as well as ensuring energy security
amid the ever-changing global energy
markets. The constant improvement of
legal frameworks, pricing mechanisms and
investment in energy infrastructure will be
decisive factors for a strong and sustainable
development of Vietnam’s energy sector in the

future.

In light of these events, the revision of the
Power Development Plan VIl has become an
increasingly critical task. On December 26,
2024, the Prime Ministerissued order document
No. 9600/VPCP-CN requesting the Ministry of
Industry and Trade to urgently revise the Power
Development Plan VIl and present it to the
Prime Minister for review and approval before
February 28, 2025. The Minister of Industry and
Trade - Nguyen Hong Dien has directed the

7

v S

related departments to put a priority on working
up a draft, ensuring it is well written within the
due date. The first draft will be presented on
February 10, 2025, then it will be received and
given feedback before being presented to the
Governmental Office before February 28, 2025.
The revision of the Power Development Plan Vil
also accounts for the evaluation of electricity
consumption and demands in recent years, in
order to predict the future energy demands for
2025-2030 and 2031-2050, thereby providing
suitable power development solutions. The
goal is to ensure a stable flow of power, energy
security and the development of a sustainable
socioeconomic landscape.

These efforts showcase Vietnham’s commitment
to developing the energy industry towards
a sustainable path, while still meeting the
growing demands of the economy and
ensuring energy security.

.0

BCG ENERGY
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DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION
MACROECONOMIC SITUATION IN 2024

In the next phase, the Company aims to expand its renewable energy portfolio, fo-
cus on deploying solar, wind, and waste-to-energy plants, with the ultimate goal
of increasing total power generation capacity.

Vision

The company is driven to become one of the pioneering leading firms in the renewable energy
industry in Vietnam and the region, with a diverse portfolio of projects, implementing advanced
technologies, and maintaining environmental integrity.

Implementation orientation

Focusing on current projects under development, while also performing research on new
products and technologies such as energy storage, pumped storage hydroelectricity and
power grid balancing solutions. Moreover, there is also an emphasis on building new green
industrial zones, achieving carbon neutralization and developing new sources of energy such
as hydrogen and LNG.

Expansion strategies

The Company proactively seeks and seizes market opportunities, taking full advantage of
transactional activities and Mergers and Acquisitions (M&A) to expand its investment portfolio,
while simultaneously strengthening its network of investors and strategic partners, both
domestic and international.

Establishing a strong financial foundation
Making significant efforts to cooperate with international financial institutions to raise capital
and meet expansion needs in the near future.

Maximizing revenue by enhancing operational efficiency while optimizing cash flow and
investment timing for ongoing projects.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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PURPOSES OF RISK MANAGEMENT

BCG Energy has identified Risk Management (RM) as one of its core pillars, recognizing it as a
top priority. The Company’s Board of Directors closely monitors this areaq, proactively proposing
and implementing various risk management measures to minimize the negative impacts on
production and business activities. As a result, the Company not only upholds its highest gov-
ernance principle of protecting shareholder interests, but also aligns with multiple development
goals, including:

» Timely risk Identification and opportunity capture, optimizing operational efficiency;

» Enhancingdecision-makingand planningcapabilitiesthrough acomprehensive understanding
of the Company'’s operations, business environment, opportunities, and challenges;

» Protecting and increasing the Company’s total assets to maximize value and profits for both

shareholders and society.

KEY RISK MANAGEMENT AND ANALYSIS

In compliance with Viethamese legal provisions governing BCG Energy’s business activities
and in alignment with risk management systems based on best domestic and international
practices, the Company’s risk management framework is directed by the Board of Directors to
be developed, approved, and continuously improved on an annual basis. Currently, BCG Energy
identifies four main risk categories: Economic risks, Policy and legislation risks, Environmental risks
and Force majeure risks.

BCG ENERGY
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% RISK MANAGEMENT
RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

BCG Energy refers to the Risk Management Model according to international standards to
establish a risk management process consistent with the Company’s operating environment.

Specifically as follows:

ESTABLISH THE SCOPE, CONTEXT AND CRITERIA

Determine the scope of the risk management process based on lo-
cations, objectives, and relationships with the Company; identify the
internal and external context of the Company’s relationships and inter-
actions with stakeholders; Determine criteria for the number and types
of risks and criteria to evaluate the impact of risks on the Company’s
objectives.

/|DENT|FY RISKS

Detect, recognize, and describe risks affecting the Company’s goals
and plans based on relevant, appropriate, and continuously updated
N information.

A\IALYZE RISKS

Specifically inspect risks, risk sources, consequences, possibilities,
events, scenarios, controls and their validity through qualitative and
quantitative analytical techniques or combined techniques subject to
\ the circumstances.

— O]

|
O
N

|
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RISK ASSESSMENT

<_,O 4 Compare the risk analysis with established risk criteria to determine
the appropriate level to support risk handling decisions, adjust goals to
be consistent with the risk, or ignore the risk.

OMMUNICATION AND CONSULTANCYv ‘

C

\

RISK HANDLING
0 5 Select and implement risk management options based on considering

the potential benefits and costs of implementation; Establish a process
to monitor, review and adjust when necessary for risks to be effectively

\ managed.

.

~

4

\

MONITORING AND CONSIDERATION

)
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KEY RISK MANAGEMENT AND ANALYSIS

Economic growth rate

In 2024, the global economy continues to face
numerous challenges, despite maintaining
stable growth. According to the International
Monetary Fund (IMF), global GDP is projected
to grow by 3.2% - lower than the 2023 rate and
significantly below the 2021 peak of 6.6%. This
deceleration is primarily driven by ongoing
geopolitical tensions in the Middle East and
Eastern Europe. While the U.S. economy is
showing strong signs of recovery, China
is grappling with a real estate crisis and
deflationary pressures, which continue to weigh
on the rebound of global trade. Worldwide
trade volume is forecast to grow by 3.6%, a
pace that remains insufficient to significantly
stimulate overall economic growth.

Inflation

According to the IMF, global inflation in 2024
declined to 5.8%, down from 6.7% in 2023.
However, achieving targeted inflation levels
remains a significant challenge due to ongoing
geopolitical tensions and the rise of trade
protectionism. Gold prices have continued to
reach new record highs, reflecting heightened
concerns over global economic and financial
instability.

In Vietnam, the CPI Index increased by 3.63%,
meeting the National Assembly’s target and
demonstrating effective inflation control.
Nevertheless, rising costs and elevated prices of

Exchange rate

In2024,the USD/VND exchangerate experienced
three distinct phases of fluctuation, posing
considerabile risks related to foreign exchange
volatility, particularly for businesses with
loans or transactions denominated in foreign
currencies, such as BCG Energy.

For BCG Energy, the risk is heightened by the
Company’'s substantial USD-denominated
loans from international institutions such as
DBS Bank Ltd. (Singapore), Sembcorp Energy
Vietnam Project| Pte.Ltd., and Leader Energy Pte.
Ltd. (Vietnam), etc., These loans are primarily
utilized for capital investments, fixed asset
purchases, and payments to international

In Vietnam, GDP grew by 7.09%, surpassing the
set target. However, the economy remained
vulnerable to external influences, as evidenced
by a 3.0% decline in registered FDI capital.
Despite this, the recovery of businesses and
domestic purchasing power provided strong
support for overall growth.

In that scenario, BCG Energy proactively
implemented flexible and timely
countermeasures, closely monitored market
developments, and formulated appropriate
strategic action plans. The Company
maintained a dynamic business strategy,
ensuring operational efficiency while striving
for sustainable development amid a volatile
environment.

imported raw materials have placed pressure
on production, while persistent inflation in
major export markets such as Europe and the
United States continues to impact domestic
growth.

Regarding this, BCG Energy has adopted a
flexible strategy to safeguard operational
efficiency. The Company’s leadership closely
monitors price movements and implements
timely, appropriate adjustments to optimize
costs, maintain stability, and adapt to an
increasingly volatile inflationary environment.

partners. As the USD/VND exchange rate
increases, the corresponding debt burden in
VND terms rises significantly, directly impacting
financial costs and payment capacity.

To mitigate these risks, BCG Energy has
implemented rigorous financial management
measures, including the establishment of
a reserve fund to absorb exchange rate
differences, early settlement of loans and
trade payables, as well as proactive collection
of receivables and returns from external
investments to strengthen available cash

reserves.
BCG ENERGY ﬁ
ekl
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KEY RISK MANAGEMENT AND ANALYSIS

Interest

Interest rate fluctuations continue to pose
a significant challenge for the economy,
particularly for businesses utilizing financial
leverage such as BCG Energy. On December 18,
2024, the U.S. Federal Reserve (Fed) cut interest
rates for the third consecutive time, bringing
the benchmark rate down to 4.25%-4.50%,
reflecting a cautious policy stance in response
to inflationary pressures and labor market
uncertainties.

In contrast, interest rates in Vietham have
remained higher than at the end of 2023 in

As a joint stock company operating in the
renewable energy sector and currently listed
for trading on the UPCoM Stock Exchange,
BCG Energy is committed to full compliance
with prevailing legal regulations, including
the 2019 Securities Law (No. 54/2019/QH14),
the 2020 Enterprise Law (No. 59/2020/QH14),
the 2020 Environmental Protection Law (No.
72/2020/QH14), regulations in Corporate
Income Tax Law (No. 14/2008/QH12, amended
and supplemented in 2013 and 2014), and
other relevant legal documents. However,
Vietham’s ongoing economic integration and
development have led to a constantly evolving
legal landscape. Frequent regulatory updates
and adjustments to reflect new realities
present considerable challenges for BCG
Energy in maintaining procedural compliance
and aligning business operations with new
legal requirements. These factors may
introduce operational risks that could impact
the Company’s overall performance.

Currently, the legal landscape presents
several industry-specific challenges for

efforts to stabilize the USD/VND exchange rate.
This development exerts considerable pressure
on capital-dependent businesses, especially
BCG Energy — a company operating in the
renewable energy sector and heavily reliant on
commercial loans.

BCG Energy has outstanding loans at major
banks with both fixed and floating interest rates.
In an environment of interest rate volatility,
the Company faces the risk of significantly
rising financial expenses, which could impact
operational efficiency and profitability.

the renewable energy sector. Although the
Power Development Plan VI, approved on
May 15, 2023 under Decision No. 500/Qb-
TTg, is undergoing revisions to enhance its
practicality and implementation effectiveness,
key supporting mechanisms - such as a
standardized electricity pricing framework
and power purchase policies - have yet to be
timely established in accordance with Circular
No. 57/2014/TT-BCT dated December 19, 2014,
issued by the Ministry of Industry and Trade.

On July 3, 2024, Decree No. 80/2024/NDP-CP
was issued, outlining the mechanism for direct
power purchase agreements (DPPA) between
renewable energy producers and large-
scale electricity consumers. This regulatory
development has generated significant
momentum for market liberalization within the
renewable energy sector. The Decree not only
encourages enterprises to promote industrial
production through the use of renewable
energy sources but also creates favorable
conditions for private investors to initiate new
renewable energy projects. These initiatives

(cont.)

play an important role in supporting Vietham'’s
commitmenttoreducing COXemissions, as pledged
at COP27 (27th Conference of the Parties to the
United Nations Framework Convention on Climate
Change). However, relevant regulatory bodies are
still in the process of conducting further studies
and consultations to issue supplementary circulars
and decisions. These forthcoming legal documents
are expected to provide detailed guidance and
a comprehensive framework for businesses to
effectively implement the Decree.

The delay in issuing specific regulations has posed
considerable challenges for businesses in terms
of planning, project implementation, and capital
mobilization. As a result, many renewable energy
projects are operating without sufficient regulatory
support or access to a transparent pricing
mechanism, hindering their ability to formulate
long-term financial strategies.

In response, BCG Energy has proactively

developed risk mitigation strategies to address

legal and policy uncertainties. The Company
has established a dedicated legal department
supported by a team of seasoned consultants and
legal experts to actively monitor, research, and
stay updated on evolving regulatory frameworks.
While awaiting the finalization of official policies,
BCG Energy has strategically taken advantage of
available opportunities by mobilizing capital from
international markets and refinancing existing
projects at lower interest rates. These actions not
only ensure financial stability but also lay a strong
foundation for future development, enabling the
Company to meet the growing energy demand
and foster sustainable growth.

BCG Energy's efforts display a commitment to
overcoming challenges, seizing opportunities, and
making agile adjustments to maintain resilience
and long-term development in a rapidly evolving
legal and economic landscape.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

KEY RISK MANAGEMENT AND ANALYSIS

BCG Energy fully recognizes that the production
and operations related to renewable energy
carry inherent environmental risks, including
potential issues such as wastewater leakage,
hazardous chemicals, and non-biodegradable
industrial waste. These risks have the potential
to cause pollution of air, water, and soil.
Such environmental incidents not only pose
significant threats to the natural environment
but also expose the Company to serious legal
liabilities and substantial financial losses.

To mitigate environmental risks, BCG Energy
has implemented several key measures. First,
the Company has established standardized
policies and procedures to assess the potential
impact of environmental risks. These policies

\

ensure that the Company invests in the necessary resources to respond quickly and effectively
whenrequired. Additionally, BCG Energy has set up a dedicated environmental department staffed
with highly skilled experts. This team is responsible for monitoring and ensuring strict compliance
with legal regulations, including the 2020 Environmental Protection Law (No. 72/2020/QH14) and
related decrees such as Decree No. 08/2022/NB-CP, which provides detailed guidance on the
enforcement of environmental protection actions under the Law on Environmental Protection.

i .
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In addition, BCG Energy places a strong
emphasisonraisingenvironmentalawareness
among employees and senior management,
highlighting the impact of business activities
on the environment. Regular training
programs are conducted to educate staff
on legal regulations, including Circular No.
02/2022/TT-BTNMT on environmental impact
assessment methodologies. These sessions
also help employees better understand
their individual responsibilities and roles in
environmental protection.

These initiatives not only demonstrate the
Company’'s commitment to operating
in accordance with both national and
international environmental standards, but
also contribute to building a responsible,
sustainable, and environmentally friendly

corporate image.

In addition to major risks related to the environment and legal framework, BCG Energy is also

exposed to force majeure risks such as natural disasters, floods, droughts, and epidemics. These
unforeseen events can significantly disrupt the Company’s production and business operations,
as well as delay project implementation progress. While such risks are unpredictable, BCG Energy

proactively applies preventive measures to minimize potential damage.

In response, the Company has developed comprehensive strategies to safeguard both assets

and human lives. This includes purchasing property and labor accident insurance policies to
ensure financial security in case of incidents. In parallel, BCG Energy places strong emphasis
on occupational safety training for all employees and management, enhancing awareness of

potential risks and equipping staff with effective emergency response skills.

Moreover, the Company places strong
emphasis on complying with regulations
on natural disaster prevention. Regular
inspections, maintenance, and repairs
of equipment—particularly ahead of the
rainy season or periods with heightened
risk—are conducted to ensure that
infrastructure remainsin optimal working
condition.Importantly, infrastructure and
technical equipment are continuously
improved and upgraded to withstand
external impacts, thereby minimizing
production disruptions and downtime.

BCG Energy also integrates force
majeure considerations into its long-
term business planning. This strategic
foresight enables the Company
to develop timely solutions and
maintain flexibility throughout project
implementation, safeguarding both
progress and operational efficiency. By
applying these proactive strategies, BCG
Energy not only mitigates the impact
of natural disasters but also ensures
the stability and sustainability of its
operations.

BCG ENERGY
PREEL S
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2025 RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN

2024 continues to be a challenging period for both the domestic and global economies. Following
a phase of slowdown, Vietham’s economy is beginning to show signs of recovery, presenting
new growth opportunities while also introducing considerable challenges for businesses. In
preparation for stimulating growth and achieving sustainable development, BCG Energy has
proactively developed andimplemented arisk management framework aligned with international
standards and guided by the strategic direction of the Company’s Board of Directors. To ensure
the effectiveness of this framework, the Company has taken the following key actions:

&) Developing a comprehensive risk management plan:
BCG Energy has established a detailed risk management
plan aligned with international standards and tailored to
the Company'’s specific operational needs. This framework
ensures that appropriate preventive measures and
response strategies are in place to address potential risks.

& Implementing and monitoring execution: The Company
strictly implements and monitors risk management
plans across all subsidiaries and operational levels. This
is achieved through well-defined policies, procedures,
transparent reporting mechanisms, and regulations
covering investment = management, information
disclosure, financial oversight, and internal governance.

ﬁ Risk assessment and resolution: BCG Energy places
priority on the timely identification and evaluation of risk
factors by functional and advisory departments. Early
detection enables the Company to formulate proactive
response plans and mitigate adverse impacts on business
operations.

i Training and capacity building: The Company
continuously enhances employee awareness and
capabilities through regular training programs. These
initiatives ensure that staff are well-equipped with the
knowledge and skills needed to effectively manage risks
and respond to crises under any circumstances.

b Internal coordination and collaboration: BCG Energy
actively collaborates with internal departments and
affiliates within the Bamboo Capital Group to ensure
synchronized and cohesive risk management practices,
thereby reinforcing the sustainable growth of the entire
Group.

With its comprehensive risk management strategies and planning, BCG Energy is not only able
to respond promptly and effectively to emerging challenges, but also capable of seizing new
opportunities amidst the ongoing process of economic recovery and development.

m ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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% PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

BUSINESS RESULTS IN 2024 COMPARED TO 2023

Unit: Billion VND

% increase/decrease in 2024

No. Indicator 2023 2024 compared to 2023
1 Total assets 19,036.55 18.344,35 (3,64%)
2 Netrevenue 1,125.65 1.277,70 13,51%
3 Gross profit 535.05 627,41 17,26%
4 Net operating loss (186.71) (769,03) (311,89%)
5 Profit before tax (147.50) (742,27) (403,25%)
6 Profit after tax (152.72) (766,02) (401,58%)

In 2024, BCG Energy continued to record significant
improvements in its financial performance, with
total consolidated net revenue reaching VND
1,277.70 billion, a 13.51% increase compared to
2023. This growth was primarily driven by the
renewable energy segment, with particularly
strong contributions from ground-mounted solar
projects. Ground-mounted solar maintained stable
output and, at times, even exceeded expectations.
Additionally, BCG Energy continued to expand its
rooftop-mounted solar power segment, further
contributing to revenue growth from renewable
energy sources.

Meanwhile, the Company’s after-tax profit in 2024
was a loss of VND 766.02 billion, down approximately

:%m ANNUAL REPOR'I: 2024

four-fold from 2023. This after-tax loss was mainly
attributed to provisions made for investment items
and doubtful receivables. The company expects to
write back these provisions in the future, recognizing
them as profit, once there are more positive
assessments of the investments and receivables.
Furthermore, the Company maintained stability
in its operational activities and efficiency from its
investment strategies, while also controlling costs
and mitigating the impact of external factors
such as exchange rate fluctuations and financial
expenses. BCG Energy is moving towards a more
stable and sustainable future in the renewable
energy sector, contributing positively to Vietham'’s

green economy.

ENEEUT

PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS SITUATION COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL PLAN

Unit: Billion VND

Actual Ratio of
Indicator Plan 2024 performance  performance [
2024 plan
1 Netrevenue 1,520 1.277,96 84,06 %
2 Net operating profit 608.2 (769,03) -
3  Profit before tax 626.4 (742,27) -
4  Profit after tax 513 (766,02) -

In 2024, BCG Energy achieved notable results in
its production and business activities. Actual net
revenue reached VND 1,277.96 billion, equivalent
to 84.06% of the annual plan, indicating that
challenges continue to impact revenue growth.
The primary reason lies in the electricity price
framework for renewable energy, which has
not been adjusted in a manner favorable
to businesses, thereby reducing investment
efficiency. In addition, the implementation of
new projects continues to be affected by policy-
related factors and prolonged approval and
licensing procedures, resulting in revenue falling
short of expectations. The net loss from business
operations in 2024 was recorded at VND 769.03
billion. This was primarily due to provisioning for
investments and doubtful receivables, as well
as the cautious reassessment of transactions
with related parties. However, BCG Energy still
strives to optimize the operating performance of
existing plants, maintain stable cash flow from
business operations, and continue to expand
the Company’'s energy portfolio, particularly
in  waste-to-energy  (WtE), to maximize

opportunities in the renewable energy market.

Pre-tax loss and after-tax loss were recorded
at VND 742.27 billion and VND 766.02 billion,
respectively. Although these figures fall
short of the set targets, they still represent
a commendable performance, especially
considering the ongoing challenges in the
renewable energy market due to transitional
policies. The Company has proactively controlled
financial expenses, restructured its investment
portfolio and focused resources on key projects
to ensure long-term business efficiency.

In the near future, BCG Energy will continue
to closely follow developments in the Power
Development Plan VIII policy and accelerate
the development of wind power, ground-
mounted solar and WtE projects to soon put
them into operation, optimize profits and
improve investment efficiency. The company is
committed to maintaining sustainable strategic
growth, making the most of market opportunities
to gradually achieve its set goals.

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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% PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW
REVENUE STRUCTURE AND REVENUE GROWTH OVER THE YEARS

Unit: Billion VND

Increase/Decrease
No. Operation segments
Value Share
1 Electricity sales 1,084.08 96.31% 1,239.08 96.96% 155 14.30%
2 Service provision 4157 3.69% 38.88 3.04% (2.69) (6.47%)
Total 1,125.65 100% 1,277.96 100% 152.31 13.51%
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BCG Energy’s revenue structure chart

BCG Energy has had stable growth in a difficult
economic situation. In 2023, the company’s revenue
from electricity sales reached VND 1,084.08 billion,
accounting for 96.31% of the total net revenue and
recording a growth of 8.07% compared to 2022. This
clearly reflects the company’s efforts to maintain
and expand its scale of operations, despite
fluctuations in the macroeconomy.

However, revenue from other segments, including
service provision, decreased by 30.07% compared
to 2022, with revenue reaching VND 41.57 billion, but
the proportion of these segments in total revenue
is quite minor (accounting for 3.69% in 2023),
thereby not greatly affecting the company’s overall
performance.

For2024,BCG Energy’'srevenue from electricity sales
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continues to grow strongly, reaching VND 1,239.08
billion, an increase of 14.30% compared to the
previous year, accounting for a higher proportion
(96.96% in 2024). This reflects positive signal for the
sustainable development of the renewable energy
sector that the company is investing in, especially
ground-mounted solar projects. However, revenue
from services decreased slightly by 6.47%, but
because it only accounted for 3.04% of total
revenue, this decline did not significantly affect the
company'’s overall results.

Overall, BCG Energy had a successful year marked
by strong growth in its core business—electricity
sales—while maintaining operational stability and
demonstrating resilience amid fluctuations in the
external economic environment.

Ground-mounted solar

BCG Energy is a leading firm in the field of
ground-mounted solar in Vietham, with many
large-scale projects in operation, contributing
significantly to the national renewable energy
reserve. A few notable projects are the BCG
Bang Duong Solar Power Plant project with a
capacity of 40.6 MW and the GAIA Solar Power
Plant with a capacity of 100.56 MW. Projects such
as the VNECO - Vinh Long Solar Power Plant (49.3
MW) and Phu My Plant (330 MW) have also been

Rooftop solar power

In 2024, BCG Energy has faced many challenges
inimplementing solar power projects, especially
legal issues regarding construction permits,
fire hazard prevention, environmental permits
and power trading mechanisms. However, the
company has made tremendous efforts to
complete installations of an additional 13.7 MW
of rooftop solar power during the year.

In the field of rooftop solar power, BCG Energy
has deployed and commercially operated many
systems in Ho Chi Minh City, Binh Duong, Tien
Giang, Ben Tre, Lam Dong, Quang Ngai, Binh Dinh,
Nghe An, etc. with a total capacity of 85.7 MW
of generated power. These systems are mainly
installed in export processing zones, industrial

ENEEUT

successfully put into commercial operation.
These projects not only optimize the harvest of
solar energy in areas with high sunlight intensity
but also play an important role in reducing
the strain on the national grid and promoting
green economic development. BCG Energy
continues to promote investment and research
of advanced technology, affirming its leading
role in the field of renewable energy in Vietnam.

parks and manufacturing factories, which helps
businesses reduce energy costs and reduces
greenhouse gas emissions. Furthermore, BCG
Energy has signed a cooperation agreement
with SP Group (Singapore Power Group) to
develop up to 500 MW of rooftop solar power,
contributing to the support for Vietnam’s goal of
building a carbon-neutral economy.

With a parallel development strategy for both
ground-mounted and rooftop solar power,
BCG Energy is asserting its leading role in the
renewable energy sector. Not only meeting the
growing demand for clean energy, the company
also actively contributes to the country's

sustainable development goals.

BCG ENERGY ﬁ



A

r'?{g PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS OVERVIEW

REVENUE STRUCTURE AND REVENUE GROWTH OVER THE YEARS

Wind energy

BCG Energy is actively expanding its wind
power segment in Vietnam. According to the
Power Development Plan VI, the company
currently has 8 onshore and nearshore wind
power projects with a total capacity of 725 MW,
spread in provinces such as Ca Mau, Soc Trang
and Tra Vinh.

Piénrac

BCG Energy not only focuses on wind and solar
power but also expands into the WtE sector,
contributing to solving the problem of waste
treatment and reducing greenhouse gas
emissions. An honorable mention is the Tam
Sinh Nghia Waste-to-Energy Incineration Plant
in Cu Chi, Ho Chi Minh City, with a large total
investment capital and advanced technology
from SUS-Hitachi Zosen Vonroll. The project is
divided into three phases, of which phase 1 is
expected to be completed in the third quarter
of 2026 with a capacity to treat 2,000-2,600 tons
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In these projects, the Dong Thanh 1 (80 MW)
and Dong Thanh 2 (120 MW) Wind Power Plant
projects in Tra Vinh, along with Khai Long 1 (100
MW) in Ca Mau, are being urgently deployed
and are expected to be operational in 2026.
The completion of these projects will increase
BCG Energy’s total power generation capacity
by about 53%, strengthening the company’s
position in the renewable energy sector.

of waste/day, generating 60 MW/hour, meeting
the electricity needs of 100,000 households
and reducing 257,000 tons of CO2/year. The
next two phases will increase the treatment
capacity to 8,600 tons/day and generate 200
MW/hour, contributing to providing electricity
to 338,000 households. With a long-term vision,
BCG Energy is committed to becoming a leader
in the field of WtE, contributing to the goal of
sustainable development and reducing CO2
emissions in Vietnam.

"'r; ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL

LIST OF BOARD OF EXECUTIVES

(As of December 31, 2024)

Individual

LR

EENT

. Rate
ownership )
(share) .
Mr. Pham Minh Tuan Chief Executive Officer 10,000,000 1.3699%
Deputy General Director cum
Ms. Pham Nguyen Ngoc Thuong L ) ) 500,000 0.0685%
Chief Financial Officer
) Deputy General Director in charge
Mr. Nguyen Giang Nam ) . . 0 0%
of Project Financing
Deputy General Director in charge
Mr. Pham Le Quang ] . 100,000 0.013%
of Legal in Northern region
) Deputy General Director in charge
Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet . 3,100,000 0.4246%
of Project Development
Mr. Luu Khanh Truong Chief Accountant 3,050,000 0.4178%

Mr. Pham Minh Tuan
- Chief Executive Officer -

Mr. Pham Minh Tuan is currently the CEO of BCG Energy,
responsible for directly managing the company’s key
energy projects. Simultaneously, he holds the role of Vice
Chairman of the Board of Directors of Bamboo Capital
Group (BCG), where he is responsible for the general
management of operations, building investor relations,
developing strategies and transitioning the group’s
investment projects values into reality.

Prior to joining BCG, Mr. Tuan was a senior financial
expert at BMO Nesbitt Burns Wealth Management, one of
the largest securities brokerage and private investment
management firms in Canada. He also held the role of
Vice President in charge of statutory financial reporting
at Citibank Canada and Senior Financial Manager at
Bank of Montreal.

Mr. Tuan holds a Master’s degree in Banking and Finance
from Monash University, Australio, and is currently
a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (ACCA).

BCG ENERGY
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% ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL
LIST OF BOARD OF EXECUTIVES

Ms. Pham Nguyen Ngoc Thuong
- Deputy General Director cum
Chief Financial Officer -

Mr. Nguyen Giang Nam
- Deputy General Director in
charge of Project Financing -
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(cont.)

Ms. Thuong holds a Master of Business degree, majoring
in Quantitative Analysis and Econometrics from Monash
University, Australia. With 9 years of experience in the
Finance sector in Melbourne, Australia, after returning
to Vietham, she took on the position of Deputy General
Director at BCG Land, the real estate division of BCG,
responsible for project operations and finance. Currently,
in her role as Deputy General Director and Chief Financial
Officer at BCG Energy (BCGE), Ms. Thuong oversees all
operations and finances of the organization.

Mr. Nguyen Giang Nam is currently the Deputy General
Director in charge of project finance at BCG Energy Joint
Stock Company. Before joining BCG Energy, he was a
member of the Board of Directors and Deputy General
Director in charge of finance at Dong Son Infrastructure
Investment Joint Stock Company. Before that, he also
held the position of Deputy General Director overseeing
finance at Dai Duong Group Joint Stock Company. With
extensive experience in financial consulting, Mr. Nam
has built extensive relationships with credit institutions,
investment funds and financial institutions, making
an important contribution to mobilizing resources and
optimizing financial efficiency for projects.

Mr. Pham Le Quang
- Deputy General Director in charge
of Legal in Northern region -

Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet
- Deputy General Director in
charge of Project Development -

Mr. Luu Khanh Truong
- Chief Accountant -

Mr. Pham Le Quang is currently the Deputy General
Director in charge of legal affairs in the Northern region
at BCG Energy Joint Stock Company. He holds a Master’s
degree in Nuclear Power Plant Engineering and has many
years of experience working at Vietnam Electricity Group,
where he has accumulated extensive knowledge in the
energy sector. Joining BCG Energy in 2021 as Project
Development Director, Mr. Quang has made important
contributions to the development and implementation of
the company’s energy projects.

Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet is currently the Deputy General
Director in charge of Project Development at BCG Energy
Joint Stock Company. Joining BCG Energy in 2020, he
held the position of Deputy Head of Construction at
Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong Energy Joint Stock Company,
a subsidiary of BCG Energy. In 2022, he was appointed as
Director of Project Development at BCG Energy. With many
years of experience in the field of construction, Mr. Quyet
has built a wide network of relationships with domestic
and foreign partners, making important contributions to
the development and implementation of the company’s
energy projects.

With many years of experience in the field of Finance
- Accounting - Auditing, Mr. Truong has a deep
understanding of analyzing financial data and market
trends to identify opportunities for growth, optimization,
risk management in compliance with the Group and
its stakeholders. Joined BCG Energy in 2022 as CFO of
Wind Aurai Energy Joint Stock Company, overseeing
the financing of the wind power sector in general. Mr.
Truong is currently the Chief Accountant of BCG Energy,
responsible for the overall finance of BCG Energy.

BCG ENERGY
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LIST OF BOARD OF EXECUTIVES

LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Deputy General
Ms. Vu Van Ngoc Nicki 01/09/2024
Director
Deputy General
2 Mr. Hoang Trung Thanh ) - 01/09/2024
Director
. Deputy General
3 Mr.Nguyen Giang Nam , - 20/03/2024
Director
) Deputy General
4 Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet . - 01/09/2024
Director
Deputy General
5  Mr.Pham Le Quang ) - 15/11/2024
Director
6  Mr.Luu Khanh Truong Chief Accountant - 01/01/2024

LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(As of December 31, 2024)

Individual
ownership | Rate (%)
(share)
1 Mr. Ng Wee Siong Leonard  Chairman of the BOD 0 0 Mr. Ng Wee Siong, Leonard
. Vice Chairman of the BOD and General = Chairman of the BOD -
2 Mr. Pham Minh Tuan . 10,000,000 1.3699
Director
) Second Executive Vice Chairman of the
3 Mr. Nguyen Manh Chien 1,000,000 0.1370
BOD
4 Mr. Hoang Trung Thanh Vice Chairman of the BOD 0 0
5 Mr. Le Thanh Tung Member of the BOD 3,100,000 0.4246
6 Mr. Nguyen Trung Truc Independent Member of the BOD 0 0
7 Mrs.Nguyen Thi Loan (*) Member of the BOD 20,000 0.0027

(*) On December 16, 2024, the BOD had received a resignation letter from Mrs. Nguyen Thi Loan and had
disclosed the information in accordance with the law.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Mr. Leonard graduated with a Bachelor of Science from
Singapore Management University, joined BCG in 2016
and has assumed the role of Project Director, directly
involved in the implementation and management of the
company’s key strategic projects. In addition to his work
at BCG, he is also a member of the Board of Directors
of Skylar Corporation and BCG Land Corporation,
subsidiaries of BCG, where he has played an important
role in the construction and development of real estate
and energy projects.

With more than 15 years of experience in the fields of
finance - banking, real estate, and investment, Mr.
Leonard has built strong relationships with domestic
and foreign investors. These relationships not only help
the company access large investment opportunities but
also bring credibility in raising capital for the company’s
strategic projects.

Prior to being appointed as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of BCG Energy in March 2024, Mr. Leonard was a
long-time Independent Board Member of the company,
contributing to key decisions, helping to guide the strategy
and sustainable development of BCG Energy. With his
leadership and strategic vision, Mr. Leonard continues
to play an important role in shaping the future of BCG
Energy in the renewable energy sector both domestically
and internationally.

BCG ENERGY
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LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Pham Minh Tuan
- Vice Chairman of the BOD cum CEO -
(Kindly refer to Overview of Executive Board Members)
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Mr. Nguyen Manh Chien joined Bamboo Capital in 2018
and has served as a member of the Board of Directors
of BCG Energy. He is currently the Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors of BCG Energy, where he is primarily
responsible for public relations and government relations.
In this role, he assists in completing legal procedures for
BCG Energy’s projects, while developing a government
and local relations strategy - an important element of
the company’s development strategy. Mr. Chien holds a
Master of Business Administration from the University of
North Alabama, USA

.

Mr. Nguyen Manh Chien
- Second Executive Vice Chairman of the BOD -

‘ n
Mr. Hoang Trung Thanh
- Vice Chairman of the Board -

Mr. Thanh holds a PhD in Management (Finance) from
Claremont Graduate University (CGU), along with two
Master's degrees: a Master of Science in Financial
Engineering (MSFE) from CGU and an International Master
of Business Administration (IMBA) from the University
of San Diego. Previously, he was a Research Professor
at CGU, specializing in computational finance, artificial
intelligence (Al), and automated trading systems. In
addition, he has accumulated extensive experience in
finance and management while working at Aventis Asset
Management, Provident Fund, and other investment
funds. Currently, Mr. Thanh is the Vice President of the
Institute of Telecommunication Technology, under the
Vietnam Institute of Science and Technology. He also
holds the position of Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors cum Deputy General Director of BCG Energy.
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Mr. Le Thanh Tung
- Member of the BOD -

Mr. Nguyen Trung Truc
- Independent Member of the BOD -

Mr. Le Thanh Tung graduated with a PhD in Investment &
Finance from Middlesex University, London, UK.

Joining Bamboo Capital in 2021, Mr. Tung has held the
position of Deputy Chief of the Board of Directors Office
and Strategic Assistant to the Chairman of the Group.
In this role, he has built an in-depth understanding of
the business operations of Bamboo Capital Group in
general and BCG Energy in particular, making important
contributions to the development and implementation of
the development strategy.

Currently, Mr. Tung is a member of the Board of Directors
of BCG Energy, where he continues to contribute to the
development and expansion of the company’s projects.

Graduated with abachelor'sdegree (1975) and a master's
degree (1977) in economics from Australia, Mr. Truc has
many yeadrs of experience in executive management
and senior consulting at companies in the Australian
and Southeast Asian regions. After returning to Vietham
in the early 1990s, he became a shareholder and partner
of the Peregrine Group, playing an important role in
establishing Peregrine Capital's commercial operations
in Vietnam. He is the founder and operator of Dai Nam
Bank - the first private commercial bank in Vietham, and
is also the head of a joint venture with the UK’s Prudential
Group to establish the first 100% foreign-owned life
insurance company in Vietnam. In addition, he has also
brought many international brands such as Mercedes-
Benz, Honda, Chrysler, Piaggio, Johnson & Johnson, and
many other major brands to the Viethamese market. In
1996, under his leadership, Peregrine Capital Vietham
was voted the Best Foreign Securities Company in
Vietnam by Euromoney (Euromoney Award for Excellence
1996). Mr. Truc is also the founder of the Trinh Cong Son
Foundation and is currently an advisor to many start-ups
and successful entrepreneurs in Vietnam. He is currently
an Independent Member of the Board of Directors of BCG
Energy.

BCG ENERGY
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LIST OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Nguyen Ho Nam Chairman of the BOD 29/03/2024 08/06/2017
2 Mr.Ng Wee Siong, Leonard ~ Chairman of the BOD - 29/03/2024
3 Mr.Hoang Trung Thanh Vice Chairman of the BOD - 29/03/2024
4 Mr.Nguyen Trung Truc independent  Member  of - 29/03/2024

the BOD

Position atBCG
Energy

Mr.Ng Wee Siong Chairman of the

Other organizations

BCG Land JSC

Position

Independent Member of
the BOD

Position at
BCG Energy

Full name

Mr.Nguyen  Vice Chairman
Manh Chien  of the BOD

Other organizations

3K Plus Viet Nom JSC

ENEEUT

Position

Member of the BOD

AAA Insurance JSC

Vice Chairman of the
BOD

HTC Holding JSC

Vice Chairman of the
BOD

Tam Sinh Nghia Investment -
Development JSC

Executive Vice
Chairman of the BOD

Mr. Hoang Vice Chairman
Trung Thanh  of the BOD

Institute of Telecommunication
Technology

Deputy Director

BCG JSC

Member of the BOD

BCG Eco JSC

Chairman of the BOD

Hanwha BCGE O&M LLC

General Director

BCG - Bang Duong Energy JSC

General Director

Hanwha - BCG Bang Duong Energy
JSC

General Director

ERAX JSC Member of the BOD

BCG GAIA JSC Member of the BOD
Vice Chairman of

Aton JSC the BOD and General

Director

Leonard BOD Vice Chairman of the
BCG — SP Greensky JSC
BOD
Aurai Wind Energy JSC Chairman of the BOD
Clean Energy Vision Member of the BOD and
Development JSC Chief Executive Officer
Vice Chairman of the
BCG JSC
BOD
Dong Thanh 1LLC Chairman of the BOD
Dong Thanh 2 LLC Chairman of the BOD
. Vice Chairman
Mr. Pham Minh AAA Insurance JSC Chairman of the BOD

of the BOD and

Tuan

General Director BCG GAIA JSC

General Director

TSN Long An JSC

General Director

TSN Hon Dat JSC

General Director

TSN Ha Nam JSC

General Director

Mr. Le Thanh Member of the

AAA Insurance JSC

Member of the BOD

Tipharco Pharmaceuticals JSC

Vice Chairman of
the BOD and General

TSN Hue JSC

General Director

Tam Sinh Nghia Investment -
Development JSC

General Director

Tung BOD Director
Tracodi Construction JSC Member of the BOD
BCG Land JSC Member of the BOD
Independent
Mr. Nguyen . . . . .
Member of the Viet Ta Production Trading Service LLC ~ General Director
Trung Truc BOD
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LIST OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

(As of December 31, 2024)

Individual owner- Rate (%)
ship (share) -
1 0

Mr. Dong Hai Ha Head of the BOS 0

2 Mr. Nguyen Viet Cuong Deputy Director of the BOS 10,000 0.0014

Ms. Huynh Thi Kim Tuyen

*)

Member of the BOS 21,000,000 2.8767

(*): On February 28, 2025, the Company was notified by the authority of the Decision to prosecute
an internal staff member of the Company, Ms. Huynh Thi Kim Tuyen, a member of the Board of
Supervisors. The Company has made a public announcement in accordance with the law.

Mr. Ha is currently the Head of the Board of Supervisors
at BCG Energy. He graduated with a Master’'s degree in
Construction Management from Swinburne University of
Technology, Melbourne. With many years of experience
in the construction industry, he has participated in and
contributed to many notable projects such as the Ham
Thuan - Da Mi Hydropower Plant, investment in the
construction of the Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange
Building, as well as various residential areas and hospitals.

Mr. Dong Hai Ha
- Head of the BOS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Mr. Nguyen Viet Cuong
- Deputy Director of the BOS -

ENEEUT

Mr. Nguyen Viet Cuong has many years of experience in
the field of auditing and internal supervision, especially
for multi-sector investment companies in Vietham.

Before joining BCG, he worked at the Southern Auditing
Company as an Auditor. After joining BCG, he was
appointed as Head of the Internal Audit Department and
concurrently held the position of Head of the Board of
Control at TRACODI, a member company of BCG Group
since 2016.

Mr. Cuong graduated with a Bachelor of Economics and
a Bachelor of Law from Ho Chi Minh City University of
Economics and has completed the CPAVN Auditor and
Lawyer certificates.

BCG ENERGY
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ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL
SUMMARY OF POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES

The company places great priority on recruitment, implementing it strategically with reasonable

and effective investments, thereby building a high-quality human resource team.

Recruitment policy

BCG Energy is committed to a transparent, fair
and professional recruitment process, ensuring
that each candidate has the opportunity to
be properly assessed. Each position at the
company isbuiltonclearindicators and specific
standards, with a detailed job description
so that candidates clearly understand their
roles, tasks and responsibilities. The company
applies a flexible interview method, combined
with transparent and objective principles, to
comprehensively assess the qualifications,
skills and potential of candidates, ensuring
the selection of the most suitable personnel.
BCG Energy prioritizes internal development
and promotion,  encouraging  current
employees to take on higher positions to

create motivation and build a cohesive team.

Training and talent acquisition policy

BCG Energy is not only a workplace but also an
environment that promotes the development
and exploration of the potential of its human
resources. The company always focuses on
investing in training to improve capacity and
expertise, ensuring that employees meet job
requirementsin the current competitive market.
In the coming period, the company aims to
apply advanced training models, focusing on
developing management skills, standardizing
the capacity of middle managers, and
improving the professional qualifications of
senior managers - those who play a key role
in strategic orientation. To achieve this goal,
BCG Energy continuously organizes training
programs, skills development and in-depth
knowledge bases. In particular, integration
training courses for new employees are

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

External recruitment is only carried out when
the company needs to supplement personnel
with special skills or meet the requirements of
expanding the scale of operations. In addition,
the company constantly seeks and develops
individuals with outstanding capabilities and
desirable qualities, through quality training
programs and clear career orientation. At the
same time, BCG Energy focuses on building a
professional and friendly working environment,
where each individual is supported to
develop their maximum capacity. The
combination of systematic recruitment and
talent development not only ensures stability
in business operations but also helps the
company maintain its competitive advantage
and aim for sustainable development.

designed to help them quickly adapt to the
working environment and corporate culture.
The company also encourages employees
to share experiences and knowledge through
internal discussions and exchanges, creating
conditions for a continuous learning and
development environment. In addition, BCG
Energy pays special attention to improving
soft skills and applying technology, helping
employees not only perform more effectively
but also to always be able to adapt to rapid
changes in the energy industry. The company
believes that combining systematic training
and promoting a culture of knowledge sharing
will not only improve individual performance
but also ensure the sustainable development
of the organization, laying a solid foundation
for long-term progress in the future.

Labor safety policy and insurance policy

BCGEnergyiscommittedtoensuringtherightsof
all employees by fully implementing insurance
policies in accordance with the law, including
social insurance, health insurance, accident
insurance and unemployment insurance. In
addition, the company also focuses on taking
care of employees’ health and well-being by
providing a specialized health care insurance
package from AAA Insurance, fully paid for by
the company, to bring peace of mind and the
best support to employees.

To ensure safety in the working environment,
BCG Energy regularly organizes training and
guidance programs on occupational hazards
safety, labor protection, and fire prevention.

The company also cooperates with competent
authorities to implement specialized training
courses on environmental safety, occupational
hygiene and fire prevention, thus improving the
safety awareness and readiness of employees.

In particular, at BCG Energy’'s construction
projects, the Company always ensures that
employees are fully equipped with labor
protection equipment and organizes training
sessions on labor safety and hygiene. The
company strictly complies with current labor
safety regulations and standards, creating
a safe, professional and efficient working
environment, thereby protecting the health
and safety of all employees in all activities.

BCG ENERGY
PREEL S
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ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL
SUMMARY OF POLICIES FOR EMPLOYEES

Salary, compensation and benefits policy

In avolatile economy with numerous difficulties,
BCG Energy always ensures the full payment
of salaries, bonuses and welfare programs
for employees, in order to maintain stability
in human resources and create a foundation
for sustainable development. The company
constantly improves working conditions,
builds a friendly, non-hostile environment
and creates a comfortable atmosphere for
employees’ mentality, thereby promoting
labor productivity and enhancing long-term
commitment of employees. All employees are
assigned jobsthat are suitable for their personal
abilities and aspirations, without job loss or
suspension. The company has developed and
implemented a salary structure according to
job levels to ensure fairness and transparency
and to attract talent. The evaluation and
adjustment of salaries and rewards are based
on the results of classification according to a
scientific KPI system, combining qualitative
and quantitative indicators. This not only
motivates employees but also encourages
them to improve their work performance. The
Board of Directors is always ready to listen and
receive feedback from employees to improve
welfare policies, ensuring compliance with the
business situation of each period.

Based on operation performance, the company
allocates a significant budget to recognize the

contributions and achievements of employees.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

bonuses for individuals and groups that have
completed tasks flawlessly, extraordinary
bonuses for outstanding achievements,
13th-month salary, and bonuses based on
KPI performance. In addition, the company
also implements special benefits on holidays
such as New Year's Day, April 30, International
Labor Day (May 1), National Independence
Day (September 2), and special occasions
such as International Women’s Day (March
8), Vietnamese Women’s Day (October 20),
Mid-Autumn Festival, Children’s Day, with
meaningful bonuses or gifts.

Every year, BCG Energy organizes many
diverse activities to improve the spiritual life of
employees such as competitive events, annual
sports festivals, periodic health checkups,
team-building programs, and vacation tours.
The company also focuses on special events
such as Christmas, Children’s Day, and holidays
for women to create cohesion and enhance
teamwork spirit. These preferential policies
not only demonstrate the company’'s deep
concern for the material and spiritual life of
employees but also motivate each individual
to maximize their capacity and performance to
accompany and contribute to the sustainable
development of the organization. BCG Energy
believes that a happy workforce is the key to
long-term, sustainable growth and success.

Average salary

ENEEUT

Average salary (VND/

person/month) 19,939,405 23,204,193 25,907,727 18,414,452 26,164,252

30.000.000
25.000.000
20.000.000

15.000.000

10.000.000
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According to the General Statistics Office, the
average worker's income in the fourth quarter
of 2024 was VND 8.2 million/month, an increase
of VND 550,000 compared to the third quarter of
2024 and anincrease of VND 890,000 compared
to the same period in 2023. In the entire year of
2024, the average worker’'s income was VND 7.7
million/month, an increase of 8.6%, equivalent
to an increase of VND 610,000 compared to the
previous year.

According to the survey results from the
Department of Labor, Invalids and Social
Affairs of Ho Chi Minh City, the average net
salary of workers in the city in 2024 reached
VND 12.4 million/month. Of which, state-owned
enterprises (SOEs) and enterprises with high
state influence had the highest salary, an
average of VND 12.9 million/month.

Based on the aforementioned statistical
results, the average income of employees at

the Company is considerably higher compared
to the general income in HCM City and across
the country. This clearly demonstrates the
company’s competitive compensation policy
and commitment to attracting and retaining
talent. In addition, it also reflects a professional
working environment, where employees
are properly valued for their abilities and
contributions. The outstanding salary policy not
only motivates employees but also contributes
to improving employee satisfaction and long-
term commitment to the company. In addition,
a higher salary is also a testament to BCG
Energy’s financial potential, while affirming its
stable growth and sustainable development
orientation in the renewable energy industry.
This helps BCG Energy consolidate its position
as one of the leading enterprises in the industry,
creating trust not only for employees but also
for its partners and investors.

BCG ENERGY -“g}
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SITUATION OF INVESTMENT AND PROJECT

IMPLEMENTATION

CHARACTERISTICS OF PROJECT INVESTMENT AND

IMPLEMENTATION AT BCG ENERGY

BCG Energy is the leading firm in investing in
renewable energy projects across the country,
including ground-mounted solar, rooftop solar
power, wind power, and WtE. These projects not
only effectively extract the natural potential of
each locality but also contribute significantly
to Vietham'’s goal of reducing greenhouse gas
emissions and transforming to a sustainable
energy system. With solar farms, the company
deploys large-scale systems in areas with high
sunlight intensity, providing a stable power
source for the national grid.

Meanwhile, rooftop solar power projects are
mainly installed in industrial parks, factories
and production facilities, providing energy-
saving solutions and reducing operating costs
for businesses.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

As for wind power projects, BCG Energy focuses
on deploying wind turbines in coastal areas
and areas with strong wind flow potential,
ensuring high and stable power output. These
projects not only help optimize natural energy
sources but also play an important role in
reducing dependence on fossil fuels.

Regarding WtE, BCG Energy invests heavily
in WtE plants in large cities and densely
populated areas. These projects not only solve
the problem of urban waste treatment but also
create clean energy, contributing significantly
towards the goal of developing a circular
economy.

.

L]

PROJECT OPERATION SITUATION

Up to now, BCG Energy has successfully
operated 606 MW of electricity through
ground-mounted solar and rooftop solar
projects, including: the BCG Bang Duong Solar
Power Plant (40.6 MW), the GAIA Solar Power
Plant (100.5 MW), the Phu My Solar Power Plant
(330 MW), the VNECO - Vinh Long Solar Power
Plant (49.3 MW), along with numerous rooftop
solar power projects (85.7 MW). BCG Energy is

ENEEUT

deploying a portfolio of projects with a total
capacity up to 289 MW and has projects in
future implementation plans of up to 995
MW. BCG Energy’s goal by 2028 is to achieve
a total capacity of 2 GW of power generated
and diversify its renewable energy investment
portfolios with low investment costs and high
IRR rates for projects, averaging around 10% -
14%.

As of December 2024, BCG Energy'’s projects have conducted the following operations:

Ground-mounted solar

solar plants cho;:ilt Generationin | Generationin2024 | Year-over-year

P pactly 2023 (MWh) (Mwh) output ratio (%)
(Mwp)

Bang Duong 40.6 52,836.98 54,294.17 102.76%

GAIA 100.5 135,055.69 140,647.00 104.14%

PhuMy 1, 2,3 330 339,5699.57 483,050.81 120.88%

Vinh Long 493 64,896.88 66,751.90 102.86%

In 2024, BCG Energy’'s solar power plants
will continue to maintain stable operating
performance, with total electricity production
reaching a higher level compared to the
same period in 2023. The total capacity of the
Company’'s operating solar power projects
reaches 520.7 MW, contributing significantly
to the national power system. In particular, the
actual power generation output of the plants
will all reach a high level, ranging from 94.5% to
101.2% compared to the plan and ranging from
102.0% to 147.6% compared to the same period
in 2023, reflecting the optimal performance
of the projects. This result is thanks to the
strategy of optimizing operating performance,

performing periodic maintenance, along
with applying technological solutions to
reduce losses and improve power generation
capacity. Maintaining stable power generation
output, especially in large-scale projects such
as GAIA and Phu My Plants, not only ensures
a stable cash flow from electricity sales but
also affirms BCG Energy’s solid position in the
renewable energy sector in Vietham. In the
coming times, the Company will continue
to implement solutions to improve power
generation efficiency, maximize the potential
of existing projects and expand its investment
portfolio, aiming for sustainable development
and increasing shareholder value.

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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SITUATION OF INVESTMENT AND PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION

PROJECT OPERATION SITUATION

Rooftop solar power

In 2024, BCG Energy continues to expand
its portfolio of rooftop solar power projects,
affirming its pioneering leverage in the field
of renewable energy in Vietham. By the end
of December 2024, the Company had put into
commercial operation a total capacity of up
to 85.7 MWp and was implementing 9 new
projects with a total capacity of 25.9 MWp.
Thanks to this expansion, BCG Energy not only
increases its power generation capacity but
also continues to demonstrate its commitment
to sustainable development, effectively utilizing

solar energy for industrial parks, factories and
businesses searching for a source of green
electricity.

The operating efficiency of rooftop solar power
projects in 2024 is generally positive, with many
months reaching over 80%. The difference
between actual operations and expected
performance is primarily due to weather
conditions and seasonal factors - with high
generation efficiency in the dry season (August,
October), while decreasing in the rainy season
or at the end of the year.

Capacity 85.7 MWp
Actual operations 14 MWp
Power generated in year (MWh) 78,377.9

Wind power

In 2024, BCG Energy will focus on developing
wind power projects, affirming its pioneering
role in the field of renewable energy in
Vietnam, mainly in Ca Mau, Soc Trang and Tra

implementation progress of key large-scale
projects. BCG Energy is also strengthening
cooperation with international partners to
ensure capital funding, along with applying

Vinh - these are coastal areas with high wind cutting-edge technology and optimizing
flow potential. The company is pushing for investment efficiency.
faster legal procedures and accelerating the
aachiin,
Py . aaaiiifn, andhiin, il aadhiin,
aashibe,
aachibe. aachiin, sadiin, cadtin
«achiin,
- «achiin,
: { 2

\ 1N\ /
\ 7] |'\ | N

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Waste-to-Energy

In 2024, BCG Energy has made important
strides in the field of WtE, demonstrating a
strong commitment to developing renewable
energy and protecting the environment. The
company has started construction of phase 1
of the Tam Sinh Nghia Waste-to-Energy Plantin
Thai My Commune, Cu Chi District, Ho Chi Minh
City. The project has a total capital investment
of VND 6,400 billion, with a waste treatment
capacity able to process 2,000-2,600 tons/

day and a power generation capacity of 60
MW /hour. Phase 1 of the plant is expected to be
completed in the third quarter of 2026.

In addition, BCG Energy is implementing the
Waste-to-Energy Plant project in Long An
province, planned to be built in Tan Dong
Commune, Thanh Hoa District. The project has
a total capital investment of about VND 4,900
billion, at a scale of 25.8 hectares, with an

expected power generation capacity of 10 MW.

BCG ENERGY
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% SITUATION OF INVESTMENT AND PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 3 Projectname: PHU MY SOLAR PLANT
) 330 MW (Consists of 3 solar plant complexes: Phu
PROJECT OPERATION SITUATION current capacity My 1: 120 MW, Phu My 2: 110 MW, Phu My 3: 100 MW)
Project location Phu My District, Binh Dinh Province
IN ACTIVE OPERATION Commercial operation time - Phu My 1 Solar Plant:
P et e e et N + Phase 1(36.92458 MWp): December 30, 2020
+ Phase 2 (83.075 MWp): May 30, 2023
1 Projectname: BCG BANG DUONG SOLAR PLANT - Phu My 2 Solar Plant: December 30, 2020
Current capacity 40.6 MW - Phu My 3 Solar Plant:
Project location Thanh Hoa District, Long An Province + Phase 1(68.881 MWp): December 24, 2020
Commercial operation time June 2019 + Phase 2 (31119 MWp): May 30, 2023

Tam——————

2 Projectname: GAIA SOLAR PLANT 4 Projectname: VNECO - VINH LONG SOLAR PLANT
Current capacity 100.56 MW Current capacity 49.3 MW
Project location Thanh Hoa District, Long An Province Project location Vung Liem District, Vinh Long Province
Commercial operation time September 2020 Commercial operation time December 2020

ﬁm ANNUAL REPORT 2024 BCG ENERGYj
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PROJECT OPERATION SITUATION

UNDER CONSTRUCTION

5 Projectname:

KRONG PA 2 SOLAR PLANT

Capacity

49 MW

Project location

Krong Pa District, Gia Lai Province

Construction progress

- Completed construction of the 21 MW capacity
project and tested. Evaluated the tested items for
COD certification.

- The remaining construction items of the 28 MW
capacity project will be constructed by the Company
to suit the project’'s operation phase approved
by the governing authority in the National Power
Development Plan for the period 2021 - 2030, with a
vision to 2050 (Power Development Plan VilI).

m ANNUAL REPORT 2024

6 Projectname:

DONG THANH 1 WIND POWER PLANT

Capacity

80 MW

Project location

Duyen Hai District, Tra Vinh Province

Construction progress

Completing technical design for factories and
transformer stations and planting offshore pillars.

BCG ENERGYj
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PROJECT OPERATION SITUATION

UNDER CONSTRUCTION

7 Projectname:

KHAI LONG - CA MAU TOURISM ZONE WIND POWER
PLANT (PHASE1)

Capacity

100 MW

Project location

Ngoc Hien District, Ca Mau Province

Construction progress

Construction of secondary items of the 10 kV
transformer station and the station operation area
has been completed. Currently, the legal documents
related to the connection plan and the procedures
for licensing the sea area are being completed to
carry out construction at sea.
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8 Projectname:

TAM SINH NGHIA WASTE TO ENERGY PLANT (PHASE1)

Capacity

2,600 tons/day - 60 MW/hour

Project location

Northwest City Waste Treatment Complex - Phuoc
Hiep Commune, Cu Chi District, Ho Chi Minh City

Construction progress

Construction is being carried out according to the
granted construction permit. It is currently being
proposed to adjust the processing capacity of phase
1 up to 2,600 tons/day - capacity of 60 MW.

9 Projectname:

TAMSINHNGHIA-LONG ANWASTETOENERGY PLANT

Capacity

500 tons/day - 10 MW

Project location

Tan Dong Commune, Thanh Hoa District, Long An
Province

Construction progress

Currently submitting legal documents to obtain
construction permit
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% FINANCIAL SITUATION
OVERVIEWS OF MAIN FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Solvency
20 A5 2458
Current ratio times 2.46 2.28 245
240
Quick ratio times 246 2.28 735
7,30 228 2,28
Capital structure s
Debt-to-total assets ratio times 0.49 0.51 Sl .
215
Debt-to-equity ratio times 0.96 1.05 o o
B Quick ratio m Current ratio
Operation capacity
Total asset turnover rounds 0.06 0.07
Profitability Due to the nature of production and business a sharp increase in cash reserves. This shows
activities in the renewable energy sector, BCG that the Company is well prepared for arisin
Return on sales (ROS) % (13.57) (59.95) . ‘gy . . . pany P p ¥
Energy’s inventory value remains consistently financial needs. BCG Energy’'s total current
Return on equity (ROE) % (1.81) (819) low, almost insignificant compared to total assetsincreasedthankstoanincreaseinshort-
current assets. This leads to the Company’'s term payments from customers, especially
Return on assets (ROA) % (0.77) (4.10) current and quick payment ratios being almost  from the Electricity Trading Company. This
Operating activities profit ] ] equal. pc:y.ment increased by VND 320.88 billion,
% (16.59) (60.19%) equivalent to a growth rate of 8.65%.

ratio/ Net revenue
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As of December 31, 2024, BCG Energy’s current
payment ratio reached 2.49, a slight decrease
compared to 2.46 at the end of 2023.

BCG Energy’s total current assets increased
slightly by 0.49%, from VND 7,578 billion in 2023
to VND 7,615 billion by the end of 2024. Although
cash and cash equivalents decreased sharply
by 31.67% due to a decrease in cash equivalents
(mainly bank deposits with terms of no more
than 3 months), from VND 249.73 billion to VND
38.015 billion by the end of 2024, BCG Energy
still maintained a stable liquidity level thanks to

Meanwhile, BCG Energy’s current liabilities grew
by 8.4%, reaching VND 3,338 billion by the end
of 2024, mainly driven by the increase in trade
payables and short-term unearned revenue.
This increase reflects the Company’s expansion
of business and investment activities; this
increase is higher than the overall growth of
short-term assets, thereby the Company’s
payment index decrease slightly.

BCG ENERGYj
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c- FINANCIALSITUATION

OVERVIEWS OF MAIN FINANCIAL INDICATORS

In terms of capital structure, BCG Energy recorded a slight increase in two key ratios: the debt-to-
total assets ratio rose from 0.49 to 0.51, and the debt-to-equity ratio increased from 0.96 to 1.05.
The main reason was a 0.91% increase in total liabilities, while total assets declined by 2.15% and
equity decreased by 7.97%. In addition, the decline in profit during the period reduced the size of

1,05

0,96 ——

043 0,51

|——— =

2033 024

mDebt-to-total assets ratio m Debt-to-equity ratio

equity, thereby affecting the capital structure ratios.

L.-u
L EAe)
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FINANCIAL SITUATION
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OVERVIEWS OF MAIN FINANCIAL INDICATORS

Total asset turnover increased slightly from
0.06 in 2023 to 0.07 in 2024. This is a positive
signal, reflecting improved asset utilization.
Net revenue increased by 13.51% year-on-year
thanks to the efficient operation of solar power

In 2024, BCG Energy continued to face chal-
lenges arising from both the macroeconomic
environment and the specific characteristics
of the energy sector. The Company prudently
made provisions for receivables and invest-
ments under business cooperation contracts,
which resulted in a negative net profit.

Nevertheless, Vietham's power sector is enter-
ing a period of transformation. The Company’s
wind power and waste-to-energy projects are
expected to create new growth opportuni-

plants. Although the increase is still modest, this
showcases that efforts to optimize resources
and improve operational efficiency are paying
off.

ties as the Government prioritizes investment
in clean and sustainable energy sources. In
particular, waste-to-energy has emerged as
a strongly attractive segment, drawing signif-
icant capital thanks to advanced technologies
that not only address environmental issues but
also provide a stable source of renewable en-
ergy. This is considered a key supportive factor,
driving BCG Energy to improve operational ef-
ficiency and move towards achieving its busi-
ness objectives in the coming period

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
ekl
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¢ SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE, CHANGES IN ¢ SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE, CHANGES IN
OWNER’S INVESTMENT CAPITAL OWNER'’S INVESTMENT CAPITAL

SHARES INFORMATION (AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024) OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

Number of Number of shares

Shareholder Ratio (%
y shareholders | owned (shares) (%)
I Domestic and foreign shareholders
Total number of shares issued 1  Domestic shareholders 899 729,908,400 99.99
11 State shareholder 0 0 0
730,000,000 1.2 Institutional shareholders 4 365,794,400 50.1
Shares 1.3  Individual shareholders 895 364,114,000 49.88
\ 2  Foreign shareholders 9 91,600 0.01
Foreign organizations, economic
4 4 organizations that consist of foreign
Number of outstanding 21 tors holdi than 50% of ] 7,000 0.001
Number of treasury investors holding more than b O
shares charter capital
shares
2.2 Individual shareholders 8 84,600 0.01
730,000,000 0 s
Shares Total 908 730,000,000 100
\ \_ i Major shareholders, other
shareholders
4 4 1 Major shareholders 01 348,300,000 477
Number of freely trans- 2  Other shareholders 907 381,700,000 52.29
Number of restricted
ferable shares Total 908 730,000,000 100
shares
730,000,000 0
Shares .
Shares Business
registration Number of
\ N\ Shareholder 9 o Headquarters Address
certificate shares owned
7 7 number
Type of shares Par value per share Bamboo 27C Quoc Huong, Thao
d' 1 Capital Group 0311315789  Dien Ward, Thu Duc ,City Ho 348,300,000 47.71
Joint Stock ' ' T '
or "‘ary lo,ooo Chi Minh City, Vietham
h Company
shdares VND/share Total 348,300,000  47.71
\. \L

MAXIMUM FOREIGN OWNERSHIP RATIO: 50% (*)
(*): According to Official Dispatch No. 4417/UBCK-PTTT dated June 16, 2024 on the notification
dossier of the maximum foreign ownership ratio of BCG Energy JSC.

CHANGES IN OWNER'S INVESTMENT CAPITALIN 2024
On January 5, 2024, BCG Energy increased its charter capital from VND 4,500 billion to VND 7,300
billion, equivalent to an increase of 62%.

TRADING TREASURY SHARES nNonce
OTHER SECURITIES Nonce
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% EVALUATION OF THE RESULTS OF PRODUCTION AND BUSI-

NESS ACTIVITIES

OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024

Unit: Billion VND

Indicator Actual Plan 2024 Actual % Actual % Actual/Plan

2023 2024 2024/2023 2024
Consolidated net revenue 1,125.65 1,520 1.277,69 13,51% 84,06 %
Net operating profit (186.71) 6082 (769,03) (311.89%) -
Profit before tax (147.50) 626.4 (74227) (403.25%) -
Profit after tax (152.72) 513 (766,02) (401.58%) -

For 2024, BCG Energy continues to face major
challenges in the renewable energy sector as
support policies have yet to show significant
improvements. The implementation of wind
power and ground-mounted solar power projects
is still affected by legal regulations yet to be
implemented, hindering development progress
and directly affecting the Company’'s revenue
and profit. However, the Board of Executives has
promptly adjusted its business strategy, focusing
on segments with strong growth potential such as
WtE and rooftop solar power, in order to optimize
revenue under market fluctuations. During the
year, total net revenue reached VND 1,277.96 billion,
achieving 84.06% of the plan. Although it has yet
to reach the set target, this is still a growth rate
of 13.51% compared to 2023, reflecting efforts to
expand the investment portfolio and optimize the
operational efficiency of existing projects.

In 2024, net operating profit recorded a loss of
VND 769.03 billion, mainly due to provisions for
investments and doubtful receivables related to
transactions with related parties. Despite this, BCG
Energy maintained stable operations, ensured
positive operating cash flow, and focused on
optimizing the efficiency of existing plants while
expanding its energy project portfolio — particularly
in waste-to-energy, which offers significant growth
potential.

The Company reported a loss before tax of VND
742.27 billion and a net loss of VND 766.02 billion,
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primarily resulting from the aforementioned
provisions. Although the business results fell
short of the plan, BCG Energy made efforts to
sustain its operations amid ongoing challenges
related to transitional electricity pricing policies.
Simultaneously, the Company implemented
measures to control financial costs, restructure its
investment portfolio, and concentrate resources
on key projects to secure efficiency and build a
foundation for long-term growth..

In addition, BCG Energy has successfully
implemented its plan to increase charter capital
to VND 7,300 billion and listed 730 million shares on
the UPCoM Stock Exchange, thereby strengthening
its financial capacity to undertake larger projects.
The restructuring of shareholdings and partial
capital divestments, while retaining control
through voting authorization, is also one of the
key strategies to ensure flexibility in financial and
investment management.

In the next phase, the Board of Executives will
continue to prioritize accelerating the construction
of wind power projects, expanding investments in
waste-to-energy (WtE) plants, and strengthening
partnerships with strategic stakeholders to
maximize market opportunities. Simultaneously,
the Company will closely monitor policy changes
from the Government to proactively adjust its
strategies, ensuring sustainable growth and
enhancing shareholder value.

> FINANCIAL SITUATION

ASSET SITUATION

ENEEUT

Unit: Billion VND

31/12/2023 31/12/2024 Increase/Decrease
Percentage Percentage Percentage
Current assets 7,578 39.81% 7.615,3 41,51% 37,303 0,49%
Non-current assets  11,458.55 60.19% 10.729,04 58,49%  (729,513) (6,37%)
Total assets 19,036.55 100% 18.344,34 100% (692,209) (3,64%)

In 2024, BCG Energy’s total assets reached VND 18,344.34 billion, down 3.64% compared to 2023.
The asset structure shifted towards a higher proportion of current assets and a lower proportion

of non-current assets.

14.000

12.000 11.459

2023

10.000

7.578

8.000

6.000

4.000

2.000

0

B Current assets

In 2024, current assets stood at VND 7,615.3
billion, a slight increase of 0.49% from the
previous year (VND 7,578.0 billion in 2023),
accounting for 41.51% of total assets, compared
to 39.81% in the prior year. This growth was
mainly driven by higher short-term receivables
from customers and loans. Short-term
receivables rose by 2.01% to VND 7,302.9 billion
(39.81% of total assets). Among these, trade
receivables surged 106.49% to VND 656.4 billion
from VND 317.9 billion in 2023, primarily from
the Electricity Trading Company (VND 616.22

10.729

2024

7.615

[ Non-current assets

billion). Meanwhile, short-term loans receivable
increased by 364% to VND 509.2 billion (2.78%
of total assets), mainly for payments related to
ongoing renewable energy projects.

Although cash and cash equivalents dropped
sharply by 31.67% to VND 221.56 billion, this did
not significantly affect the Company’s liquidity,
as there is continuous reallocation between
cash and cash equivalents within the current
asset structure.

BCG ENERGY ﬁ



% FINANCIAL SITUATION

ASSET SITUATION

In 2024, BCG Energy’s non-current assets
decreased by 6.37% to VND 10,729.04 billion
from VND 11,458.55 billion in 2023, accounting
for 58.49% of total assets (down from 60.19%
in the previous year). The main reason was
adjustments in fixed assets. Fixed assets
declined by 5.93% to VND 8,842.35 billion
(48.2% of total assets), primarily due to a sharp
increase in accumulated depreciation, which
rose by 37.51% from VND 1,425.35 billion to VND
1,960.01 billion, reducing the net book value
of assets. Among these, tangible fixed assets
dropped by 6.08% to VND 8,447.99 billion.

Meanwhile, construction in progress recorded
a slight increase of 2.68%, reaching VND

CAPITAL SITUATION

31/12/2023

Percentage

1102.23 billion (6.01% of total assets), reflecting
accelerated progress in key projects such as
Krong Pa 2 Solar Power Plant (VND 851.89 billion,
up 8.92%), Dong Thanh 1 Wind Power Plant
(VND 1M.21 billion, up 6.47%), and rooftop solar
projects.

Long-term financial investments rose by
14.46% to VND 38814 billion (2.12% of total
assets), mainly due to expanded investments
in energy projects at associate companies,
with investments in other entities increasing
by 50.39% (reaching VND 388.14 billion). This
represents a key strategy to expand business
operations and strengthen the Company’s
position in the renewable energy sector.

Unit: Billion VND

31/12/2024 Increase/Decrease

Percentage Percentage

Short-term liabilities accounted for 35.57% of
total liabilities, increasing by 8.4% compared to
2023, to VND 3,338 billion. Trade payables rose
by 13.33% to VND 1,386.18 billion, representing
14.77% of total liabilities. This increase reflected
the progress of the Company’s wind and solar
power projects, where equipment and service
procurement contracts had been signed but
were not yet due for payment.

Deferred revenue arose during the year and
was recorded at VND 114 billion in 2024, relating
to gains from equity transfer transactions that

BCG Energy’s long-term liabilities decreased to
VND 6,046.68 billion, mainly due to reductions
in bank borrowings and issued bonds at
subsidiaries. Long-term borrowings totaled
VND 4,742.79 billion, down 5.8%, accounting
for 50.54% of total liabilities. Long-term bonds
declined from VND 500 billion to VND 357 billion,
with an annual interest rate of 13%, as part of
the bonds had been settled.

did not yet meet the conditions for recognition
in the income statement under applicable
regulations and standards. The Company
expects to recognize this profit once the
relevant requirements are fully satisfied.

Accrued expenses increased by 7.36% to
VND 284.69 billion, mainly related to financial
expenses. Meanwhile, short-term borrowings
declined by 2.05% to VND 1335.45 billion,
accounting for 14.23% of total liabilities, as BCG
Energy partially repaid maturing loans and did
not incur significant new borrowings.

Other long-term payables amounted to VND
856 billion, relating to investment cooperation
in wind power projects with partners. The
reduction in long-term debt and issued bonds
helped lower interest expenses, improve long-
term financial efficiency, and reflected the

Company'’s strategy of restructuring its capital
sources in line with its financial position and
business operations.

Current liabilities 3.079,29 33,11% 3.338 35.57% 258,711 8,4%
Non-current
o 6.221,16 66,89% 6.046,68 64.43% (174,480) (2,8%)
liabilities
Total liabilities 9.300,45 100% 9.384,68 100% 27,91 0,91%
7.000
6.221 6.047
6.000
5.000
4.000
3079 3.338
3.000
2.000
1.000
0
2023 2024
B NCurrent liabilities NNon-current liabilities
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Eg ADVANCES ACHIEVED BY THE COMPANY
REDUCED BUSINESS OPERATIONS SPENDING AND COSTS

»

»

»

»

To minimize production costs and spending, as well as to efficiently operate and
maintain fixed asset value, the company has synchronously deployed the following
solutions:

Optimize contract bidding and procurement work: Conduct a thorough review of
material and equipment details, ensuring that the quantity and model are appropriate
to actual needs, complying with standard procedures and regulations. In addition,
minimize excess materials lost after maintenance.

Prioritize recycling and reusing materials and equipment: Materials and equipment
usable after recalling will be refurbished and given proper maintenance procedures to
be reused in mass repair periods, thus reducing input costs.

Comply strictly with device operation guidelines: Strictly enforce the operating
procedures of stations, lines, and transformers from the beginning of the year to minimize
power loss due to internal or external reasons, ensuring the successful completion of
the set targets.

These measures take part in helping the company enhance operating cost efficiency,

reduce wasteful spending and optimize the available resources in production and business

operations.

LABOR SAFETY, FIRE PREVENTION AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The company has implemented synchronous measures to ensure labor safety and fire pre-

vention effectively:

»

»

»

»

»

Fire and explosion insurance: The Company has proactively purchased fire and explo-
sion insurance for all factories and plants, which helps minimize the damages caused.

Inspect and upgrade firefighting equipment: Perform frequent inspections and sup-
ply and upgrade firefighting equipment to ensure safety to employees and assets

Comply with labor safety regulations: Ensure all labor activities and materials used in
production comply strictly with the safely indicators and requirements proposed by the
Ministry of Industry and Trade

Incident prevention and quick responses: Establish fire prevention, rescue and relief
plans at all factories, and raise awareness and proactive spirit of workers in preventing
incidents.

Regular training and drills: Coordinate with relevant agencies to organize regular fire
prevention and fighting training courses and drills to improve employees’ incident han-
dling skills. The company also conducts periodic monitoring and inspections of envi-
ronmental sanitation and occupational safety in order to promptly detect and correct
potential risks, ensuring maximum safety in all activities.

These solutions not only enhance incident response capabilities but also demonstrate the

company’s strong commitment to protecting employees, assets and a safe and efficient

work environment.
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The company has implemented the following environmental management solutions to ensure

compliance with legal regulations and sustainable environmental protection:

»

»

»

Hazardous waste management: The Company
has developed a detailed plan for the collection,
classification, storage and transfer of hazardous
waste for treatment in accordance with regulations.
Simultaneously, priority is given to the development
of plans for prevention, response and remediation of
environmental incidents, ensuring strict compliance
with the contents of the Surface Water Use License
issued by the Ministry of Natural Resources and
Environment.

Using water economically and efficiently: The
company promotes and encourages employees to
take water-saving measures such as turning off the
water after use and reusing usable water for purposes
such as watering plants, washing roads and cleaning
equipment to minimize waste of resources and limit
environmental impact.

Waste Reduction: The company is committed to
minimizing the release of toxic substances into the
environment during the waste treatment process.
Hazardous waste is strictly controlled before being
transferred to waste management plants for treatment,
ensuring the safety of public health and the natural
environment.

These measures clearly demonstrate the company’s responsibility in effectively managing the
environment, contributing to building a friendly and sustainable working and production envi-

ronment.

BCG ENERGYj
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f{g IMPROVEMENTS IN ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE,

POLICIES, AND MANAGEMENT

BCG Energy has streamlined its organizational structure in an optimized manner. Departments
are clearly defined in terms of functions and tasks, ensuring that each department has specific
goals and responsibilities. Personnel arrangement is based on individual capacity, allowing
each employee to maximize their abilities. Moreover, the company is actively on the lookout for
talent with high professional qualifications to improve the quality of available human resources.
In addition, BCG Energy applies a clear and transparent hierarchical organizational chart of
authority and responsibility. This helps the workload to be assigned to the right person for the
right job, thereby promoting the company’s business activities more quickly and effectively.

PLANS FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The plans presented at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders include several key
strategic directions for 2025 and the 2025-2029 period, specifically as follows:

In 2025, depending on Government pricing  with strong financial capacity and extensive
policies, BCG Energy will promptly adjust the industry experience. In parallel, BCG Energy
progress of ongoing projects, particularly  will explore other renewable energy sources
nearshore wind power, while enhancing as policy signals emerge, as well as energy
the performance of existing projects and storage technologies to improve project
gradually expanding its portfolio to reaffirm  efficiency. The growth target is to achieve a
its position as a leading renewable energy total generation capacity of 2 GW by 2028,
developer in Vietham. To achieve this, the  with readiness to expand internationally and
Company will actively seek strategic partners  contribute to national energy security.
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In 2025, the Company will continue to maximize
the operating capacity of existing projects
through O&M activities, operations management,
and proactive forecasting of weather and
transmission risks. Projects currently in operation
with favorable electricity tariffs will remain
the backbone in generating stable, large-
scale revenues, ensuring sustainable business
operations and laying a solid foundation for the
development of new projects.

Facing ongoing challenges in both domestic and
global financial markets in 2025, the Company
will adopt a flexible capital-raising strategy and
diversify funding channels. Its priority is to secure
suitable funding from strategic partners who
share its long-term vision. BCG Energy will also
focus on acquiring or developing high-potential
renewable energy projects—particularly solar,
rooftop solar, and wind—with strong operational
and financial performance. Alongside raising
capital for new projects, the Company also plans
to refinance existing loans with more competitive
sources, thereby lowering financing costs and
strengthening its financial position.

Recognizing policy-driven opportunities,
the Company willpromoteinitial exploration
of new potential sectors such as waste-
to-energy, hydrogen, and LNG, in order
to diversify its portfolio, reduce reliance
on specific segments, and generate
new revenue streams. M&A efforts will
focus strongly on rooftop solar, thereby
enhancing competitiveness in line with
market trends.

During 2025-2029, the Company will
strengthen  engagement  with local
governments to discuss integrated
clean energy solutions, including green
complexes powered by renewable energy
or industrial parks operated entirely by
renewable power and energy storage
technologies. These initiatives will not
only provide growth opportunities for BCG
Energy but also contribute to broader local
and national development goals.

BCG ENERGY
PREEL S



% PLANS FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The Company will set specific objectives
for different employee groups, apply
promotion and career development
policies for high-performing staff,
and foster a competitive working
environment that maximizes employee
potential. Opportunities for knowledge
exchange will be created through
company trips, recreational activities
during working hours, and initiatives to
relieve stress, enabling employees to
recharge and perform effectively.

BUSINESS PLAN TARGETS FOR 2025

In order to diversify business activities in the energy sector and optimize electricity output from
projects in the final stages, the Board of Directors has developed a 2025 business plan with the
main objectives of increasing revenue and maximizing benefits for investors as follows:

Unit: Billion VND

Ratio % (+/-)

Indicator Actual 2024 Plan 2025
Plan/Actual
1 Consolidated net revenue 1.277,69 1,226.38 95,98%
2 Profit before tax (742,27) 230.23 -
3 Profit after tax (766,02) 210.94 -
4 Dividend rate (unallocated) (unallocated) -

The BOD of BCG Energy believes that 2025 is expected to be a challenging year, especially for
the company and the renewable energy industry in Vietham. However, the company expects
to formulate new strategies, such as continuing to develop WtE plants and efforts to resolve
outstanding legal issues of some projects to be able to continue implementation. These efforts
are expected to bring positive impacts to the company’s business results.
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INVESTMENT PLANS FOR 2025

In 2025, BCG Energy aims to continue
expanding and improving the operational
efficiency of ground-mounted solar

projects, focusing on optimizing power
GROUND- generationcapacity.Basedontheoperating
MSO;’IT:D results in 2024, in which major projects such

as Phu My, Bang Duong, GAIA, and VNECO
Vinh Long all achieved a positive power
generation output ratio compared to the
plan, BCG Energy will continue to upgrade
technology and improve the performance
of existing plants to increase power output
and optimize profits.

T T T S Ty .
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In addition, BCG Energy will also focus on
researching and applying energy storage
technologies to improve the operational
efficiency of solar power plants. Integrating
an energy storage system (ESS) will help
increase grid stability, minimize excess
capacity during off-peak hours, and
optimize the economic value of projects.
With this strategy, BCG Energy not only
strengthens its position in the renewable
energy industry but also makes an
important  contribution to sustainable
development and ensuring energy security
for Vietnam.

BCG ENERGYj
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PLANS FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
INVESTMENT PLANS FOR 2025 (cont)

OOFTOP SO-
LAR POWER

IND POWER:

With the new regulations on renewable
energy development, especially the policy
mechanism to encourage the development
of rooftop solar power. In 2025, BCG Energy
strives to continue expanding its portfolio
of rooftop solar power projects, with a
planned total operating capacity of 13I
MWp, a sharp increase compared to 85.7
MWp at the end of 2024. To realize this goal,
the Company will deploy at least 50 MWp
of new installations this year, focusing on
industrial parks and factories with large
electricity consumption demands. These
projects will be implemented under a
strategic cooperation model with large
enterprises, ensuring clean and stable
power sources and helping clients optimize
production costs.

Currently, the Company owns and develops
many large-scale wind power projects,
including onshore and nearshore wind
power projects in areas with high wind
potential such as Ca Mau, Soc Trang and
Tra Vinh. These projects are expected to
contribute significantly to the Company’s
total power generation capacity in the
following years.

In 2025, BCG Energy plans to complete
the legal procedures for a number of wind
power projects deployed in previous years.
In addition, BCG Energy will continue to
survey and search for new locations to
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In addition to expanding its scale, the
company will also continue to complete
power purchase agreements (PPAs) to
ensure stable output for renewable energy
output, while taking advantage of policy
opportunities from the Government to
support the development of the rooftop
solar power sector.

In terms of finance, the company will
continue to seek suitable investment
capital sources, including partnerships with
domestic and foreign financial institutions
to ensure stable capital flows for project
expansion. The plans for 2025 not only help
BCG Energy consolidate its leading position
in the rooftop solar power sector but also
affrm the Company’s commitment to
promoting clean energy and sustainable

development in Vietham.

expand more wind power projects.

In terms of financing, the Company will seek
strategic partners, including established
energy corporations and international
financial institutions to raise capital for
wind power projects. Cooperation with
organizations such as SP Group, Sembcorp
or green investment funds will help BCG
Energy ensure stable financial resources,
optimize investment costs and improve
the operational efficiency of projects in the
long term.

WASTETO
ENERGY

INVESTING

In 2025, BCG Energy will continue to promote
the development of the WtE segment as an
important pillar in the Company’s strategy
to expand its renewable energy portfolio.
With great potential from converting
waste into electricity, the Company aims
to develop advanced WtE incineration
plant projects, contributing to solving the
problem of urban waste treatment, while
providing clean and stable electricity for
the national power grid system.

In 2024, BCG Energy laid the foundation
for expanding WtE projects with plans to
increase the capacity of existing plants in
Ho Chi Minh City and Long An, maximizing
the ability to treat waste and produce
electricity from these plants. By 2025, the
Company plans to complete investment
procedures and expand the scale of these
projects, improving processing capacity
and power generation efficiency to meet
the growing demand for clean electricity in
large urban areas.

In addition, BCG Energy will focus on
developing new WtE projects, notably the
WLE plant in Kien Giang. In addition, the
Company will also participate in bidding for
WLE projects in provinces with high waste
treatment demands such as Da Nang, Lam

In 2025, BCG Energy will focus its resources
on two key areas: WtE and wind power. The
company aims to accelerate the progress
of existing projects, planning to build stable
power generation capacity from renewable
energy sources. Wind power projects will be
deployed in potential coastal areas such as
Ca Mau, Soc Trang and Tra Vinh, while WtE
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Dong and other localities. BCG Energy’s
goal is not only to expand its scale but also
to pioneer the application of cutting-edge
technology in waste treatment and power
production.

2025 also marks a new step forward
in the application of advanced waste
treatment technology, with upgrading
the existing plants to optimize treatment
efficiency,
increase commercial electricity output. The

minimize  emissions and
Company will continue to cooperate with
international technology firms and partners
to update and apply the most advanced
technologies to its projects. In terms of
financing, BCG Energy will mobilize capital
from green credit institutions, international
investment  funds and  sustainable
development  support programs to
ensure long-term investment capital
for WtE projects. With the strong interest
of the Government and international
organizations in this field, BCG Energy
believes that this will be a huge opportunity
for the Company to invest heavily in the WtE
sector, while affirming its pioneering role in
the field of waste treatment and renewable
energy production in Vietnam.

will be developed in large cities to combine
waste treatment and power generation...
This is not only a direction in line with the
clean energy development orientation, but
also contributes to resolving environmen-
tal issues and energy security for the local
population.

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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EXPLANATION OF THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVES FOR

AUDIT OPINIONS

In the audited separate and consolidated financial statements for 2024, Moore AISC Auditing and
Informatics Services Co., Ltd. expressed a qualified opinion. The Executive Board would like to pro-
vide the following detailed explanations:

ISSUE1:

Regarding deposits for share purchases, advances, and business cooperation contracts as
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, we noted the following matters:

As of December 31, 2024, the receivable
from the deposit for share purchase
amounted to VND 39,000,000,000 (Note
V.4.(iii)) between BCG Vinh Long Joint
Stock Company (a subsidiary) and Tracodi
Construction Group Joint Stock Company
(formerly: Industrial Development and
Transport Investment JsC).

Advances were recorded by BCG Dien
Bien Dong Wind Power JSC and Aton JSC
(subsidiaries) to Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet
(Deputy CEO of BCG Energy) totaling VND
34.99 billion (Note V.4.(iv)) on May 24,
2024 and June 29, 2024. These advances
were paid by bank transfer immediately
after BCG Energy and other shareholders
contributed capital into the subsidiaries.

As of December 31, 2024, the receivables
from business cooperation contracts
amounted to VND 3,210,481,000,000 (Note
V.4.(v)) between several subsidiaries
within the Group and various partners for
the development of wind power, waste-to-
energy, and waste treatment projects.

We were unable to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding:
the execution of share purchase deposit
controcts/agreements; the cash flow
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utilization progress under the BCCs by the
partners; the purpose of advances made to
Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet; and the recoverability
of the aforementioned deposits, advances,
and BCC receivables. The total value
of these items is VND 3,284,471,000,000,
accounting for 17.9% of the Group's total
consolidated assets.

In addition, we were also unable to obtain
documentation showing that the business
cooperation transaction between BCG
Thanh Hoa Energy JSC (a subsidiary)
and Tam Sinh Nghia Investment and
Development JSC (an associate), along
with the related deposits and advances,
had been officially approved by the Boards
of Directors of the respective companies
in accordance with their charters and
applicable laws. This may affect the validity
of the recognized business cooperation
contracts, share purchase deposits, and
advances on the consolidated financial
statements.

Accordingly, we were unable to determine
the necessary adjustments, if any, to these
receivables or any other possible effects
on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group.

ENEEUT

Our explanation as follows:

Regarding the advances made by BCG Dien Bien Dong Wind Power Joint Stock Company and
Aton Joint Stock Company to Mr. Dang Dinh Quyet for the purpose of covering expenses related
to project implementation.

As of December 31,2024, the receivables from Business Cooperation Contracts amounted to VND
3,210,481,000,000. These were transactions between several subsidiaries and associates within
the Group and business partners for the purpose of investing in and developing wind power
projects, waste-to-energy plants, and waste treatment facilities, as disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Currently, the Company is working with competent authorities regarding the prosecution involving
the parent company, as well as changes in senior personnel. Consequently, the Company faces
limitations in accessing the necessary documentation to explain to the audit firm and to provide
sufficient evidence supporting the recoverability of these assets. Nevertheless, the Company
remains confident that these transactions will be realized in the future.

ISSUE 2:

As of the date of this report, we have not received sufficient confirmations for the following
balances:

Item Balance as of 31/12/2024

Prepayments to suppliers 142,937,642,745 VND Explanation at item V.3
467,527,982,231 VND
974,721,322,617 VND

Trade payables Explanation at item V.15

Other payables Explanation at item V.17

Alternative audit procedures also did not provide sufficient basis to assess the completeness of
these payables, or their possible effects on other items in the consolidated financial statements.

Our explanation as follows:

The Company has sent multiple confirmation requests to these partners but has not received any
responses to date. Relevant documents, including contracts, agreements, and payment vouchers,
have been provided to the audit firm. The Company intends to make further efforts to contact the
partners and arrange the necessary financial resources to settle outstanding obligations with
them soon.

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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COMPANY'S OPERATIONS

Despite the positive economic climate
in Vietham, BCG Energy still faces many
difficulties due to shortcomings in the State’s
renewable energy development policy,
especially the delays in implementing the
Power Development Plan VI, the electricity
purchase and sale price mechanism and
legal issues related to inspection, examination
and investment licensing. These factors have
significantly hindered the implementation of
the company’s projects, especially in three
key areas: Wind power, ground-mounted solar
and rooftop solar power. In addition, the lack of
clarity inregulations related to Decree 80/2024/
ND-CP on the direct electricity purchase and
sale mechanism between renewable energy
producers and large-scale electricity users
has also made it difficult for the company to
sign contracts and implement projects.

Despite many challenges, BCG Energy still
strives to complete phase 1 of the Krongpa
2 project (21 MWp). The company has also
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EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THE

expanded into the investment sector of waste-
to-energy production by acquiring a project
from Tam Sinh Nghia Company.

Recognizing its role in environmental
protection and social development, BCG
Energy always focuses on assessing the
environmental impact of all its projects, from
construction and operation to maintenance.
The company has established standards to
monitor, evaluate and provide timely solutions
to handle incidents that may have negative
impacts on the environment. In addition, BCG
Energy also actively participates in charity
and community activities, especially during
challenging economic times. Along with
Bamboo Capital Group’s programs through
the BCG Foundation Charity and Social Fund,
the company has contributed 2 billion VND
to support social security for My Thang and
My An communes, Phu My district, Binh Dinh
province, demonstrating its commitment to
the community and society.
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EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON

THE OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY'’S BOARD OF
EXECUTIVES

The Board of Executives has promptly implemented and thoroughly grasped the Resolutions of
the Board of Directors and the General Meeting of Shareholders and at the same time proposed
creative and specific solutions, properly assigning tasks to each member of the Executive Board to
ensure that the Resolutions and Decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board
of Directors are fully and promptly implemented.

The Executive Board has demonstrated dynamism and creativity in its activities, especially in
implementing goals in the energy sector, as follows:

»  Diversifying shares in companies, prioritizing calling forinvestment capital from foreign partners
such as SP Group, Sembcorp and Leader.

»  Developing energy projects across the country, focusing on areas with potential and favorable
conditions for electricity transmission. In particular, the company has focused on developing
wind and solar power projects in potential areas, and investing in waste-to-energy projects in
Ho Chi Minh City, Long An, Kien Giang, etc.

However, in addition to the positive results, the Board of Directors also found some shortcomings
that need to be overcome:

» Legal management and supervision are not heavily enforced, especially for projects facing
difficulties in operating conditions such as fire prevention and fighting and environmental
requirements.

» Completing legal procedures: It is necessary to prioritize completing legal procedures for
projects and adjusting documents accordingly to be proactive in the construction process and
ensure readiness for inspection and examination by government authorities.

»  Strengthening coordination between departments and divisions in the company to ensure that
work is carried out more smoothly and effectively.

» Improving project development capacity, especially the capacity to analyze and
comprehensively evaluate projects, to be able to deploy new projects more effectively.

» Improve workload tracking and reporting: Departments need to have comprehensive, timely
and accurate reports on work progress as well as important issues affecting construction
progress, thereby helping the company to provide timely instructions and coordination to
resolve these issues.

With these efforts, BCG Energy expects to continue to strengthen its position in the renewable
energy industry and achieve sustainable development goals in the coming time.

BCG ENERGY
PREEL S



PLANS AND ORIENTATIONS OF

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BUSINESS OPERATION ORIENTATION

During the 2025-2027 period, BCG Energy and its joint ventures aim to expand the total rooftop
solar power generation capacity by 100 MWp per year, bringing the total capacity of the rooftop
solar power system to 180 MWp in 2025, 265 MWp in 2026 and 350 MWp in 2027. This is a strong
commitment of BCG Energy to promote the sustainable development of the renewable energy
industry in Vietnam.

In addition, the Company also focuses on effectively managing and operating Tam Sinh Nghia
Joint Stock Company, ensuring the maintenance of current revenue sources, while restructuring
the organization and optimizing operational processes. In the plan to expand the waste-to-
energy sector, the Company is implementing the Tam Sinh Ng Waste-to-Energy Plant Project
with a total area of 20 hectares, the initial phase of waste treatment capacity reaches 2,000
tons/day, equivalent to a design capacity of 60 MW. The project has the ability to expand the
treatment scale up to 8,000 tons/day, equivalent to a maximum capacity of 200 MW. The first
phase is expected to be completed at the latest by 2027.

Regarding wind power, BCG Energy plans to deploy 550 MWp of onshore wind power when legal,
financial and support policy conditions are ensured. The deployment progress of this plan will be
flexibly adjusted, depending on the Government’s approval roadmap within the framework of the
Power Development Plan 8 as well as the newly issued electricity price.
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DEVELOPMENT OF MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS AND HUMAN RESOURCES

We are committed to building a team of
specialists who are not only strong in expertise
and vision but also fully understand and
contribute to the core values of the enterprise.
We always define clear and appropriate work
goals for each group of employees, thereby
ensuring the maximum development of each
individual. For outstanding employees, we
apply reasonable promotion and advancement

policies to create the ideal conditions for them to
maximize their potential. A competitive working
environment will be maintained to maximize
the potential of each individual while creating
opportunities for exchange and learning
through activities such as travel, sightseeing and
entertainment programs during working hours,
helping employees relieve stress to maintain
enthusiasm and work efficiency.

BCG ENERGY



GOVERNANCE REPORT

101 Board of Directors
112 Board of Supervisors

15 Transactions, remunerations and
benefits of the Board of Directors,
Board of General Directors and
Board of Supervisors




o

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MEMBERS AND STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(tai ngay 31/12/2024)

Individual

ﬂmm )

Mr. Ng Wee Siong Leonard Chairman of the BOD 0 0

Vice Chairman of

2 Mr. Pham Minh Tuan
Director

the BOD and General

10,000,000 1.3699

Second Executive Vice

3 Mr. Nguyen Manh Chien

1,000,000 0.1370

Chairman of the BOD

Vice Chairman of the

4 Mr. Hoang Trung Thanh 0 0
BOD

5 Mr. Le Thanh Tung Member of the BOD 3,100,000 0.4246
Independent Member of

6 Mr. Nguyen Trung Truc 0 0
the BOD

7  Mrs.Nguyen Thiloan (*)  Member of the BOD 20,000 0.0027

(*) On December 16, 2024, the BOD had received a resignation letter from Mrs. Nguyen Thi Loan

and had disclosed the information in accordance with the law.

OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024

The Board of Directors (BOD) of the Company
always performs its management and direction
tasks in accordance with the provisions of
low and the Company’'s Charter, with the
goal of ensuring the stable and sustainable
development of the Company. In 2024, the BOD
proactively approved many major policies
and decided on important issues, aiming to
implement the goals assigned by the General
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS). Specifically,
to meet the needs of business and effective
management, the BOD actively submitted
reports to the GMS to seek opinions and make
decisions on issues under the authority of
the GMS. Extraordinary meetings of the GMS
were held in 2024, in which the GMS passed
important decisions including changing the
membership of the Board of Directors, adding
and dismissing members of the Board of
Directors for the term 2020-2025.

The Board of Directors has also decided to
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amend and supplement the Company Charter,
especially when there are important changes
in capital and line of business. Decisions
related to changing the time of registering the
company publicly has been made to facilitate
the company’'s operations in the coming
time. These are necessary decisions to help
the company develop stronger in a rapidly
changing economic environment.

During the process of directing and supervising,
the Board of Directors has organized regular
and extraordinary meetings at necessary
times to meet the actual requirements of the
company. These meetings are an opportunity
for the Board of Directors to pass important
decisions related to the organization of the
hierarchy, personnel, deployment of investment
projects, capital mobilization transactions and
development of the company’'s operational
plans. The Board of Directors has made
decisions on enforcing governance regulations,

O
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OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024  (:iép theo)

internal regulations, as well as financial policies to
perfect the company’s management mechanism
and business operations.

In particular, the Board of Directors has directed the
deployment of the capital mobilization plan for the
company’s major projects. The Board of Directors
also requested the implementation of legal
solutions to handle challenges in the procedures
for increasing charter capital, creating favorable
conditions for the company to maintain and expand
business activities.

In addition to directing production and business
activities, the Board of Directors also pays special
attention to proactively seeking capital sources for
the company. The Board of Directors has submitted
to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval
of capital mobilization forms such as issuing
individual shares, offering to existing shareholders
and mobilizing from majorinvestors. This has helped
the company’s charter capital reach VND 7,300
billion, according to the 16th amended Business
Registration Certificate, issued on January 5, 2024.
This capital increase not only helps the company
stabilize its finances but also strongly supports key
investment projects.

The Board of Directors also closely monitors
the operations of the Executive Board and the
company’s management staff. The BOD requires
the Executive Board to effectively implement
production and business plans, while strengthening
risk management. In the scenario where the
economy is affected by unfavorable macro factors,
the BOD has requested to thoroughly resolve
existing violations, especially in the regulations
on investment and construction in the renewable
energy sector by the State, where management
regulations lack consistency and clarity.

The BOD also requires that the Resolutions
on strategic investment, capital contribution,
borrowing, share transfer, divestment, public
offering of shares, issuance of shares to existing
shareholders andindividual shares beimplemented
on schedule and effectively. These decisions aim to
ensure that the mobilized capital will be used for
important projects, meeting the production and
business needs and core activities of the company.

By doing so, the Board of Directors has contributed
to the company’s sustainable growth while ensuring
financial safety in accordance with current legal
regulations.

Regarding risk management, internal control and
internal audit, the Board of Directors has directed
the enhancement of these activities as a testament
to the achievements in recent years. With the
company’s growing scale, internal control needs to
be further strengthened to protect the company’s
assets and profits from unforeseen risks. In addition,
the Board of Directors also requires joint ventures
with foreign investors to be more closely monitored,
especially in controlling profits and investment
conditions to ensure that these investments bring
the highest efficiency to the company.

Streamlining the organizational model and
improving the quality of human resources is also top
priorities of the Board of Directors. Training programs
and improving working skills foremployees continue
to be strongly implemented. The Board of Directors
requires training courses that not only improve
professional skills but also focus on soft skills,
creative thinking and teamwork, in order to create
a dynamic and creative working environment. This
training also helps employees to adapt flexibly to
changes in the business environment and improve
the management capacity of senior staff.

The Board of Directors also focuses on charity and
social activities, especially in the current difficult
economic situation. Through the BCG Foundation
Charity and Social Fund, the company has
participated in many charity programs, contributing
to the community and society, demonstrating the
company’s social responsibility and commitment
to the sustainable development of the community.
These activities not only bring benefits to society
but also contribute to enhancing the company’s
image and reputation in the eyes of the public and
partners.

Throughout its operations, the Board of Directors
has always committed to fulfilling its responsibilities
with honesty, prudence and transparency, ensuring
thatthe company operates effectively and develops

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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sustainably.
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BOD member

Position

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Number of
meetings

attended by
the BOD

Attendance
rate

Reasons for absence

Dismissed from March 29,
Mr. Nguyen 2024 (Approved by the 2024
guy Chairman 7/7 100% (App y )
Ho Nam Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders)
Mr. Pham . .
) Vice Chairman 50/50 100%
Minh Tuan
Mr. Nguyen . .
] Vice Chairman 50/50 100%
Manh Chien
Mr.Le Thanh  Member of the
50/50 100%
Tung BOD
Mrs. Nguyen  Member of the Occupied with business trip
) 41/43 95.3%
Thi Loan BOD schedule
Mr. Ng Independent
Wee Siong, members of the 50/50 100%
Leonard BOD — Chairman
Elected Vice Chairman of
the BOD on March 29, 2024
Mr. Hoang . .
Vice Chairman 34/43 79.07% (Approved by the 2024 AGM)
Trung Thanh . . . .
Occupied with business trip
schedule
Independent Elected Independent members
Mr. Nguyen
members of the 43/43 100% of the BOD on March 29, 2024
Trung Truc

BOD

(Approved by the 2024 AGM)

Resolution/

Decision No.

Content

Approval

rate

RESOLUTIONS/DECISIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(2024 REPORT)

Disclosure Obligation

The Company was not yet

BOD's Resolution on .
02/2024/NQ- i a public company and had
31/01/2024 Approval of Transactions 100% i o )
HDBQT-BCGE not fulfilled its information
Related to TSN and SUS . .
disclosure obligations
BOD's Resolution
. The Company was not yet
on Deploying the .
03/2024/NQ- o a public company and had
07/02/2024 Organization of the 2024 100% i o )
HDBQT-BCGE not fulfilled its information

Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders

disclosure obligations
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RESOLUTIONS/DECISIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(2024 REPORT)

Resolution/

Decision No.

Content

Approval
rate

Disclosure Obligation

The Company was not yet

03:1/2024/ BOD's Resolution on Approval of Service a public company and had
3 NQ-HPQT-  07/02/2024 PP , 100% public company _
BCGE Contracts and Related Transactions not fulfilled its information
disclosure obligations
Th t t
03.2/2024/ BOD's Resolution on Approval of the © C(?mpany was not ye
. . a public company and had
4  NQ-HPQT-  29/02/2024 Service Contract Appendix and related 100% ; L .
. not fulfilled its information
BCGE transactions . . .
disclosure obligations
BOD's Resolution on Receiving The Compbany was not vet
04/2024/ resignation  letter of Board of 4 oublic cf)omyon and héd
5 NQ-HPQT-  07/03/2024 Supervisors member, approve DSCD 100% PUBIIC \pany .
. not fulfilled its information
BCGE and content, documents submitted to . . .
. disclosure obligations
General Meeting of Shareholders
The C t t
05/2024/ BOD's Resolution on the list of ul eub;):f:r:yov::asq:z héed
6 NQ-HPQT- 19/03/2024 candidates for the Board of Directors 100% P } .p _y .
. not fulfilled its information
BCGE and Supervisory Board . N
disclosure obligations
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the
06/2024/ appointment of Deputy General The Company was not yet
Director in char f Project Finan li mpany and h
7 NQ-HDQT- 20/03/2024 irector in charge of Project Fina .ce 100% a pub |§ co .pa.yo d .ad
BCGE and change of Head of Representative not fulfilled its information
Office of BCG Energy Joint Stock disclosure obligations
Company in Hanoi City
Th t t
07/2024/ BOD's Decision on Appointment of u eugri)?f:nr:yavr\iasq:z h);ed
8 Qb-HDPQT-  20/03/2024 Deputy General Director (Mr. Nguyen 100% public pany ,
. not fulfilled its information
BCGE Giang Nam) . o
disclosure obligations
The Company was not yet
08/2024/ BOD's Decision on Resignation of Head 4 bublic cpomyon and h):]d
9  Qb-HDPQT-  20/03/2024 of Representative Office in Hanoi (Mr. 100% pubiic pany )
. not fulfilled its information
BCGE Vu Ngoc Tien) . N
disclosure obligations
The Company was not yet
09/2024/ BOD's Decision on Appointment of 4 bublic cpomyom and ht:d
10 QP-HPQT-  20/03/2024 Head of Representative Office in Hanoi 100% public pany .
. not fulfilled its information
BCGE (Ms. Nguyen Thi Thanh Phuong) . N
disclosure obligations
The Company was not yet
11/2024/Q- BOD's Decision on Election of Chairman a public (fomycm and hiud
] 29/03/2024 and Vice Chairman of the Board of 100% pUBLe \pany .
HPQT-BCGE . not fulfilled its information
Directors . L
disclosure obligations
12/2024/ BOD's Resolution on Change of Legal Lheugﬁ:)f:r:}wyov:\c}so:gthf;
12 NQ-HPQT-  01/04/2024 . 9 9 100% Ui pany .
BCGE Representative not fulfilled its information
disclosure obligations
BOD's Resolution on BOD's Meeting
Minutes on Approval of capital
13/2024/ contribution to establish BCG Dien Bien The Company was not yet
Dong Wind Power Joint Stock Compan a public company and had
13 NQ-HDQT-  18/04/2024 g Wind PANY 009, public company \
BCGE and appointment of representative to not fulfilled its information

manage capital contribution at BCG
Dien Bien Dong Wind Power Joint Stock
Company

disclosure obligations

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESOLUTIONS/DECISIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(2024 REPORT)

Resolution/

Decision No.

Content

Approval
rate

Disclosure Obligation

Resolution/
Decision No.

Content

Approval
rate
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Disclosure Obligation

The Company was not

13.1/2024/ BOD'sResolutiononlimplementation yet a public company
14 NQ-HDPQT- 19/04/2024 of collecting shareholders’ opinion 100% and had not fulfilled its
BCGE in writing in May 2024 information  disclosure
obligations
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the The Company was not
13.2/2024/ List of Shareholders and contents yet a public company
15 NQ-HPQT- 03/05/2024 of the document to collect 100% and had not fulfilled its
BCGE shareholders’ opinions in writing in information  disclosure
May 2024 obligations
BOD's Resolution on Approval of The Company was not
13.3/2024/ signing a service contract with yet a public company
16 NQ-HPQT- 16/05/2024 Clean Energy Vision Development 100% and had not fulfilled its
BCGE Joint Stock Company and the information  disclosure
related transaction obligations
BOD's Resolution on Finalizing the
list of shareholders to carry out
. . . The Company was not
securities registration procedures .
14/2024] at Vietham Securities Depositor yet a public. company
17 NQ-HPQT-  17/05/2024 , PSP 100%  and had not fulfilled its
and Clearing Corporation and . . .
BCGE . . information  disclosure
register for stock trading on the -
. . obligations
UPCoM trading system at the Hanoi
Stock Exchange
BOD's Resolution on Adjustment
of the closing date of list of
shareholders to carry out securities The Company was not
14.1/2024/ registration procedures at yet a public company
18 NQ-HPQT- 19/05/2024 Vietnam Securities Depository and 100% and had not fulfilled its
BCGE Clearing Corporation and register information  disclosure
for stock trading on the UPCoM obligations
trading system at the Hanoi Stock
Exchange
BOD's Resolution on Approval of
capital contribution to establish
Aton Operations and Maintenance
15/2024/ Joint IOStoc:k Compan and Disclosures on
19 NQ-HPQT- 23/05/2024 o pany 100%
BCGE appointing o representative to 23/05/2024
manage the capital contribution at
Aton Operations and Maintenance
Joint Stock Company
16/2024/ BOD's Resolution on Approval of .
. . Disclosures on
20 NQ-HPQT- 29/05/2024 the adjustment of investment 100%
: . 29/05/2024
BCGE information
17/2024/ BOD's Resolution on Approval of )
. Disclosures on
21 NQ-HDPQT- 03/06/2024 the loan at Bamboo Capital Group 100% 04/06/2024
BCGE Joint Stock Company

18/2024/NQ- BOD's Resolution on Amending and Disclosures on
22 20/06/2024 supplementing the Charter of BCG Energy 100%
HPQT-BCGE ' . 21/06/2024
Joint Stock Company (17th time)
BOD's Resolution on Approving the change
19/2024/NQ- f H nd Addr f Representati Disclosur n
23 / INQ 21/06/2024 o . ead and Address ,O epresentative 100% isclosures o
HDQT-BCGE Office of BCG Energy Joint Stock Company 21/06/2024
in Hanoi City
Not jectt
BOD's Decision on Resignation of Chief of . ° SUbJ?C ©
Representative Office of BCG Energy Joint information
24 20/2024/Qp- 21/06/2024 St(fck Company in Hanoi Cit curr?ySenior 100% disclosure
HPQT-BCGE pany . Y ° requirements under
Manager of Investor Relations Department .
of BCG Energy Joint Stock Compan Circular 96/2020/
9y pany TT-BTC
Not subject to
- . . information
21/2024/QD- BOD's Decision on Appointment of Chief of disclosure
25 21/06/2024 Representative Office of BCG Energy Joint 100% .
HDQT-BCGE Stock Combany in Hanoi Cit requirements under
pany Y Circular 96/2020/
TT-BTC
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the .
22/2024/NQ- Disclosur n
26 / /NQ 25/06/2024 selection of an independent auditing firm 100% |sclosures o
HDQT-BCGE - . ) 25/06/2024
to audit Financial statements in 2024
BOD's Resolution on Appointments of
23/2024/NQ- P inch fC te G Discl
27 / INQ 26/06/2024 erson in charge of Corporate Governance 100% isclosures on
HDQT-BCGE and Company Secretary of BCG Energy 26/06/2024
Joint Stock Company
24/2024/Qb- BOD's Decisi A int ts of P Discl
28 / /Q 26/06/2024 OD's Decision on Appointments of Person 100% isclosures on
HPQT-BCGE in charge of Corporate Governance 26/06/2024
29 25/2024/Qb- 26/06/2024 BOD's Decision on Appointments of 100% Disclosures on
HDQT-BCGE Company Secretary 26/06/2024
BOD's Resolution on Approval of additional
capital contribution to Tam Sinh Nghia
Investment Development Joint Stock
27/2024/NQ- Company, assign the authorized Disclosures on
g0 212024001000 pany, ~ assig oz 100% Ise oSy
HDQT-BCGE representative to manage the capital 09/07/2024
contribution at Tam Sinh Nghia Investment
Development Joint Stock Company and
approving the related transaction
28/2024/NQ- BOD's Resolution on Approval of receivin Disclosures on
g 28/2024/NQ- 0004 . pproy 9 100%
HPQT-BCGE transfer of capital contribution at 26/07/2024
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the first
39 29/2024/NQ- 23/07/2024 trading dgy and reference price of B(?G 100% Disclosures on
HDQT-BCGE Energy Joint Stock Company’s stock on its 24/07/2024

first trading day at Hanoi Stock Exchange
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESOLUTIONS/DECISIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(2024 REPORT)

Resolution/

Decision No.

Content

BOD's Resolution on Approval of the

Approval
rate

Disclosure
Obligation

Resolution/

Decision No.

Content

BOD's Resolution on Approval the draft of
Contract Appendix with BCG Khai Long 1

Approval
rate

LR

Disclosure
Obligation

EENT

30/2024/NQ- i . Disclosures on
2 202 %
33 HDQT-BCGE 5/07/2024 loan at Bamboo Capital Group Joint 100% 26/07/2024
Stock Company
BOD's Resolution on Approval for
d pprov Not subject to
Thanh Nguyen Energy Investment information
and Development Company Limited .
31/2024/NQ- discl
34 / /NQ 29/07/2024 to repurchase a portion of the BOND. 100% sclosure
HBQT-BCGE . requirements
TNE.2022.01 Bonds before maturity .
and authorizing a representative to under Circular
9 present 96/2020/TT-BTC
manage the capital contribution
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the
extension of the loan agreement with
32/2024/NQ- Discl
35 / /NG 13/08/2024 Thanh Nguyen Energy Investment and 100% sclosures on
HDQT-BCGE o 13/08/2024
Development Company Limited and
related transactions
BOD's Resolution on Change of Deputy .
33/2024/NQ- ] ) Disclosures on
36 20/08/2024 General Directors of BCG Energy Joint 100%
noqr-scee 20108/ ' gy Jol 21/08/2024
Stock Company
BOD's Decision on Resignation of
34/2024/Qb- Chief Operating Officer cum Director Disclosures on
g7 34/2024/QB- 000y, Chief Operating oom 100% isclosu
HPQT-BCGE of Procurement and Bidding of BCG 21/08/2024
Energy Joint Stock Company
BOD's Decision on Appointment of .
35/2024/Qp- . . ) Disclosures on
2 202 %
38 HDQT-BCGE 0/08/2024 Chlef Operating Officer of BCG Energy 100% 21/08/2024
Joint Stock Company
BOD's Decision on Appointment of
39 36/2024/Qp- 20/08/2024 Deputy General Director in charge of 100% Disclosures on
HDQT-BCGE Project Development of BCG Energy 21/08/2024
Joint Stock Company
BOD's Resolution on Issuance of
37/2024/NQ- Guarantee Letter/Letter of Credit for Disclosures on
40 29/08/2024 100%
HDQT-BCGE o8/ the fulfillment of obligations by BCG 30/08/2024
Energy Joint Stock Company
Not subject to
BOD's Resolution on Approval of capital information
38/2024/NQ- discl
41 8/ /NQ 13/09/2024 commitment at BCG Dien Bien Dong 100% sclosure
HPQT-BCGE . . requirements
Wind Power Joint Stock Company .
under Circular
96/2020/TT-BTC
Not subject to
BOD's Resolution on Approval of terms information
42 39/2024/NQ- 21/09/2024 and conditions, the execution, deliv::—zry 100% discIFJsure
HPQT-BCGE and performance of Transaction requirements

Documents

under Circular

96/2020/TT-BTC
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40/2024/NQ- Wind P r Joint Stock Compan tendin Disclosures on
43 / INQ 07fi0j2024 Wi d Power Joi ock Company, exte ding 100%
HPQT-BCGE the loan contract with BCG Thanh Hoa 07/10/2024
Energy Joint Stock Company and related
transaction
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the .
41/2024/NQ- Disclosures on
44 / /NQ 10/10/2024  additional capital contribution to Skylar Joint 100%
HDPQT-BCGE . 11/10/2024
Stock Company and related transaction
BOD's Resolution on Approval of adjusting
a5 42[2024/NQ- 29/10/2024 Loan Agreement with Thanh Nguyen Energy 100% Disclosures on
HDQT-BCGE Investment and Development Company 29/10/2024
Limited and related transactions
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the policy Not subject to
for Tam Sinh Nghia Investment Development information
46 43/2024/NQ- 29/10/2024 Joint SFoc:k Company to sign the Contrgct 100% disc{osure
HPQT-BCGE for design, procurement and construction requirements
of phase 1 for the Tam Sinh Nghia Waste to under Circular
Energy Project 96/2020/TT-BTC
BOD's Resolution on Approval of lending
47 44[2024/NQ- 30/10/2024 to BCG GAIA qunt Stoc.:k Company to 100% Disclosures on
HDQT-BCGE supplement working capital and related 31/10/2024
transactions
BOD's Resolution on Suspension of the
t tion t h th ti I f
45/2024/NQ- ransac .lon o pu.rc gse e entire value o Disclosures on
48 04/11/2024 the capital contribution of Hanwha Energy 100%
HPQT-BCGE ) i 05/11/2024
Corporation Vietnam Co., Ltd. at Hanwha
BCGE O&M Limited Liability Company
BOD's R luti A I f th
46/2024/ SL?spZnsicf:o Zflorr]eg?sr;rotiopnpr(xc pu(:chosz Disclosures on
49  NQ-HbQT- 05/11/2024 100%
BC?GE Q fnl additional issued shares of Skylar Joint Stock 05/11/2024
Company
BOD's Resolution on Appointment of Deputy
50 47[2024/NQ- 15/11/2024 General Dirgctor in charge of !_egal in 100% Disclosures on
HDQT-BCGE Northern region of BCG Energy Joint Stock 15/11/2024
Company
48/2024 ZZ?:roDIeTDiisriggtoorn iﬁpzzicr;rt ”;en(:f OfLeDzTu?rz Disclosures on
51 QD-HPQT-  15/11/2024 , 9 -9 100%
BCGE Northern region of BCG Energy Joint Stock 15/11/2024
Company
BCG ENERGY
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RESOLUTIONS/DECISIONS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(2024 REPORT)

Resolution/

. . Content Approval
Decision No. rate

Disclosure
Obligation

Resolution/

.\
. . Content pproval
Decision No. rate

Disclosure Obligation

BOD's Resultion on Approval of the loan

BOD's Resolution on Issuance of letters of

Not subject to

56/2024/ guarantee for the repayment obligation information
59 NQ-HPQT- 31/12/2024 of the pgr.ti.ol Deposit Amo.unt in reloti.on 100% disclf)sure
BOGE to acquisition of Dong Hai Energy Joint requirements under
Stock Company and Dong Hai Number 4 Circular 96/2020/
Energy Joint Stock Company TT-BTC
Not subject to
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the information
7/2024/NQ- t f fol ights, h iscl
50 57/ INQ 31/12/2024 ransfer o 'cmd use rights, house 100% disc osure
HPQT-BCGE ownership rights and other assets requirements under
attached to land Circular 96/2020/
TT-BTC
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the
58.1/2024/ adjustment of the Loan Agreement, )
. . Disclosures on
61 NQ-HPQT- 31/12/2024  Service Contract, and Capital 100% 31/12/2024
BCGE Contribution Transfer Agreement and
approval of related-party transactions
Not subject to
inf i
58.2/2024/ Approval of the Lloan Agreement I(;S?;::”Ign
62 NQ-HPQT- 31/12/2024  Extension with Duong Phong Energy Joint 100% .
requirements under
BCGE Stock Company

Circular 96/2020/
TT-BTC

49/2024/NQ- to TSN Long An Joint Stock Compan Disclosures on
%2 HD/QT-B(/)G(E2 13/12/2024 for projectgdevelopment and re:?]tegll 100% 13/12/2024
transactions
53 00/2024/NQ- 0004 rBeOs%anrteiiidugftZr Ocr;f Rticeelp;o;rfd tr:; 100y, ~ Disclosureson
HDQT-BCGE Directors member 16/12/2024
Not subject to
. - . information
5q  012024/QD~ o 1h004 ﬁ::riqE\ﬁ'%r;pzEmfr:?:f“;g?ter;yf 100y ~ disclosure
HPQT-BCGE Joint Stock Company reqU|rerT1ents
under Circular
96/2020/TT-BTC
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the
transfer of shares at Tam Sinh Nghia Not subject to
Investment — Development Joint Stock information
55 oarace IR ceaniote 1o mancgs % taqurements
the capital contribution at Tam Sinh under Circular
Nghia Investment — Development Joint 96/2020/TT-BTC
Stock Company
BOD's Resolution on Approval of the Not subject to
transfer of shares at BCG Vinh Long Joint information
5 oaree IR e e 1o mancgs 7 amurements
the capital contribution at BCG Vinh under Circular
Long Joint Stock Company 96/2020/TT-BTC
BOD's Resolution on Approval of
the signing of a Collaboration Not subject to
Agreementwith CIGMF Il Coéperatief information
54/2024/ U.A. (CIP) regarding renewable and disclosure
57 NQ-HPQT- 25/12/2024 new energy projects together with 100% requirements
BCGE the main terms and conditions of under Circular
the shareholder agreement for the 96/2020/TT-
joint venture between BCG Energy BTC
Joint Stock Company and CIP
Not subject to
information
55/2024/ BOD's Decision on Promulgation of disclosure
58 QP-HDPQT- 30/12/2024 Internal Audit Regulations of BCG 100% requirements
BCGE Energy Joint Stock Company under Circular

96/2020/TT-
BTC
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT BOARD MEMBER

Assessing the performance of the Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) in 2024, the independent
members of the BOD generally commented as follows:

»

»

Compliance and flexibility in governance:
BCG Energy’s Board of Directors in 2024
continued to maintain the organization and
implementation of work in full compliance
with the Company’s Charter and current
legal regulations. The Board proactively
implemented the Resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) and the
contents authorized by the GMS, ensuring
a creative and dynamic leadership role in
orienting business strategies. In addition,
the Board of Directors closely monitored
the implementation of  decisions,
especially in risk management, to ensure
the achievement of the company’s goals
in a challenging year with economic
fluctuations.

Responsibility and  transparency in
governance: The Board of Directors always
works with a high sense of responsibility
and transparency, strictly complying with
regulations for public companies. The
meetings of the Board of Directors in 2024
were convened on time and conducted
in accordance with the procedures
prescribed in the Charter and Internal
Regulations on corporate governance.
The content of the meetings is thoroughly
evaluated,

discussed and

carefully

»

»

ensuring that the decisions made always
bring the highest benefits to the company
and shareholders.

Reviewing long-term strategies and
expanding operations: Important issues
related to business strategy, market
expansion, investment in new technology,
and improving the management system
continue to be reviewed by the Board of
Directors and strategic decisions are made
at regular meetings. The Board of Directors
always closely monitors the business
situation, responds quickly to market
changes, and ensures that business
plans are consistent with the company’s
sustainable development goals.

Decisions are passed by majority and are
transparent: The decisions of the Board of
Directors at meetings in 2024 are all passed
by the majority. The meeting reports are
always fully prepared and signed by the
attendingmembers,ensuringtransparency
and high consensus in the company’s
important decisions. This facilitates the
company’'s ability to implement agreed
strategies and effectively monitor set
goals.

ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS COMMITTEES

ENEEUT

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

MEMBERS AND STRUCTURE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
As of December 31, 2024

Individual ownership
Rate (%)
(share)
1 0 0

Mr. Dong Hai Ha Head of the BOS

2 Mr. Nguyen Viet Cuong Deputy Head of the BOS 10,000 0.0014

3 Ms. Huynh Thi Kim Tuyen  Member of the BOS 21,000,000 2.8767

OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

In 2024, the Company’s Board of Supervisors, consisting of 03 members, reviewed and supervised
the activities of the Board of Directors and the Executive Board to implement the 2024 financial
plan and other plans approved by the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders. At the end of 2024,
the Company successfully completed the following targets:

» Implement charter capital increase;

« Operate according to core values as the
leading renewable energy developer in
Vietnam;

o Perform well and decisively in recruiting,
coordinating and appointing personnel
according to the requirements of

production and business activities;

o Further activities related to borrowing
capital and transferring shares are

. )

approved by the correct authority and in \5‘\
the correct order according to the internal b

governance regulations and procedures.

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The Supervisory Board concurs with the
independent auditor’'s opinion on the Financial
Statements for the fiscal year ended December
31, 2024. Based on the audited 2024 financial
statements and the analytical data presented
by the Executive Board at the Board of Directors’
meetings, the Supervisory Board assesses as
follows:

The Company’'s 2024 financial statements
provide a comprehensive reflection of its
business operations and financial position,
and have been presented in accordance with

prescribed reporting formats, in compliance

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and
prevailing regulations.

Netrevenuein 2024 reached VND 1,277.69 billion,
an increase of 13.51% compared to 2023, but
only 84.04% of the target due to project delays.
Gross profit margin improved from 41.88% to
49.11%; however, net loss was recorded at VND
766 billion, approximately four times higher
than in 20283.

Total assets as of December 31,2024 amounted
to VND 18,344.34 billion, down 3.64% compared
to the beginning of the year.

The Board of Supervisors has been provided
with extensive information on the Resolutions
and Decisions of the Board of Directors related
to the implementation of the business plan,
as well as the Resolutions approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders. Based on
this information, the Supervisory Board has
assessed that the management and operation
of the Board of Directors has complied with the
legal regulations related to business activities
and is consistent with the Resolution of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Supervisory Board believes that the

In 2024, the General Director strictly followed
the direction of the Board of Directors and
the Resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders and complied with the provisions
of the current Law on Enterprises, Investment
and Securities. The Board of Directors of the
Company closely followed the decisions and
promptly implemented the business strategy
and regularly held monthly meetings and

The Board of Supervisors has proactively
discussed and agreed with the Board of
Directors and the Board of Management of the
Company on the contents of the inspection and
supervision plan and coordinated throughout
the implementation of the inspection and
supervision work, but still maintained its
independence in performing the assigned
functions and tasks.

The Board of Directors and the Executive Board
always create favorable conditions for the

Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of
Directors are in compliance with the law and
the Company’s Charter. Transactions between
the Company and related parties have been
carried out in accordance with the provisions
of the Enterprise Law, the Securities Law, the
Company’s Charter and the Internal Regulations
on Corporate Governance.

In 2024, despite facing many difficulties
and challenges, the Board of Directors has
proactively monitored and operated, promptly
adjusted the business strategy and policies to
ensure the smooth operation of the Company.

annual summary conferences to fully assess
all aspects of business operations, and at the
same time pointed out the limitations and
shortcomings to remove and overcome. From
there, the Board of Directors built and deployed
appropriate business tasks for each member
company, orienting synchronous solutions for
companies to proactively manage, supervise
and operate production and business activities.

Board of Supervisors to collect information and
documentsrelated tothe Company’s production
and business activities. Therefore, the Board
of Supervisors has promptly recommended
and proposed to the Board of Directors and
the Executive Board solutions to a number of
internal problems of the Company in order to
improve the efficiency and capital safety in the
management and operation of the Company’s
production and business.

BCG ENERGY ih:
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OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

SALARY, BONUS, REMUNERATION, BENEFITS AND EXPENSES FOREACH
MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, BOARD
OF GENERAL DIRECTORS AND MANAGERS

Number of

Member of the Board of Attendance

. Reasons for absence
Directors

meetings at-
tended 22

1 Mr.Dong Hai Ha 44 100% Member of the Board of .
. Position Income (VND)
2 Mr.Nguyen Viet Cuong 4/4 100% LU
. Vice Chairman of the BOD cum Deput
Dismissed from March 29, 1 Mr. Hoang Trung Thanh s | Direct Pt 890,691,429
eneral Director
3 Mr. Tan Bo Quan, Andy 111 100% 2024 (Approved by the
2024 AGM) 2 Mr. Dong Hai Ha Head of the BOS 504,000,000
Appointed from March 29,
4 Ms. Huynh ThiKim Tuyen 3/3 100% 2024 (Approved by the 3 Mr. Pham Minh Tuan General Director 1,360,400,000
2024 AGM)
Ms. Pham Nguyen Ngoc .
Deputy General Director 1,381,172,381
Thuong
=N
/’g TRANSACT'ONS, REMUNERATIONS AND BENEFITS 5 Mr. Nguyen Giang Nam Deputy General Director (From 20/03/2024) 975,005,143
! 6 Ms. Vu Ngoc Van Nicki Deputy General Director (Until 01/09/2024) 302,800,000
7 Mr. Nguyen Viet Cuong Deputy of the BOS 93,800,000
SHARE TRANSACTIONS OF INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS
8 Mr. Dang Dinh et Deputy General Director (From 01/09/2024 327,700,000
Shares owned as of Shares owned as of - g Dinh Quy puty ! ( [oo] )
Party Laier 01/01/2024 31/12/2024 Reasons for
performing S increase & 9 Mr. Pham Le Quang Deputy General Director (From 15/11/2024) 303,445,714
i Number of
transaction 01/01/2024 decrease
shares
Bamboo
Related
1 Capital Group 369,800,000 50.6575% 348,300,000 47.7123% Transfer
party
Jsc
Nguyen Manh
2 ) 5,000,000 0.6849% 1,000,000 0.1370% Transfer
Chien
3 Nguyen Viet 0 0% 10,000 0.0014% Receiving
Cuong transfer
. Receiving
4 Lam Minh Tam 0 0% 10,000 0.0014%

transfer

CONTRACTS ORTRANSACTIONS WITH INTERNAL SHAREHOLDERS

Transactions between the Company and related parties are detailed in Note No. 28 in the Audit-
ed Separate Financial Statements for the fourth quarter of 2024 and Note No. 33 in the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements for the fourth quarter of 2024.
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MESSAGE OF THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Over the past decade, Vietham has witnessed
strong and continuous development in the
process of industrialization and modernization,
which has led to a sharp increase in energy
demand. However, this also brings a significant
challenge when the main fossil energy sources,
which have been used for decades to meet
the country’s energy needs, are gradually
depleted. The dependence on fossil energy
not only puts great stress on the environment
and national energy security, but is also one
of the main causes of greenhouse gases,
contributing to global warming and the severe
climate changes that the world is facing.

Recognizing the severity of this problem,
governments and industries around the
world are increasingly focusing on finding
and implementing clean, renewable energy
solutions to minimize the negative impacts of
fossil fuel use. The green consumption trend,
with a preference for environmentally friendly
productsandservices,isalsobecomingpopular
and is a driving force for the development of
renewable energy projects. This change has
created a huge opportunity for clean energy
projects such as wind power, solar power, and
biomass power, helping to reduce dependence
on finite natural resources, while minimizing
environmental pollution and protecting the

¥ 119 ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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ecosystem.

Therefore, the development of renewable
energy sources not only helps reduce pressure
on natural resources consumption, but also
contributes  positively to  environmental
protection, improving air quality, reducing
pollution and creating many new job
opportunities. Similarly, these projects also
help develop the local economy, creating
momentum  for sustainable community
development. For this reason, focusing
on renewable energy has become an
indispensable element in BCG Energy’s
development strategy ever since the company
was founded.

As one of the pioneers in the field of renewable
energy in Vietnam, BCG Energy always
considers the goal of economic development
combined with social responsibility and
environmental protection as core factors in its
business activities. The company is well aware
that climate change is an urgent issue that
needs to be addressed immediately; therefore,
BCG Energy is committed to implementing a
sustainable business model, taking the lead
in developing clean and renewable energy
solutions, thereby minimizing negative impacts
on the environment.

To make this commitment a reality, BCG

Energy always applies a comprehensive and
in-depth assessment process before deciding
to invest in any project. This process includes
not only environmental impact studies but also
considers theimpacts on the social community,
public health and related factors. The company
also focuses on consulting local communities,
social organizations and stakeholders to ensure
that investment decisions are consistent with
the needs and development priorities of the
communities where the projectisimplemented.
Noticeably, BCG Energy’s monitoring and
evaluation systemis tightly established, helping
the company supervise and promptly adjust
strategies, ensuring effectiveness throughout
the project implementation process. Every
step of the company is strictly monitored, from
planning, deployment to completion, to ensure
that sustainable goals are implemented
effectively and correctly.

Another crucial factor in the development
process of BCG Energy is the active participation
of stakeholders, especially inlocal communities
and social organizations. These groups play
an extremely important role in guiding the
company’s investment and development
decisions. Consulting and listening to opinions

from the community not only helps the
company improve the efficiency of its projects
but also ensures that its investments are in
line with the real needs and desires of the
community.

In its journey of sustainable development,
BCG Energy always aims for balanced and
harmonious benefits for all stakeholders. The
company not only focuses on optimizing
economic benefits but also focuses on social
development and environmental protection.
In order to do this, BCG Energy conducts
impact analysis and assessment of business
activities across the entire value chain,
carefully considering the potential positive
and negative impacts on the community and
the environment. The company ensures all
business activities and operations comply with
the principles of sustainable development and
actively contributes to the implementation of
the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs)
set by the United Nations. BCG Energy not only
contributes to economic development but
also actively participates in protecting the
planet, bringing long-term benefits to both the
community and the environment.

BCG ENERGY
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SCOPE OF THE REPORT

BCG Energy’s Sustainability Report is prepared
with the purpose of providing an overview
of the company’s operations, based on the
sustainable development orientation of the
parent company - Bamboo Capital Group
Joint Stock Company. This report applies to
BCG Energy and its subsidiaries, to ensure
consistency in the sustainable development
strategy of the entire group.

The report is prepared for the period from
January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024, and
is built on internationally recognized Global
Reporting Standards, specifically the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) 2021. At the same time,
the company also refers to the 17 Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) of the United
Nations, adopted by the United Nations General

m ANNUAL REPORT 2024

INTRODUCTION OF THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

Assembly in 2015, to ensure that the company’s
activities contribute to global sustainable
development.

This report is developed and compiled from all
activities that impact the three core elements
of sustainable development: economic,
social and environmental. The information
in the report is collected from BCG Energy’s
subsidiaries and dffiliates, including but not
limited to production processes, operations,
human resource management, and other
related activities. The objective of the report is
to provide transparent information about the
efforts and results achieved in implementing
the company’s sustainable development
commitments.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
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BCG Energy is committed to enforcing an
environmental  protection  strategy  with
strong and effective measures to contribute
to protecting the planet and minimizing the
negative impacts of business operations. The
company will implement strict wastewater
treatment processes at production plants to
prevent environmental pollution and protect
water resources, ensuring no negative impacts
on the ecosystem and public health. At the
same time, BCG Energy will strongly promote
investment in renewable and clean energy
sources, such as wind power, solar power and
biomass power, to provide clean electricity to
the national grid, lowering dependence on fossil
energy sources. The company will gradually
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convert its business activities to clean energy,
reducing dependence on traditional energy
such as coal and oil, thereby not only protecting
the environment but also contributing to
the sustainable development of the energy
industry. BCG Energy is also committed to
reducing greenhouse gas emissions, diming
for Net Zero Emissions by 2050, as committed
by the Viethamese Government at COP26.
These initiatives will not only help BCG Energy
become a leading enterprise in renewable
energy development but also contribute to
the common goal of the country and the
international community in combating climate
change.

BCG ENERGYj
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BCG Energy is committed to creating a
professional and friendly working environment
where every employee feels valued and has
the opportunity to develop to their fullest
potential. The company will invest in modern
facilities, create favorable working conditions
for the staff, and provide comprehensive
training programs for all employees, including
onboarding training for new employees, to
equip them with the knowledge and skills
needed to complete their work effectively.

The company is also committed to building
a healthy workplace culture, in which no
discrimination, abuse of power or harassment
is acceptable. Gender equality will be a top
priority, with special policies and benefits for

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

female employees, ensuring they have equal
career development opportunities as male
employees. In addition, BCG Energy will also
actively organize social responsibility activities
in the localities where the company operates,
contributing to community development and
supporting poverty reduction programs. The
company will prioritize recruiting local workers,
creating job opportunities for the community,
helping to improve the quality of life and
sustainable development in the areas where
the company is present. These initiatives not
only promote the development of the company
but also contribute to the overall development
of society.

BINH DAME
H

Governance Topic
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BCG Energy is committed to implementing
a sustainable governance strategy, with the
goal of building a transparent, accountable
and fully compliant working environment.
The Company will commit to transparently
disclosing information on environmental,
social and governance (ESG) performance
indicators, ensuring clear and complete
information is provided to stakeholders. This
not only enhances the transparency of the
Company’s operations but also contributes to
strengthening the trust of partners, investors
and the community. BCG Energy also focuses
on integrating feedback from stakeholders into
the decision-making process.

The Company will develop effective
mechanisms for receiving and processing
feedback, to ensure that important decisions
reflect the needs and expectations of
stakeholders. In addition, the company will

ENEEUT

promote a culture of exemplary leadership,
where leaders must adhere to ethics and
integrity in decision-making, creating a
transparent, fair and accountable organization.

To improve governance effectiveness, BCG
Energy will promote diversity in the Board
of Directors (BOD), combining diverse
perspectives and skills, helping to make more
effective strategic decisions.

The company will also integrate ESG factors
into the risk management process, ensuring
that business activities not only protect
financial interests but also meet social and
environmental goals. Finally, BCG Energy is
committed to fully complying with relevant
laws, regulations and standards in all its
operations, thereby building a solid foundation
for sustainable and responsible development.

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT TARGETS

The United Nations has set out 17 Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs), including 169
specific goals and 232 targets, with the main
goal of eradicating poverty, protecting the
planet and ensuring that all people can live in
peace and prosperity by 2030. The Viethamese
Government has implemented the National
Plan to implement the 2030 Agenda for
Sustainable Development, with 115 specific
goals, clearly demonstrating Viethnam’s
determination and commitment to achieving
these goals.

In response to this news, BCG Energy has
demonstrated its strong determination in
sustainable development. The company has

integrated environmental, social, governance

m ANNUAL REPORT 2024

and economic factors into its operational
strategy, committed to implementing business
development associated with community
benefits and environmental protection. The
company’'s management is committed to
implementing sustainable development goals
in all business activities, ensuring that strategic
decisions not only bring economic benefits but
also create sustainable value for society and
the environment.

BCG Energy places special emphasis on
economic development and sustainable
employment, with the goal of improving
the quality of life for employees and local
communities. The company actively promotes
economic growth through renewable energy
projects, providing stable employment
opportunities and is committed to using clean
and environmentally friendly energy sources,
in order to create positive impacts in the
community and society.

The balance between business development
and protecting community interests is always
a top priority for BCG Energy. The company
constantly strives to implement sustainable
development goals, ensuring that all activities
are consistent with Vietham’s commitment to

sustainable development and contribute to
the United Nations’ global target.

E - Environmental

S - Social

G - Governance

ENEEUT

Energy consumption

Reduce energy consumption and maximize the conversion to
renewable energy

Reduction of greenhouse gas emissions

Complete greenhouse gas inventories audit in accordance with
regulations. Develop a greenhouse gas emission reduction plan and
gradually apply GHG emission reduction measures to:

» Achieve carbon neutrality by 2040
» Andreach Net-Zero by 2050

Gender equality
The number of female senior managers will reach 35% by 2025.
Training

The average training time for each employee reaches 20 hours/
year by 2025.

Severance rate

Reduced to under 4.5% in the next 5 years.

Policies and practice

Review and update ESG compliance policies:

1. Codes of Conduct

2. Anti-corruption policy

3. Violation denunciation policy

2025 business plan

1. Net revenue in 2025 decreases by 4.02% compared to 2024
2. Net profit in 2025 increases by 131% compared to 2024
Gender diversity in senior leadership

Ensure there is at least 01 independent female member of the Board
of Directors by 2030. Aim to achieve 30% female members in the
Board of Directors and Executive Board

BCG ENERGYj
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INTRODUCTION OF THE SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
REPORT

RELATED PARTIES

Building strong relationships with stakeholders is not only a responsibility but also an essential
factor to achieve success in BCG Energy’s sustainable development strategy. BCG Energy is well
aware that every organization and individual is affected by the Company’s operations, and their
actions can directly or indirectly impact the Company’s development.

Therefore, BCG Energy always proactively approaches stakeholders to understand their
expectations and concerns for the company’s sustainable development strategy. The company
always actively receives constructive feedback to improve and perfect implementation
directions. Transparent information channels are built and maintained continuously, helping to
enhance communication and strengthen the trust of stakeholders in the company.
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parties

Shareholders
and investors

Annual General Meetings of
Shareholders

Extraordinary General Meetings of
Shareholders

Direct meetings on demand
Social platforms

Business results

ESG sustainability and performance
Strategic orientation

Information disclosure and transparency
Dividend payment and capital allocation

Employees

Regular meetings with all employees
Internal communication platforms
Development training programs
Programs of recognition, reward and
holiday gift-giving

Trade union activities and team
building

Guaranteed employment

Benefits and compensation
Career development opportunities
Recognition and evaluation
Communication and transparency
Work environment and culture
Health and safety

Relationships with colleagues

Suppliers and

Direct meetings
Contact via phone
Communicate via email

On-schedule payment
Transparent and fair contracts
Guarantee quality and standards

partners Attend and organize conferences and  Maintain long-term cooperation
seminars Requesting sustainability and compliance
Visit renewable energy projects Ability to implement projects
Quality, price and service as committed
Survey and feedback from customers  Transparent information
Customer . . . .
Social networks and online platforms.  Reputation and brand of manufacturing
enterprises
Regular monthly meetings
Regular reports of the Board of - . .
. 9 b . Development policies, orientation and
Directors of member companies. .
, . business plans of the parent company for
Member The Company’s personnel participate .
. . member companies.
company in the Executive Board and Board . .
. S Approach major partners, expand domestic
of Supervisors of subsidiaries to . . .
. N and international cooperation
effectively enhance coordination,
supervision and strategy adjustment.
Comply with legal regulations, support
. . - Government policies and campaigns
Join and contribute opinions at . P palg
. . Contribute to the State budget
conferences and seminars organized . .
s Implement responsible production and
. by Government and State authorities .
Authority . - business
Join relevant organizations and .
. Develop local economy, guarantee social
associations .
security

Coordinate in work handling.

Work related to the project and corporate’s
legal affairs.

Community

Direct communication through
programs and events held in
provinces and cities where the
company’s head office is located

Protect the natural environment and living
environment for local communities
Guarantee labor safety

Implement social activities, contribute to local

Create jobs

community development
BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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ENVIRONMENT

Management method

As one of the pioneers in the field of renewable
energy, BCG Energy pays special attention to
controlling environmental impacts, especially
negative impacts from energy consumption.
BCG Energy and its member companies always
actively promote and spread the message of
energy saving, encourage the limitation of the use
of fossil energy sources such as gasoline and oil,
and gradually shift to the use of environmentally
friendly energy. BCG Energy also focuses on
collecting and updating energy usage data
accurately and periodically, thereby synthesizing
and reporting these figures to the Board of
Directors to ensure that sustainable development
strategies are effectively implemented.

Energy consumption and production overview in 2024

Energy Production level Consumption level
type
1 Gasoline Liter - - 25,814 28,848
2 Oil Liter - - 7,003 16,076
3 Electricity kWh 726,870,288 781,234,458 4,001,342 9,309,285

2024 marks an important turning point in BCG Energy’s sustainable development journey, as
the company has made significant achievements in minimizing negative impacts on the
environment. Gasoline and oil consumption has tended to increase compared to the previous
year (gosoline increased from 25,814 to 28,848 liters; oil increased from 7,003 to 16,076 liters).
Electricity consumption has increased sharply from 4,001,342 kWh to 9.309.285kWh. The main
reason is that in the year, the Tam Sinh Nghia waste incineration plants in Cu Chi, Kien Giang
and Long An have expanded their scale of operation. At the same time, this helps increase
processing capacity, contributing significantly to electricity output. In addition, with the strong
development of BCG Energy and its member companies, the total electricity production in 2024
increased by 7.48%, from 726,870,288 kWh in 2023 to 781.234.458kWh. This is the result of steady
growth in operations, capacity expansion and efficiency improvements from renewable energy
plants. These results not only reflect BCG Energy’s progress in the renewable energy industry but
also affirm the company’s commitment to sustainable development goals, contributing to the
comprehensive and long-term development of society.
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Administrative method

AtBCG Energy, we always put the protection of water
resources and sustainable water management at
the heart of the company’s development strategy.
The main water sources used by the company are
groundwater and treated urban water from state-
owned factories, and ensuring full compliance
with legal regulations on environmental protection
throughout the production process is our top
priority. In particular, for subsidiaries and affiliates,
BCG Energy always focuses on implementing
strict control measures in water use, not only to
optimize resources but also to contribute to long-
term environmental protection. The company has
proactively implemented plans to minimize water
use, including carefully checking water source
valves and switches after use, periodically checking
water supply systems to promptly detect and repair
damaged valves and avoid water loss. We also
focus on educating and raising awareness among
our staff about the importance of saving water and
taking concrete actions to protect the environment.

BCG Energy also uses water meters to control

Water consumption situation in 2024

Water sources for daily life and production at
BCG Energy are mainly provided from water
sources and groundwater. In 2024, the total water
consumption of the company was 9,613 m? The
amount of wastewater generated in 2024 was 1,210
m?, accounting for about 11.18% of the total water
usage, and all of this wastewater was collected
in tanks. The company has cooperated with a
professional wastewater treatment unit, Tan Tien
Phat Company, to collect and treat wastewater in
accordance with the process, ensuring compliance
with environmental protection standards and
contributing to the company’'s sustainable
operations.

ENEEUT

exploitation, ensuring that exploitation does not
exceed the licensed limit and that water resources
are used reasonably. The company is committed to
maintaining atransparentprocess, notonly ensuring
that water use is within the prescribed scope, but
also avoiding any environmental accidents, such
as waste leakage into water sources. We are also
determined to end the use of toxic chemicals in
production, protect water resources and preserve
biodiversity in the ecosystem.

With these commitments, BCG Energy not only
protects water resources but also contributes to
sustainable development, protects the environment
and creates long-term value for the community,
ensuring that projects and business activities
comply with sustainable development principles,
actively contributing to the goal of comprehensive

social development.

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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ENVIRONMENT

With the mission of providing clean and
sustainable energy, BCG Energy is always
aware of its responsibility to minimize negative
impacts on the environment throughout its
operations. As a company that produces
electricity from renewable energy, BCG Energy
does not directly use raw materials in the
electricity production process.

Instead, the company focuses on controlling the
use of raw materials by third-party contractors
during the construction of power plants. BCG
Energy requires its partners to strictly comply
with environmental standards and implement
material management measures to ensure
efficient use of resources, while minimizing
waste generation and impact on the natural
environment.

In addition, BCG Energy actively researches
and develops sustainable solutions to reduce

Administrative method

BCG Energy is strongly committed to reducing
the impact of its business activities on the
environment by implementing an effective
greenhouse gas emission reduction strategy.
All member companies in the BCG Energy
system are required to closely monitor and
supervise the emissions generated during
production and business activities, set specific
emission reduction targets and apply energy-
saving and efficient measures.

BCG Energy’s core activities include exploiting
energy from renewable sources such as solar
power, wind power, and recently, energy from
waste incineration to generate electricity. The
company has actively promoted the trend
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dependence on traditional  production
practices that can be harmful to the
environment. The company collaborates with
research institutions, experts and industry
partners to find new technologies and more
efficient ways of producing energy, reducing
carbon emissions, using renewable energy and
promoting a circular economy. These efforts
not only help BCG Energy reduce its negative
impact on the environment but also affirm
the company’s commitment to promoting
sustainable development and protecting the
planet for future generations. Through strict
controls and sustainability initiatives, BCG
Energy is constantly striving to build a business
model that not only brings economic benefits
but also protects the environment, contributing
to the global goal of sustainable development.

of using clean energy, not only in its own
production activities but also encouraging
communities in the areas where the company
operates to adopt renewable energy sources.
These initiatives not only reduce carbon
emissions but also contribute to environmental
protection, while helping communities develop
in a sustainable manner.

BCG Energy places a strong emphasis on
carbon neutrality, committing to a zero-
emission future, contributing to international
commitments on climate change and
minimizing the negative impact of greenhouse
gas emissions on the world. This reflects
BCG Energy’s determination to not only grow

sustainably but also to fulfill
its commitments to protecting
the planet and developing
renewable  energy. These
efforts contribute not only to
the company’s sustainable
development goals but also
to the global common goal
of protecting the environment
and preventing climate
change.

Greenhouse gas emissions situation in 2024

During its operations, BCG Energy uses a
certain amount of fuel for transportation,
electricity consumption and air travel, which
inevitably emits greenhouse gases. In 2024,
the Company’s total direct greenhouse gas
emissions will be 286,635 tons of CO, an
increase from 126.18 tons in 2023, mainly due to
the expansion of scale with three new waste-
to-energy plants put into operation (TSN - Cu
Chi Plant: 193,509.49 tons of CO,; TSN - Kien
Giang Plant: 40,482.86 tons of CO,; TSN - Long
An Plant: 52,491.37 tons of CO,). Excluding
emissions from the three new plants, the
remaining direct emissions in 2024 are 151.29
tons of CO,, an increase of 19.90% compared
to 2023. This increase is mainly due to higher
fuel demand for operations, transportation and
cooling systems. In this context, BCG Energy
continues to implement emission reduction
measures, such as optimizing production
processes and gradually switching to clean
energy sources.

The Company’s total indirect greenhouse gas

emissions are 6,137 tons of CO,, up from 3,701
tons of CO, in 2023 due to the expansion of

operations with three new waste-to-energy
plants coming into operation this year (TSN - Cu
Chi Plant: 2,443.66 tons of CO,; TSN - Kien Giang
Plant: 288.58 tons of CO,; TSN - Long An Plant:
475.42 tons of CO,). However, if only considering
the plants that have been operating since 2023,
emissions in 2024 are 2,929 tons of CO,, down
20.86% compared to the previous year.

BCG Energy always strives to minimize
emissions through switching to clean energy
sources and optimizing production processes.
For the three Tam Sinh Nghia waste incineration
plants regulated in Decree 06 on greenhouse
gas inventory, the operators have developed
and submitted greenhouse gas inventory
reports in accordance with current regulations.
Full compliance with legal requirements is
a testament to BCG Energy’s commitment
to transparency of environmental data and
towards sustainable development goals.

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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Administrative method

As a pioneer in the renewable energy industry,
BCG Energy is well aware that quality human
resources are a decisive factor for the
company'’s success. Therefore, the company
always aims to build and develop a team of
talented and dedicated employees, capable
of meeting all requirements of production,
business activities and development projects.
The human resource reporting system at BCG
Energy is effectively implemented, including
organizationalcharts, reports on currenthuman
resources, human resource fluctuations, and
other important human resource indicators.
This information is continuously updated and
provided to the Board of Directors to support
them in making appropriate human resource
development strategy decisions. Human
resource reporting plans are prepared on a
monthly, quarterly and annual basis, starting
from 2020.

BCG Energy is constantly improving

comprehensive welfare policies to ensure an
attractive working environment, helping to
attract and retain talent. The company applies

a fair reward and appropriate treatment
mechanism, combined with a dynamic and
creative working environment. The company
is committed to providing all employees with
equal opportunities for training, development
and career advancement.

BCG Energy believes that fairness in treatment
and career development opportunities
will promote employee engagement and
contribution to the overall development of
the company. Diversity in culture, lifestyle
and viewpoints is always promoted by BCG
Energy and considered the key to promoting
creativity, innovation and success. The
company welcomes all employees and
creates conditions for them to maximize their
potential. BCG Energy’s Human Resources
Department ensures the supervision and
management of all human resources-related
issues, from compliance with labor regulations
to compensation and benefits policies and
related legal requirements, in order to maintain
a professional, fair and sustainable working
environment.
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Average income of workers

mmm

Total number of employees (people)

Average income of employees (VND/person/month) 25,907,727 18,414,452 26,164,252

BCG Energy recognizes the important role of employees in the sustainable development and
success of the company, especially in the renewable energy industry, a field that is increasingly
focused on and growing strongly. With the goal of maintaining stability in production and business
activities, BCG Energy has developed strategic plans to ensure stable employment for employees,
while creating an attractive and engaging working environment. The company’s specific goal is
to reduce the turnover rate to below 4.5% within the next 5 years. These goals not only reflect the
company’'s commitment to caring for the lives and career development of employees, but also
contribute to the stability and sustainable growth of BCG Energy in the future.

Workforce structure based on gender

mmm

Number (people)

Ratio (%) 46.7% 53.3% 100%

Workforce structure based on skills

College, Elementary J
Graduate and .
vocational and Common
post-graduate | ) ) Total
intermediate technical labor
level
level workers
Number
94 4 0

(people)
Ratio (%) 87.9% 3.7% 0.0% 8.4% 100%

Workforce structure based on term of labor contract

Short term contract | Contract term1 | Indefinite term -
ota
underlyear to3years contract

Number
(people)
Ratio (%) 4.7% 59.8% 35.5% 100% s
—
.,.i_
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BCG Energy’s workforce structure in 2024
shows a highly qualified workforce, balanced
in terms of gender and stable in terms of
labor contracts. Specifically, the majority of
employees have university and postgraduate
degrees, accountingfor87.9%, while the number
of employees with college or intermediate
professional degrees accounts for only 3.7%.
Notably, the company does not have primary
or technical workers, and unskilled workers
account for 8.4%, reflecting the trend of
focusing on highly qualified human resources
to be autonomous in the implementation,
development and operation of the company’s
projects and factories.

BCG Energy’'s workforce structure by gender
shows a relative balance, with 53.3% being
female and 46.7% being male. This ratio reflects

Administrative method

BCG Energy always values and encourages
a culture of continuous learning and
development. With a deep belief in the ability
and potential of each employee, the company
offers a series of training programs specifically
designed for each level, aiming to improve
the soft skills, expertise and knowledge of all
employees. BCG Energy’'s goal is to build a
workforce that is not only flexible in adapting to
changes, but also creative, innovative and fully
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the company’s efforts in building a diverse and
equal working environment. In terms of labor
contract duration, the majority of employees
(59.8%) work under contracts with a term of 1
to 3 years, showing a flexible human resource
management strategy while still ensuring
stability. Meanwhile, 35.5% of employees have
indefinite contracts, reflecting the company’s
long-term employee engagement policy. Only
4.7% of employees work under short-term
contracts of less than 1 year, showing that BGE
rarely uses temporary workers.

Overall, BCG Energy's labor structure in
2024 reflects a highly qualified workforce,
an equitable working environment, and a
sustainable labor policy, contributing to the
company’s stable development.

contributing to the sustainable development
of the company. By promoting a culture of
continuous learning and improvement, BCG
Energy affirms its commitment to investing in
human resources, considering them the most
valuable assets of the company, contributing
to creating a sustainable and green renewable
energy future for the community.

ENEEUT

Employee training activities in 2024

Number of employees G
Classification participating in Average training
Tt () hours (hours/peson)
[ Based on qualification 107 100%
1 University and postgraduate level 94 87.9%
2  College, vocational intermediate level 4 3.7%
3 Elementary and Technical Workers 0 0.0%
4 Common labor 9 8.4%
] Based on gender 107 100%
1 Male 50 46.7%
2 Female 57 53.3%
Il Basedon labor contract 107 100%
1 Short term contract under 1 year 5 4.7%
2 Contract term1to 3 years 64 59.8%
3 Indefinite term contract 38 35.5%

Constant skills development and learning programs to support workers in
securing employment and career development

No Program hame Resuit
1 Team spirit, teamwork skills Complete
2 Creative and innovative thinking Complete
3 Awaken self-motivation at work and in life Complete
4 Awaken self-motivation and inspire employees Complete
5 Problem-solving skills Complete
6 Negotiation skills Complete
7 Method ?f plan assignment and evaluation of the results of KPIs Complete
completion

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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In order to improve labor quality and develop
sustainable human resources, BCG Energy has
set a target of training at least 20 hours per
year for each employee from 2025. To achieve
this goal, the company continuously organizes
training, fostering and skill training courses
for employees, with special programs for the
integration of new employees. In addition,
the company encourages the sharing of
experiences and knowledge among employees

In the energy industry, BCG Energy always
puts the top priority on ensuring occupational
safety and health for all employees. This is
not only reflected in daily activities but also
implemented throughout the important
projects that the company implements. BCG
Energy always focuses on assessing potential
risks and establishing preventive measures
to maximize the health and safety of workers
during the implementation of projects.

To ensure maximum benefits foremployees, the
company is committed to providing all types
of compulsory insurance according to the law,
including social insurance, accident insurance,
healthinsuranceandunemploymentinsurance.
In addition, BCG Energy also provides all officers
and employees with an intensive health care
insurance package from AAA Insurance, fully
paid by the company, to ensure that employees
can work with peace of mind and maintain
good health throughout their time working
at the company. These policies demonstrate
BCG Energy’s strong commitment to caring for
and protecting employees, contributing to the
company’s sustainable development.
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through exchanges and group discussions,
helpingto create anenvironmentforcontinuous
learning and professional development. BCG
Energy believes that training and facilitating
knowledge sharing not only helps improve
work efficiency but also develops the potential
of the staff, thereby creating a solid foundation
for the company’s sustainable development in
the future.

Management method

BCG Energy always focuses on developing the local economy in the provinces and cities where
the company is headquartered or deploys projects. We are committed to accompanying and
contributing to the common development of these localities. To fulfill this commitment, the
BCG Energy Board of Directors actively coordinates with local authorities in important activities
such as creating jobs, promoting regional economic development, improving infrastructure
and ensuring social security.

In addition to actively linking business activities with the development of local communities,
BCG Energy also proactively implements corporate social responsibility (CSR) programs to
bring practical benefits to the surrounding community and environment. We believe that close
cooperation between enterprises and local authorities not only creates a solid foundation for
sustainable economic and social development but also contributes to improving the quality of

life and building increasingly developed and prosperous local communities.

BCG ENERGY
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BCG Energy places great emphasis on sustainable corporate governance, particularly
compliance with ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) standards. The company works
closely with its subsidiaries to review and update policies to ensure effective implementation of

these standards. Key policies include:
» Code of Conduct;
»  Anti-corruption policy;

»  Violation denunciation policy

All are aimed at building a transparent, fair and accountable working environment.

To promote gender diversity in the leadership team, BCG Energy has set clear goals for the future.
The company is committed to having at least one independent female member on the Board
of Directors (BOD) by 2030 and aims to have at least 30% female members on both the BOD
and the Executive Board (EB). This is part of BCG Energy’s efforts to promote gender equality,
increase diversity and improve balance in leadership decisions, contributing to the company’s

sustainable development.

Administrative method

With the goal of becoming the leading
renewable energy company in Vietnam,
BCG Energy understands the importance of
building a solid financial foundation to ensure
a stable source of capital for renewable
energy investment projects, while maintaining
sustainable profit growth. The renewable
energy industry in Vietham is still in the
process of development and completion, the
Company’s Board of Directors always monitors,
resedrches and forecasts the market situation,
regulations and policies from the Government
to adjust the goals and development directions
accordingly. After the business plans are
approved, they will be presented at the General
Meeting of Shareholders and become the basis
for strategic decisions of the Board of Directors
and the Executive Board in coordinating the
company’s business activities.

BCG Energy’s business philosophy not only
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focuses on economic efficiency through
profit optimization but also aims to create
sustainable value for shareholders, employees
and the community. To achieve this goal,
the company is committed to implementing
policies and activities to: create long-
term value for shareholders, employees
and customers through effective financial
management and promoting sustainable
growth; use supplies and services responsibly
and prioritize the selection of suppliers
committed to environmental protection and
social responsibility; build strong internal
control processes and risk management
systems and conduct periodic assessments
of the effectiveness of these systems; and
publicize  important  risk management
measures to ensure the stability and long-
term development of the company.

ENEEUT

2024 business results
Unit: Billion VND

% increase/decrease in

Indicator Actual 2023 Actual 2024 2024 compared to 2023
Total assets 19,036.55 18,344.34 (3.64%)
Net revenue 1125.65 1,277.69 13.5%
Gross profit 535.05 627 17.3%
Net operating profit (186.71) (769.03) -
Profit before tax (147.50) (742.27) -
Profit after tax (152.72) (766.02) (401.6%)

Business growth target for 2025
Unit: Billion VND

Rate % (+/-)

Indicator Actual 2024 Plan 2025 Plan/Actudl
Consolidated net revenue 1,277.96 1,226.38 95.96%
Profit before tax (742.27) 230.23 -
Profit after tax (766) 210.94 -

Dividend rate (unallocated) (unallocated) -

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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TO: SHAREHCLDERS, BOARD OF DIRECTORE AMND MAMAGEMENT
BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Wa howe oudited the consolidated financdl staterrerts of BOG bnergy Joint Sheck
Company [here nafter referred 1o as the Compomy’) and its subsidiaries (hargingfrer
raferred 1o 0% the Group') cansisting of consolicoted balance sheat as of Decerhber
31, 2024, cansa idateg ingame statement, cansa idates cosk flow starement for the
Feoal yvedr gaded Decamber A1, G024 angd Motes (o the consalidated finoncicl
staternerts os et aJt o0 poge 02 10 poge B which were prepared on July 18, Y005,

Responsibility ot the Board of Manogement

The Badrd of Manogement is resporgizle for the preparation ono the tros and forr
presentation af the  corsclidoted Frnang’g staterents in occordance  with
Viethomess Accounting Stondords, VMiettomese Corpdabe Accounting Sysrtem aad
pthetr sratutary sequirgiments relevart o the preparation and presentotion af the
consgidates finoncial stotements and oiso for the infermol corerol that the Board of
Moanogement  considers necassasy for the preponcticn ond  presenterice of
cansaicated Frdancidl stoteragnds thot ore fres o motenal misstatemant, whathes
cho 10 fronddl o error

Responsibility of the Auditor

Orar respanshility 13 fo edpress on opmich on the conselidoted finoncicl statements
based onolr audit. We conducted our ouditin aocordance with Vietngraese Auditing
Standdardds, Tngse standoids requirg that we camply Wb ethical recjJuremants ang
[ anard perforrn the Gudit o oktoir reasonable assurance whathe: the corsaldared
Frganc gl skoterments gre freg from materich misstatemert,

A cudit v ehee s perfartmieg proced s f obtain dusit evidence ool The omaunts
ongd disclosures nothe caonsalidaraed Fronaiol stotements, The pracedures selectedd
depend on the auditors judgment, inclading tne nsseserent of the risks of mabeial
v astotement of the cansg idated finoncial stotement s, whether dug to fraudd ar error.
In moking those sk ossessments, the dagitar cosiders intercl cantrel & euaat 10
the Gradp's prepdrobior ang foir presertoton af the cohsaldoted finoncicl
storeraents noprder 1o design oudit procedures thal are aoprostiote in the
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circurnstanees, bur not (o the plurpase of edpressing an opinian cn the efactvensess
ef the Grados imteraal cortrol, an audit olse mcluses evalgating the gpprapriotensss
of ooceunting pelicies Jsed 0nd the reasanch eness of occaunting estimotes mace
by the Badrd of Management g wee | s evaluating the cveroll presentoton of the
cansalclered finoancicl stataments,

Wa saleve that the auadit evidange we howve altaired is safficient gnd gcppropnate 14
provide ¢ hasis far aur gualified gudit opimon,

Basis for qualified opinion

1 Regarding the deposits far surchosing shares, codvonces, and Dusiness coaperit on
g explaimed i1 the conselidoted financiol statermerts, we fodng the fa loawing 155ues,
+ 1he receivabile Fam tne desoat far surchasing sheres as at December 31 2024 15
VI ASLO00,000,000 {iterm W 4l beteeen 306 vinh Long JSC (g subsicary) and
Trocodi Constrictiaon Graup J50 orner nane  ndust al Development and T arsport
Invastimert JE':.::L

+ Advonces ariging f BCG Dien Bien Dong Wind Power JSC omd Aton JSC
{subsiclicries) ta wr, [0 137 Quyet [Deputy General Difector of ROG SrErgly Rt
with g2 valye of WK 3¢ 99 billon [iter v 4.(iv]] on Moy Y, 2024 and Juneg 20, 2024,
Thesa odvances weare paic from the compory's Gondg aeecauntimmesiorely oter BCG
Faergy JEC ond gther snareholders cantriguted capital 1o these bive subsidiaries,

- Receivables from the Rusiness Cooserotion Contrast of of Decembier 3, 2024 e
VR 300,481L000,000 (iterm waie)) betwesn o namber of subsidicrieg in the Group
ard buginess cooperatian pdrthers 1 imeest it developing wing  paves, wiste
incirerot on and woste freatment srojeets,

W were Jnab ¢ ta obitain suificient opprogricte aLd™ evidence regoning the sigrirg
of the contractsfdeposit agreements for shore purchases, the progress of usng BEC
COsh flow O the portaes, the purpose of Jging the govance payrment of BT 1 0ng THAn
Oyt rd tae ability 1o recover from these deposits, advances, and 3040, The totdl
vidlue af the abigws items g WNID A284,4 /,000,CC0, apcountirg fos 14054 of the total
mesers of the Giaup,

I pdditian, we werg uhosle 1o abram ary documrents shawaag that the Bbosingss
COaperat on tronsdchior betwean BCG Thanh Hod Frengy J50 (o subsigiony ) ong ram
sirk Mghinn Inveshment - Developirent LS5C {on Associate), the deposit for share
purchases and the odvonce soymant mentionsd obove were OfFciclly dppraves by
the Board of Directrs of these corsomes it occardance wath the srowvisiaons of the
Charter and current lows, 1his roy ffect the volicity aof the business cooperdfion
tromsaetions, the depas™ far snare purchases and the Sodvonce poymert recared iv
the cansaidatad fingrcigl sterements,

Accordirgly, we are wunable o geterrming the necessary adustments 1o the
receivables o depas™s, odvances, ohd Business Cooperatian Srmadnts menticned

BCG ENERGY
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chove o5 well as otner impocts U any) an ofher iters an the Gaups corsehdated
frrancial starements,

288 of the date of this repart, wa hove not receieed Ul cofirmanon lettars for the
fallowirg femas:

Itermns Ealonce as at December 31, 2024
Prepoymants to suppliers WMDY 1A 8E B4, fAR | Moted ik iterm v 3
Troigte poyables WD A A RD RS 23| Mated initen Wik
Otnes poyahles VDDA S 3N RN | Neted i item W 1S

Orner altgrnative oudit procedures ¢lsa id not provide us witn g bas's fe evoludte
the completeness of thase liohilites and ther effects an cther iterms n the
cansalidared finoncicl staterments,

Qualified Opinicn

I aur cpanian, ecept fn the effects af the ratter specified i poragraph "Bas™s far
gpadlified ooimon’, the consolidated finoncicl statemeants give a True and foir wigw, in
cll matericl respects of tne censal dered financial pas™icn of BCG Energy Joint Stock
Company and its subsidiaries as ot Decembar 37, 202¢ as well s the corsoeldared
results of it oeeratior ard its consolicated cash flcees far the yaar tnen enced, in
nccardance  with Vistnomese  Accounting  Standards, YWetromess  Coroorare
Accourtirg Bystem and other statulcly recLirgrmerts selevoat 1o the preponeicn ard
presentotion of the corsolidoted firdacio storements,

Emphasis of matter

Withadt Jualify g Gur opimion g mentiored doove, we wadld ke o draw yeur
gtrentior QoL

- s ngted i item VI G of the Motes (e the consaldared fingncial stoterments an the
glectric™y parchase peice that BOG Wnk bang Jaint Stacs Compormy and O eon Fnergy
visian Develapment Joint Stock Coampory sbavn subsiciories) are entitles to under
Decision 14 fon-1 Ty cdored April DO FC20 o tha WMEZC Vinh Tong Salar Power
Plont pro et ond Pha sy Solar 2ower P ant projechs witn Somimersidl gperdrian fdote
before Dacermber 31 2020

- As ngted initer ".-’.-ﬂ{'.-'.'J:I of the Nates to the Ccoansaidated finomcicl stotemants, the
receivablas fram the 3usiness Coopaation Canfroct (300) a5 of Decerasear 31, 7024
Crmguntes 1o WD 309406000000 between cerfein Suksidicries ia the Gaup and
BOC parthers fo avestiment n develaping whd power, wosta mcireration for
glectric ™y generdhion and waste tredhment srojecrs, The above basiness cagperdation
tromeactions  were  agoditiondly approved in JJdfe J078R By tne Bodrd  Of
Members/Boorg of Irectors of certain Subsidicries o5 prescriped,

- a5 of Decerrher 4, Y024, the Group has mvestrents in associotes {iten wIo2g -
WHIY 47403073481, loon receivables (tem Wh - WNIF BEZIDADDOND] L

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

recaivables from Business cooperdtion (iterm WAy 1] - WM S00,000,000,000] with o
tetal Carrying wolue of WS B30 A04B1 The Srodp s Bocrd of Manogement bos
prudently recogr red lasses for tha entire walae of investments it oint weatures oro
OssoCintes; mads o WM provisien for the dbowve odn ond busiress coozarafion
recervdbles accorching to the Qoo ting SHncip &5 animpoirmert and recoverabil™y
assessment, Thae specifc omaunt of o055 oy voty ceperding on oot
CirCurmstarces

Other matters

The cansaidates ‘inancial statements of The Grous far the yveor ended December 31
02 were oudited by arother ouditan and onothes guddit firen, The ouditars sxpressed
tr urcpalified apimorn with eraphosis of opinion an these consaldared fiindndsic
storerngnts an kel ugry 20, 2024,

The predecesson alditer erachosized that as of Decermber 51 2023, Clean Frergy
Visian Develaprnent Jeint Steck Company (o sussidiary) recarged short-terra frace
recervdbles from the Hecticity “rading Corasany uader Vietnars Blectric™y Group
(BN with rtal vahuag af WNID B2,40 098,920, reldted to slectricity revende generdted
fram the capacity of 3,10 kWR of PR Wy 1 Selar Power - Phose 2 aond the copacity of
SL10 MG Of Phu My 3 Balar Power - Phase 2 estimdted according ta the ceiimg unit
prroe prascribed in Decisian Mo 21/QR-B1¢ dated January 7, PO,

A ot [ecember 31, 2074, the bo ance of thig short-tenT rade recsivalalas is wHND
153,34 £885, 18 [in "em v 7 of the consoligoted finoncicl statements! as ar tne date
ef this repot, Claon Energy Vision Revelaprasnt Joint Stock Compdny hos signed
armened dgresments o st the official slectnaty prce for the chove electrcity
QUL AT with FYN (i itern VI 2 af the corsolidated fingrcial statement s or eveats ofter
the erd of the fiscalyear), Accordngly, theeceivabiles from estimated revenue of the
ceilirg price s of Necernbear 31, Y023 end December 31, 2024 corapared ta the official
frice greed with BV are Gpprosricre.

He Chi Mink Clty, July 18, 2055
For and on behalt of
\Igﬁ'-ﬁp'nfﬁlﬁ,}y{mine and Informatics Services Company Limited

A MANN
_..'.-'- ]
Pl s A0

.'|F=rtéu':'-'1~1 uli
L

W

F 37 CONG TY =%
i ¥ i A
MH |

I."-"'I' 5 e |

NHOQC ey

WC\ ooy Ll -
NG ReAe 7 2

NCEVEA VAN TUYEN

Deputy General Director
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

COMSOLIDATED BALAMCE SHEET

Form B 01 — DN/HN

AR 0F DenTanlar 3 RS LIt win
RSSETS Code Motes Dec, 31, 2023 Jan. (1, 2023
. Coshand coshegquivalents no .1 231,563,900,0%7 324 357 333,673
. Tosh I 3354850657 74,531 BA0EBSS
2. Zash equivalents 12 AE.0s, Y=0.490 249725 5592 BCE
Il shart=term financial 120 38,080,002,35  39,180,002,915
investments
. 1eld to motdrity invostmens [52 Y0 38,800 0C2 215 28180,002 215
. Sheort=-term receivables 130 7,302,938 504, 670 7,159,041, 9549, 387
[.  Short ter~ tra<le -cocoivab os 131 V2 BEB 444 229 BT FOC0,05TNEE
4. Shert ter—prepoymertsto 132 V3 EI7 715851497 108502551579
supolic-s
A Shert ter~ logr receivab cs I35 W oo SO 202 G0E DG 09645483 57
4 Others-ort ter- roctivab os |36 W 4o DATA2I02A30,831 S BZZ095 (196,07
5. Prowision for aoubt’ul achbts 137 v.a (473 628 514,507
V. Inventaries 140 1,714,322, 303 B3, 589,248
I, Imvertorios [41 232103 Bl Ba9 203
V. Qthercurrent assets 150 50,097, 554,103 54, 707,517,493
. Shert tor~ propaid oxprensos 151 V1Ea 97372497132 24524935 020
2. Deauctiblo waT 52 40,322 202 78 46,255 0% 400

& 147 ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

COMNSOLIDATED BALAMCE SHEET

AR i Cnrnnthar 2SS

ASSETS

Code  Motes

Deg, X1, 20243

Form B 01 — DN/HN

Lheaf wiiin

Jan, (1, 20k

.  Long-termreceivables 0 Q1M 626,237 510,948, 97,289
. Long teres trade ) V2o 4108832713
recaivab os
&, Long taree loo- 215 W Sk (97,207 0C0 000 'C.B28 032 0
reccivab os
3 Other ong ter™ 2lG Y4k 32 m07 399 906 SO0, 250, 948, 362
reccivab o
Il.  Fixed oszets 220 8,642 252 516,010 9099220 0358 047
l.  Tongib o fixod assots 221 W1l E,947,997.047,61% §,994 944,695 557
Cost 222 D226 305804400 0403015507959
Accumuioted dopreciation 223 (o3 308.0558558)  [i458070.852052)
2. Tinance lsaso asscts 224 W7 Z3EB32198 LoE Sa0 004
Cost 225 L2032472 730 L202.472 730
Accumuiated dopreciation 228 FEOREI S, (272802806 )
3 Intangible fixed assots 227 W.EB AC1 B33 B34 0B AQ3 BZe F2E 226G
Cost 220 G2 FI6, X432 552 G20 JI6, X432 552
Accumuiaiod dopreciaticn  Z2Y (27123.305.544) (7062 MaLa65)
lIl. Long-term assets in 240 1,102,226 503,006 1,073,431,041,594
progress
[, Lonstruciicn in orogross 243 W5 102225, 5G2,0C6 L4303 424
V. Long=-terminvestments g0 vIDz 2B 142 321 025 338,092,798.513
l. !I‘l'.-.-'Dit""“DI'IIEIF' QSE0CIQbos, 252 A4 3] D56 255 007 750513
joirt wentures
2. Invostments i oaity of 251
. BLOG0,2C0 200 BLOG0,2C0 200
athor cniities
3. Prowision for aocling inthe 5=
voluo of lang term LRLDCO DS Do0)
inwostmGnss
Y. therlong-termossets 250 35,203,565 B25 35355550 242
. Long terr prepald ST £9.713 247 242 B1131031853
GEpPONSes
2. Doeferrod incomo tox 2B V130 B 10006 533 BoCB4Z02E5
JZECTS
i Sogd will 2ed w4 572020 2498 B3 BE3DGE DES
TOTAL ASSETS a7 15,394,344 817,501 19,036,554,302 742

BCG ENERGY iﬁ:
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Form B 01 — DN/HN Form B 01 — DN/HN
COMNSCLIDATED BALAMCE SHEET Ao Chi Minh Gl Juy 18, 20380
AR Qf Docanhar 3 sEs LI N Prepared bv Chief Accountant General Director
RESOURLES Code  Motes Dec, 31, 2024 Jan. (1, 2023
I, Sureent liakilities non 3,338,003157,51¢ 3,076,292 354,807 M/L
. Short ter~ trade poyaoles N P T IEG 33222105 "222109 620 BE0 | { — = -
2. Towxes anc athor payalzles K1 210531250 55 A7 CET B2 J__d__ﬂ-r-ﬂ"’
1o the State Bugget W IE
2 Poyab os ta employocs = 1 BG4 B2 BTE 3 7ZEI7C 500 MNguyen Thi Thuy Dung Luu Khanh Truong Pham Minh Tuan
4 Short ter~ ccorusd a5 164 3 26 @14 T Preparer Chief Accountant Ganeral Director
CxDOMS0S T[]
2. Short tor~ uncarnsd T ) 14, 00T 57 441
reve nueG V.20
B, Otharas-ort torn payablos g W.3a (32 s BT A12 (89309 039 152
Lo Shert term borrowings K
Jmd tinanzigl leaso $335.445 7107414 "AB3 GBS OCE A0
licb T tics Y.
I, Long=-tzrm liohilities azn 5,052,675 469, 476 6,221,159,940, 562
[.  Long tor— tracs poyalos 33l V.'5h 26357233000 250,654 145,098
2. Long ter~ uncorndd 136 £ E36 260 1% B0, B2
reve MU
3 Tther ong torm payoblss 337 L] ) BSEDCD 0,000 BSE, D0 0,000
+ L.Dng t_r;rm me.jwlh.g.i ard 38 . 4 748 720 004 52 D054 000 |Ga OTR
firancicl casc Fab'litos v.'3b
5 Defercdinsome tax 4 i 70,723,404 BAG 79 260,078 544
lizib s 2 B3
[, ChAmers squity q10 B, 954 663,190,513 9,736,101,997, 423
. Cwnors pdicl inooptal 41 W2 A 00,000 C00G0 FADA0CD DC00G0
Crdimary shoros wit- 41la 200,000 000,20 T 200,000 000,.0C0
voting rights
2. Retained carnings 421 [E75.B37.054077) |96, B4 40" |54
Rt ned carnitgs 430
CICeunialgiea 1w the ord 196649401154 247103 0258050
O J2ricd fporiod
Reto'ned carnings in th's L ¥ala - - . .
) (7B2400,755.24°) (60453 627 B06]
period
3 Mo controlling imtercst 439 2233499544520 2249452526259
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 158,344 344 B17, 500 19,046,554, 302,792
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Form B 02 — DN/HN

CONSCLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Few the Fisesi yenar anmed Decnmiam 310 20050 Lt viin
ITEMS Lode Motes el ayra
. Sross reve~ue “ore salos of 1] LAY B24.791494 "1Z5 647 218 B34
¢goods and rendcring of sonvicos
2. Loas sales deductions 02
3 Metrovenoo from solos o gocls C W11 LT 624791494 CIES BAT 21E B34
<i~d rerdering of scndices
4. Zost of goods scla ond servicos 1 W2 BE0202414 13 2935968 786 152
remaoros
5, Grossprofitfrom sales of goods 20 B27, N2, 377163 535,048 552, 452
and rendering of services
- cial incormc 21 VI3 B29, 755,55 702 P OF15GE 7ol
7. Timg-cigl expo-sos éd W14 La0,837 BCT D3] L4555 270 2272549
PN which inforost cesensae 23 GaS 863718014 QG 422134827
e Soin 07 1583 0N joint venturos. ” (480401655 615 (5%179.270,369)
CISEOCiIatEs
8. 5Seling experso 5 27134
0 Soncral & admmi-istratior 6 YIS S4B, BG0 845 12 W0 455,15 B
CGEPONSes
1. Metoperating prefit [ {loss) a0 (769,021,265,8949) (186,707,994, 317)
2. Stherincorsc A YIE 43072453 B35 4916 675 413
|3 Othor oxpensos 13 L "R 2121394,551 Oocg 7R 15
14. Mher profit 40 25,799,3449,287 19,311,953, 081
15. Metaccounting profit befare tox S0 (742,372,046,607) (147,995,541,136)
! floss)
G, Corporgio ircome tox  curront 5l LR Ze DOBI2C 429 BECE 175 513
I7. Corporatcircometor deforod 52 (2599180,555] (1.283490,585)
18, Met profit ofter corparate Bl (766,019,596,581)  (153,720,425,064)
inceme tax { {loss)
Sharehclacrs o° the parent Bl (72104 342 553] [ 35.811.4468 594)
COTTERTY
hom cantrallng sharchalders 52 (34678252 038) (116.BCE 539.470)
19, Eornings per shore 70 VLG {1,001) (77)
20, Diluted earnings per shore 71 VI {1,00) (77)

Ao Chi Mink Ciry. July 18, 2020

Prenored by Chief Accountant General Director
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Pham Minh Tuan
Ganaral Director

Luw Khanh Truong
Chief Accountant

Mguyen Thi Thuy Dung
Preparar

BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

COMSCLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(uncar ainest mathes

ITEMS

Code Motes

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIMNG ACTIVITIES

20zxq

Form B 03 — DN/HN

Lheaf wiiin

2023

Net profit belore tax

H

(742,272,045,607)

{(147,495,541,136)

Adjastrmants for,

agreciation af fives ozsers ond

_ _ (7 b, bl A81,31 0 ANE, 319,540,197
Imwestment F}FGF}EHIEB
- Pravisons (13 hEdFIE, 514 R(0E -
- GBainflosses from fore'gn exchancge
differences upon revalJaticn of ) _ N _
) _ (1 W, 56,459, % te, £, 1 1,130
PG e tary CIasels Setormingted in
fargigr currencies
- Eaing/lozses from Irvesking
o (& 431,468 551,014 wA,A 5 BB
ficflwibies
- Inteest expense (16 B, A6 4, 4014, FEE URE,EA 10430
3. Profit from operating activities
] ) i (19 1,565,320,398,034 1,458,623,283,622
before changes in working capital
- Ingreasef cecrease in receivehles (141 FEAED S FE L300 {e4ad, AR 8L 1EL 2 E)
- Ingreqsef deciease ninventories 1 foiiay,am33,001] feingan s
- Ingreasel gecreasa ir payables
{Ctnes tnar interast payables, 1 WU E, B H R ARG R, AR
incamre tox)
- Ingrease) decrease ir prepoid e
12 {10,441, FE0,H 5] G B, A0l
BEQRNGES
- Ingrease) Secrase nraging , )
o 13 - 3, B, 1010, 00
SR TIes
- Intgrast goid 14 {0, 4615 R 0] (1,000, e, s, )
- Corpordhe Ncorae fox poid 11 AT A PRI o A1, 7 F e mas)
Met cash inflows{ [ocutflows) from _
j o 20 1,801,097,204,600 (23,663,432,592)
cperating activities
. CASHFLOWS FROM INWVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Purchases of fimed gss5ets and other o
_ o {200,417, 200,583 )
It g-term assets {124,8498,060, 53)
2, Proceeds from o sposols of fixed . .
7 2 ARE,E 31T 15, 744,194,84
mssets Gnd other lang-term assers
3. laons granted, purchoses of delst " o o o
_ i A (AOAR000]  (420,130,06E,6449]
inst oo ents of athe antities
4, Colecton of loons, procesds from
seles of delkt instiuments of otner »d T EE A, 00 A4 B BRSO

gntities

BCG ENERGY ih:
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 03 — DN/HN

CONSCLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
fUInstar eiret maetnesd LI W
CHi TIEU Code Notes 30249 3023
Inwestiments in athar ent™ies o) {ea, 7 449,888, 000 (a7,a00 5,408,288
Proceeds rom divastrmant n . o ]
. pIs 2R IE, RO E P Y SIS R
pther entities
Lo Mividends ang interest eceived 3/ P, 50,30, A5 44,5145 1653, R
Net cash inflows} {outflows)
. . Lo an {1,588,708,898,360) (Nz2,48,321,225)
from investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Procesds from issue of shares ) o
; T 3l 300600, 00000 2, B0, 000, (010, 00030
ard copral contritiation
@ Proceeds from barrewings 34 LB K0, S F2,5a ¢ 1,9450,048,54 7,614
Recoymants of barrowings 34 1,084, NE1AA 060 {4,608, 8491,308,E87)
4, Poyrments o finonce legses .
o 3h {2 1a4a,000] {2 naa,000]
liabilities
b, Dividends paid a6 - [ F, O, 00 0 )
Net cash inflows} {outflows)
) . L. a1 (415,227,505,222) 135,385,804 852
from financing activities
Net cash inflows] [ outflows) hil {(102,825,195,892) (10,425,548,B65)
Cazh and cazh equivalents at
L Eill 124,257 433,673 334,627,824,244
the beginning of the year
Fifect af fereagr exchonge K1
- ' 14 b BEE, SR hhbhE,2aed
e ances
Cazh and cazh equivalents at
Fia V.1 21,563,5900,097 324,257 433,673

the end of the year

Prepared by

e

Mguyen Thi Thuy Dung
Preparar
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Ao Chi Mink Ciry. July 18, 2020

Chief Accountant General Director
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General Director

Luu Khanh Truong
Chief Accountant
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Form B 09 — DN/HN

MOTES TG THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Fewr thre Fiseesn woar aomed Deceminam 310 705 Lienfs i

I. BUSINEZE HIGHLIGHTS
1. Structure of ownership

BOG Fnargy Lont Srock Compomy fHee nofter referred o as "the Compony’)
ieerates uader the Busiress redistrahion certifcote Mo, 034445408 soted June
08, 2005 issded by the Deportment of P anning dand investmen? of HEZWE, ond beirg
ormended to the "8th anes dateq June 05, 2076 reqording e change aof neaod
pffice address.

The Corsony's shares nove been afficioly troded or the Unhsred Puashc
Compony Maorket with the stock code BGE since July 31, 2024 aocarding e 12ecisian
M. SRR -5GIRN dated Ly 23, 2024 af the Hono S1aak Faehonge an approwval
of troding registration ond Nofice So, 34480 TR-SGIHN dored Luy @4, 2078 ohn
notificoticn of the first trading oy af the Canpanys registered shares,

The Corveory's cnarter capitol oocarding toits hasiress regstration ce-tificate is
WHIE 24 telhon, divided infa F30 milior shdres, with o pdr wdbas af WM K00 @er
share, all shores of tng Compaty drg Sormmen shares

Head office: | KIO-21, Tran Quy Kien Steeet, Hinn Trung 1oy Ward, 1hu Dug 7y, Ha
[y BT TR b [AERR YT Te Ty o

2. Business zector: r-.-'lt:Jr*I,an::-:-fufiﬁg - Imding - Lo,

3. Principal activities: Provding ranagement consult ng serices; pmaaLcing and
s ling electrcity,

4. HNormaoloperating cycle: Nanral operating Syole af the Coragomy [0sts 12 moaths
ef P nonmcl fiscol yeor Beginning from Joauary OF gnd eading on Recember 3.

5. JOperationsinthe pericd affecting the conzolidated financial statements: None
6. Total employees ko Dec. 31, 2024 100/ parsons [Dec 31, 2005 28 sarseng)

7. Enterprise Structure

7.1. Total subsidiaries

The Group has sightesen (1B} subsidiaries which will be consolidates infa me
cansolidered fingnc’o stoternerts far the accounting perod ended af Deceraber
31,7004,

7.2, List of Consolidated Subsidiaries

- A% of December 3, 2004, 1ne Graus Do twelve (12) directly ovned companies os
foa I Qs

BCG ENERGY
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Form B 09 — DN/HN

MOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Fewr the Fisesd enar anmed Decomiae 310 205 Vs vt
Ferceninge
Lompany name and - o 8% percentnge Fercentoge
Principal activities  af copital . af voting
address ) i af awning Fict
cantributicn 2
LS Thanh @ lea E-crge - i~
dv Prodacitg S0.00% B0 0% a0.00%
w3 cloctricity

Acldress: Mo, 3. 5troct N 12 dam et &, Ham Loeg Resiaential arca, an TRarh Commone, Be-
Lo District, Leng &~ Provinoe, vietno .

< con Lrergy Yis'or Prodacitg
Dovelopien: J5C 0% clactricity
Address: Prov'ncal Road 6349, willage 4 Do-g. My Tha-g Canmr-una, Pla By District, Bink 2ine
Froa noe, victnom.

41.28% 41.28% a1.o0%

Thorh Hguycn E-orgy
Covolop~ont <~d Invostre -k
Company Cimitcd

Adcress: Buon Cha Jus, Sha So Sommune, Krong Fa Disnct, Sic Lai Provices o, Victnon.

Producitg 51.00% 51.00% 51.00%
cloctncity

L3 Yinh Lang J5C Prodacimg 50.50% 50,507 50.50%
clactncity

AdSress Mo, 3949, Group 13, FRu Ton Hamlet, Trung Yghio Coemmune, vung Liemn Gistrict. ¥ 'n-
Lo~g Provi=so. v oondm.

Prosclacing aloctricity
MOnoQomans & consulting S9.00%
Address: 22 Guos Huong, Thao Dic~ wardl, Thu Dus City. o SR sink Sity. Wictngm.

Skylar J52 £9.00% R

RACInCIQCenIenk &

GCS Gale JBC . E022% S0.27% G097
Sonsulting

Address: 272 Guos Huong, Thao Die~ ward, Thu Dus City. o SR sink Sity. Wicingm.

BCG Wikl Soc Treng JC Prodaci~g 80.90% a0.20% 80.00%
clactncity

Adaress: Alley 1. Road 783, [1ac Wy Hamilct, by Koycn Toawn, My Xoyon District, 5oc Trang
Frov oo, victnom.

Cang “~anh 1Wir< Poser Prodlacitg
oo, Ll cloctniciby

Adoress koo 227, Giorg Gieng Hamlzt, Gar Than~ Commmo-e Doyen o Town, 715 Yinh
Frow noo victnoir.

£9.50% £9.50% (00200
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e thie Bsenn paor aorned Decnmine 31 PR Ll W
() Pursuant ta the daconditional nad rrevacosle YOG authanzations dored Dec, 24,
021, the Company eceived additonal voting nghts through the authonzotion af
cetain other shoena decs af Clean Energy Vison Jeveloprmant J5C (Clean knergy”]
cined hilds B1% voring rights i Clean Brerdy Tnerefore the irvestment v Clean Enety
I5 presented o5 aninvastmeant in  Sussidiary,

- A% ab December 3, 2004, g Grodp nas siv (08) indirectly awned subsidaries,
specifical y as follaws

ar Percentoge
Lompony name and Principal 8% percentn ge Fercentage
LT af copital . af yoting
address activities . . af awning Ficiyt
coantribution 8
liGrh Salar J5C Procacig £9.00% B3.11% £9.00%
clactricity
Address: 290 Guos Huong, TRao Dic- swarcl, Thu Dus City. o SFi kink City. Yicing .
Circhig Solor J5T Procacig £9.00% B3.11% £9.00%
clactricity
Address: 290 Guos Huong, TRao Dic- swarcl, Thu Dus City. o SFi kink City. Yicing .
Voot Solor LS50 Prodacitg B3.00% BE.21% B9.00%
cloctricity
Address: 270 Guoc Huaong, TRao Dic warsl, Thu Due City, o SFi ink Sity. ¥ictng .
[Kimwhka GCSHan r i~
1 Hl-atang Prodacing B0.50% 5127 00 60%
Cucnhg fnorgy J3C cloctricity
Adaress: Hamlat 1, Tharh An Cammong, Thanh Hoa District, Leng Ar Prowvi-ce. W etnom.
BCS  Bang  JUONG poeoyicirg o cotricity 69.80% 50.27% 69.60%

Cnorgy JSC
Adaress: Hamlat 1, Tharh An Cammong, Thanh Hoa District, Leng Ar Provi-ce. VW etnom.

3ia Hay £ ecrric Prodlacimg
Covelopront G50 cloctricity

Adaoress: <4 Mguye~ Thoi Hog, Dicn Bicn Wasd. Do O'nh O strct, Honcd City, Wigtnon

S9.B0% S B0 o9 .B0%

Crong “hanh 2 Wind Fower Prodlacitg
oo Ll cloctncity

Adoress Mo 207, Giang Gie~g Homlct, Don Thanh Co=~~murc. Buyven Hai "own, ™G Y nh
Frow nocg, vicetnom.

9983k 5983« (00,20

Aurci Wnd [nergy J50 Prodacitg 60.00% BO.O0% 6o 00
clactncity

Address: EAC Guos Huong, TRao Dic~ warcl, Thu Dus City. o SR sinkE City. Victngm.

GG Dign Gien Gong Wird pr.:,.dd._m.ng B0 ORE 50 OR L 5O ORL

Powens JSC cloctniciby

Adcress 864 [10a Bin- Arect, Residenticl Group "4, Tan “~anh W<rs. Dien Bien Fhu City, Dien
Gic~ 2rowirco, Yictnam.

Clectricity transrmissicn E5.00% BS.00% ES.00%
<i~d distribut an

Address: Z7C Gucse Huang, TRao Dic~ wardl, Thu Dus City, e SFi kink City, Vietnsm.

Aton JSIC

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Purguant 1o Resolutian M. D2/ 20Ra NG-HIDG I -5k YL AR doted Sep 04, 5024, the Bagrd
of Dirgctars af Skylar 150 (o drect subsidicry of the Company) opproved the trensfer
of ol investrent capital eguiva ert ta 210,78 shares of Greensky Infnitive J5C, The
prrecedures for trongferning cwnersaip at Greansky Infimtive J5C were comzlated on
S (h, 2024 From this date, Greansoy IMfinitve 150 s no laager anirdirect subs’d ary
ef the Coragpary through Skeylar J50.

Pursucnt o Resaluton No. 042005 MOG- DHDC- COSMOS dated e, (6, S023, the
Gereral Mestng of Snargholders of Cosmes Solor J5C (o direct subsidicry of Skylor
JSC) approved the gissolution af Cosmas Salar LS50 Cosmros Solor JSC aficioly
dissaled on Felky, 70, 407,

The woting rights rahions dererraaned Bosed on the romBer of common shares issued
by the subsiciories in the ‘o of joint stock compdmes: dnd ased an the copital
canfrilLian cwmership rerice of 1he subsid aes in form af limited Fability

BCG ENERGY
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7.3,

U i

List of ossociates reflected in the consolidoted financial statements by
equity method::

Ag 0of December 37, 20U, the SGrows hos aight VO8] nssociotes as ‘allows:

Percentage of
: . Percentage Percentage of
Company s name capital . . .
v of owning vating right
contribution
Sky ight FPoweor Co, Ltd, B0 I0H B0 R3,00%
Harwho BCEE D&M Co, Ltd, g5, 00 53,00 a3, 005
Tam 3'nh Hghia Imeest~ont _ _ : _ : :
FRU0% 2R I 2RI
Goveloprecnt JSC (vi)
GCi3  SP Grecnsky J5C g bl iR N1 0 b RO
TSM Long A= J20 (i) a8, 00% A8, 00% Ak, I0%
TSN Hon Dot JSC (i) A5, 001%, 45, 00% 45,00%
TSR Hue S5 a5, 0005 a5, 00 A5, 005
15N Ho Mo 50 a5, 0005 a5, 00 A5, 005

() as ot December 21,9024, these companies howe nat complerad the copiral
ANFnBLEaN procechres 0F o sclosec] in sechion Vo,

Dizclosure on comparability of informaotion in the conselidoted financial
staterments

The seechon af figures ond informcticn reeg o Be presented in the
congg idated financ dl stotemaents bas been implemeanted an the panciple of
Carparcsility Qmor g Corresnanging accoLpting penods

Applying the going concern buosis in preparing consclidated financial
staterments

The cansgidarad fimancial staremeants for the yaear ended 31 Decarbes 124
hovee Bgen Srepdred on o gaing cancern Basis, assurming that the Gaup will
e able to redlise its ossets and dischorge its liohilities in the rormal 2o se of
buziness for the foreseeabile fature for atleast the rex "2 fnoaths frome the date
f these consaldated finonciol storeraents,

ACCOUNTING PERIOD AND REPCRTING CURRENCY

Fiscal year

The fiscal yegris begun on January O ond eaded on December 37 omnually.
Reporting currency

wviethorm Dang (WD) iz used a3 O £UIeCy un™ o Goeaunting recarss.
ADCPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND POLICIES

Applicable Accounting System

& 157 ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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e it
The Groap opplies Vietnamrese  occounting standords  dng corsorte
peceunting system “ssueg under the Circular No. 20002040 1-81¢C goted
Nacembear 27, 2014, the Circular 3200 T T-B1E datad sorah 210006 ame g e
and susplemerted o rumber of articles of the Cirgalar FCaf2maf 1 1-81¢ aad
circulars guichng the imp ermentdhion of Gocountng stangords of the Mimstey
ef Hhonce in preparing and presenting financicl sroreraents,

The Group apelies the Cirmaldr ko, 20002016/ 11-81¢ CCirgulon 2027 dored
Deceraser 22, 2004 i5s5ued by the Ministry of “inonce guidng the preparotion
ord presentotion of the consolidoted inoncial sioreraents.

Disclosure of compliance with Vietnomese Accounting Standards and the
Vietnomese Corporate Accounting System

We hove performed the gocounting wark 19 prepore and present the
cangaidates inoaciol stoterments in gecordar e with Vietamese decounting
stardards, the Velromese enterprise aocounting regirae and re evant legol
requiations, "he consalidered finoncio stoterneats howe Been presented
horestly ard fairy on the congolidoted finonciol pasitian, cansalidated
business resulrs and cosk flows of the enterprize,

The selacticn of figures ord infarmohon presented in the notes 1a the
cansgiclates fincagiol statemrents 15 complied with the mgrarigl sringple in
Vigthomese AcCcoLnting Stondord Moo 9 - Pregsentotior of the fiaarcial
shegterments

APFPLICAELE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consoligated noncial steremerrs comprise af the irongig sierements of
BEOG Fnergy Joint Stock Campany omd its subsioionss ("the Group™) far e
Fecol yegr ended Decermber 37, 2074,

The finonciol statermrents of the subsichary are cansaidarad fram the purcigse
dara vehan e Groug starts contral o the date it ¢edses the contio,

The suzsidiaries’ Frans’al stotements o presored for the some accounting
penod As the Corapony's undet the decounting poic’es n cansistansy with rhe
Companys  The adushrerts for oany different occounting  policies  are
implernented o ghsdie the consistency between the Subsidioies ond the
[T sy

All inter-Graup balonces  and revenue, MoCome, gxpenses nclired from
tream scetions of the Grol g including Lnredlized gorng incurres frorm iater - Grolg
tramsashions in fhe assets value ore completely eliminates,

Unrealized lass neurred from intro-groJp fransactions recarded i the assets
vidlue are elimindatad whern tne expetses resulling nine 0ss are unrecaverhile,

BCG ENERGY
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Interest of uncontalled shoreho de s repnegserts the Sorticn in goain ar 1oss and
het gssers of the sabsidiaries that are not held oy the Groop ond peserted
georately in the conschdoted mcome statemert and from shorebo ders’
eouiby of the GroJdpin e awhners’ equaity nethe canso idated balance sheet,

lasses incuaed in the subsidiony are glocated n correspandence with The
ron-cantredlirg shargnalders’ portion af cwnerskip, including the cose wherg
those losses are greater than the non-cantrelicg sharghalgers porticn of
cevnership in the subsicdry s net osser,

Gagd-wil  07sing from purenase af on nrerest in the subsid dry 05 the
giffererce Babween cost of acquisiticn and for valdge o the idenfifiable nat
pesers of the subsidiory ar the dote of acquis™ion, “he good-will wil be
cllecated gradually ang slewly in the estimoted waximur gseful life ror
erceeding tan yaars Periadically, the Group valuates less of geedwill In cose
wherg evidense shows thab the loss of gqooowill ™5 gredbe than Gllacated
crmeunt, al ocoton will be moade by the ozt gooodwll gkt e the perod of
DECUTErCE

Gaing an bargain purchoses arise fam the d¥ference between the cost of the
imvastrient in g sJbsidiary and the parant s irterast o the i vooue of tha
subsgiciory's net dssels af the Soquisinon date Gonsg on sargorr plrchoses arg
recagrisad in gther incame o the ocgusiiion dote,

Foreign exchange rate applicable in accounting

Trensdetions arisrg in ‘oreign currencies ore corwverted of the exchonge rare
ot the date af the tromsaction, The balonce af manetary iters denornirotad in
farergn currencies o the erd af the az¢ountirg periag is comveted ot the
exchonge igre on thot dove,

Principles for determining exchange rates for arizing transactions

The exchange rote used 1a Cofwart TFNsact ons arsing in foreign SJarrancy 15
the oo tudl exchangs rate of the tirne the transechian accurs, Actudl exchonge
rates far fronsacticrs in forgign currercies ave dete mingd os fol ows;

Acti.olexchongs rate waen buying ond selling foreign currercies Lspot Fone g
currensy fradieg centrocts, forward controacts, futures contracts, ophians
confroacks, swop canhgcish exchonge rote signed v the byt cantroct,
selling foreigr currency bhetwesh the Compdny ond the bank

Fof copital cantriBubions or receipt af contrbuted capital: Foreign currensy
Euying rate of the hank where the Compony cpers 0n aocoodat ) resaive
captal frorn irvestors at the date of copital contribiufion.

Fofreceivaby &5 bly'tg rate of tne comrercial bome where the Grous apeeints
the castome: 10 poy at the fnme tha fransachian grises,

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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PO likz ities: sellirg exchonge roate of the camrgrcial bank where tha Grolp
ploing to trads A the fime Te fransactian accurs,

PO psset purchose Sfonsachions of expenses sod rmrediately e foreige
currency {rorf traugh cocodits payoble] buying exchonge rate of the
comrrhercicl bank wners the Group makes poayments,

The Group has trans oted forsigr currenc’es rrio Matnom Dong dF the ool
rrite.

Principles for determining the actual rate

Closing solonce oF paoaatary itermns desamingred v foregn Currencies ore
Fevol wated of tne aotual rate ruling of the bolonce sheet dote,

- The dctual exchonge rates upon revdodhon of  manetary o551
denorminated in fargign clirencies which horee beer Clogssified G5 o55ets will e
the blyirg rate of the commercial bonk whess the campany regulay rodes
R es 31,2024,

- The dctual exchonge rates upon revdodhon of  manetary o551
denomingted v fereign curreagies which have geen classified os sayab eswil
Bz thiz seling rote of the coramensid bank where the company edulary trodes
@ [ 31, P02

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cosh on bond, cash in bank {demond geposit).

Cash equivalents o short-tenm irvestments with d redemptian pecrod or
rrdfurity of ro more thoa 3 months fror the date of pa-chase, are eagly
camearrad inta g kndwn dmeu et of maney ancd withgot mech Ssk e comvears on
N ey

Financialinvestments

Loans

|nans dre derermmired at the or'ginal ost less (-] pravision for deubtful dects
Provigicn for bod debrs of odans is establisned bases an the expected level of
lags that moy accur,

Financial investments in Azsociates

A RSSA0I0NE 15 A et terf s over wihich the Compay has sigmficant influence
Bt Mo Cortrol cuet the Aironaicl and operating polic’es. S gnificant inflLence s
the right to particigate inomakieg finoncicl ond operating poicy decisiors of
the investes entarprise but not to cortrol these solicies

BCG ENERGY
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The equty method: is the metnad i whch the mvestment i@ recorded mniticlly
ot cost and wall not e agjusted whenever tnere 15 G cnarge of Tha invesiors
cvnership e net assets af the gsstciate The consoligoted incame stotermant
ref ects the Grobp's portian in Ss5aciote’s operdhing results Js o sepotate ik
nfter the ivvestrment dote,

The gnuﬂwill -;:Jrising frone the inveshrert m Associdbes will be reflected i the
oo valug af the irveshrert, Tne Group does nob allocote this goodwil, bt
gvo Late annLally re see whathe 1ne gopdwill s devalued of roe,

The fingncicl stotements of Asseoiates are prepared of the some accoLnting
period 0f the Graup's ang congistent occaunting eolicies ore apslisd The
oppropricre odjusthents nove been condacted in oder to ensure the
oocounting  policies ore applied ir congistency with the Group's when
MBS0y

Equity investments in other entities

Imvastrments moequity instrumeants af other entities irclude investments n
gouiby mstraments bt the Compony dees not bove control, joirt caatial or
sighificent influsrce awe The investad party,

Ivestrents in eguity nstruments af athar entities are initial y recogrized ar the
pHigirg cast, which inclades the purchdse phice o capal cantriburicn plus
direct casts plated ‘o rvestment activies MRividends and orofits of seriads
bexfore the rwestmeant is puchased gre occounted for o5 o decranse ir the
vidlog af taab investmert tself, Dvidends ond prefits of geriads ofter the
ivestmentis purchosed are recorded s revenug, IMadends received in shares
are orly trocked by the numbe of additionGl shares, the volue of shdresg
received is not recordedfrecarded af por vaue (excest for state-pawred
carpanies that comply with cucent srovisions of law),

Provigicn for loss of invastments in equity mafruments af athe entit'es dre
rae ag follows

- ko iveestments in Nsted stocks or the for volle of irvestments that e
rehdbly deterrmnedd, the Srowision 5 based an the mordet vo Le of The stocks,

- Fo rwestments whose il wolue coneot be determingd ot e time of
reporting, puavisions ore rode based on e mvestes' s Iosse8 with 1ne evel of
provisinr equal ta the Sifference betwesr the octual copmtal cantrbuticn of the
partigs oF the ather Lot ong the actusl cwrers eolity mulfipied by the
Compdny s coptal contnbButicn atia compored o the @otdl octug capital
contrilLrian of Tne parties ar the ather it

Cividends being allocated by shares

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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n cogse of dividends dre o locared by shores, the invastor only obiserves 1e
guantity of shares accarding o the netes o the fikdadiol statements, not
FECars: INCredse The imvestrnent walue and revernug from Smarcing octivinies,

DMvidends, prafit shored By manetory oF nan-monstdny nssets for poae-
imvestrnent arg not recoged 10 the reverue from financng activities, bt
recarded o decrense in e valug af investmenrt,

Dividendds, srofit snared by moretory of mai-rmonetdng assets ‘or post-
imvestrnent arg recorcled 1o the revenue froemm fiﬂ-::mn:iﬂg actieies of the fone
vidlue of the receivirg dote,

Held-to-maturity investments

Arinuestrmant is classifed as neld to maturity when the Corparatien/Enterprse
hos the intentian aro ability ta hald i 1o motu Ty

He d-to-rmgturity investmants reluge term boak deposits [iﬁcldﬂing bils ndd
promissory notes ), bonds, preferred shares must be redeemed by The issuer ot
0 cerfiar timg n the futue and helg-to-maturity oans o calect nrerest
perodically and other held-to-rmaturity investimeres.

He d-to-maturity investments ore initidlly recarced gt cost includirg surchoase
Rrice o Costs reltted o the imvestment ronsaction, After iritial recardieg,
these investrments are ecorded atf 1neir recoverable gamolrr, Inferest ngora
fram helg-to-rmaturity investments affer the puarchase dote is recorded an the
ncorme statement o an aoerual Bass. Interest eoraed Detfarg the Campany
holids ™ 05 recarded 08 0 deducton ham the ongindl prce ab tha firme of
pufchose

Whan tnere is solid evidenge thot port or all af the invastment may not he
recoverable ond the drount of 1085 can e reldbly cetermmingd, the lass is
recarged in Frdns d edpenses Sunrg the penod and directly deducredd o
the investmeant vallie.

Trade receivables and other receivables

Receivables are presented at book value [ess pravigiors for dowbitful dehbrs,
The ¢ assifcofion of receivodles is ¢ore occarding 1 the follwing prirciples:
- Receivables fr-am customers reflect commers dl receivosles arisng froam
boirg Ghd sellitg transsctions betwaesn the Faterprize and the suyer who s
on hidependent unit of The Compony

- Other receivables refect nor-comrmerciol receivabies, not reloted o
purchdse and sole fronsdst ong,

Prowision fon bod clebits s rade for each bae debt based o the overdus age
ef the debts ar tne edpecton level aflass thot rdy ocour, seecificd by s follaws:

BCG ENERGY
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- tor pverdue receivables occording ta the assessment of the Boord of
Mgnmgemenn

- Fof recenvinles tnal ore Nt cverdue but ore unlikely 10 be recaverod: based
h the expacted level of Inss 1o S8t L Srovisions.

Ingreases and decressas v bad gebt provsion bhalarces thot need ro be made
ot the end of the Pscal vedr argrecorded ir general & adminisirofior experses,
Inventories

Imventaries arg stoted of tne lower af cost and net reglisable vaue of
inventeries

Original costs are determined as follows:

- The griginal cost of moteriols, maerchangises corsists of casts o purchase,
caste: of rranssortotion and otner cests incurred 'n brirgng the imvenraries 1o
then present location and condit’'on,

Method of calculating inventories’ value: Waighres overags method,
Method of occounting for the inventories: Perpatacl method

Method of meking provision for decline in value of inventories: Frovision ‘cr
gecling in vo ue of mventoies is made for each inventcry with the cost greater
then ther met ealisalle voue, Net realisable valle iz estirmated sellirg proe of
imventaries in the ordirary course of business less {-) estrmoted costs af
carngeton ond estirroted costs necessary to sell them, (For services provided
inprogress. provsian for declne invalue o rventodies s calculated according
te eack type of service w*h o separote price, )

Ingreases oad decrecses af provision for decling in value oF inventanes
balarces that neaed 1o be made at the end af fhe fiscal year gre recordes inthe
cast af goeds selkd,

Fixed aszets

Tangible fixed assets

langibla fixed Gesels ere stoted of arigingl cost less gccumu ofed depraciotion.
The it al ost of a tongible Peed gsset compnises ol expenaitures of Drirging
the asset fa ibs weorking cancihion ong locat on far its intenoed Lse The
pependitures ibcurres after mitial recagrition ore only copitalised o5 on
adaitianal cast of tangitzhe fived assets when they have resulted in onincrecse
in the futors ecanaric benefits expected 1o be obtained Fram the use of those
tomgible fied assets The espendtures which donot meat the ogoeve cenditicens
tre chongen 10 the expanses in tha yadr,

When the assets are sold or diseosed, thair eriginal costs and tha accurmuloted
gepraciot orn whicn hove been written off ang oy goir Gr 1ass fam disposol cof
nssers are recarged it the income statement.
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7.4,

7.4,

Ve Wil
fongible fived assels purchased

The origing cost of purchased tangible fixed asses shall congist of the actuaal
purchase price less (-] rode discounts ar reduction plug (+] rexes [exclud g
tees fe o refurded) and relevent experses calculated Lo the time when sucn
fFwed assets are cut infto ogeratior such ds fees for installatian ang taal
peration af fired dssets; speciaists and other direct costs,

The anginal cost of o tongible fixgs Gzsel ‘crred from copmal corstruchion
Lhdder the rreods of tendering shall be the inalisation price af the Constraction
project, other ralewart fees plls (+) recistration fee (if ary)

Freed nssets wo'ch me ouildings, structures attacked to land use right, the
vidlue Of o use nght s complited seprdtaly ond recarded asintangible fixed
n55es,

Intangible fixed assets

Intgrgicde Fred gssers are recerded af cost less (-) accumulated depreciationr,
The kistaricol cost of intoagible Pred ossers includes all costs rhot e
Company st spend fo acquirg 1ne fved asset up to wheh the Gsset "5 ot
infa g ready-to-use state. Costs elofed 1o intarghle fized assefs that arise
after intial recagritian are recorded 0z produchon and basiness cests in tha
peniod unhkess these Costs arg dssociabed with ¢ specific intongiale freed Osset
gl gredse the geararric enefits from Mese 0ssets,

When intongizle fixed 0ssets ore saod or hgudared, their ongiradl 2ot ard
accwruloted depreciation gre writtey off and orefs ond 1osses drising fror
ghsposd dre secorded inincorae or expenges cung the year,

Financial lense fixed ossetls

A lease is ¢ assifed oz a finonce lense if the moority of the risks ard rewods
pesnciates with cwnershis of tne asset bhelorg ta the essee,

Findngial ledse fiked gssers are stoted ot arigingl cost less eocuamulered
tepracioton, The origing cost of o fixed gsset under o findnee easeis the lower
of the ‘gir volue of the leased asset at the incepricn of the e0ge cortrct gnd
the present walle of *he minimur ease poyment The discaunt rere 0
calou arg the prasert vilue of the minmam renfdal payimert (o  progerty
lease is the intgrest rote impicit in the praperty lease cortract of the nterest
rote stated ir tne contract Ik cose the nterest rate implicit iv the legase coentrocet
cornot be determingd, the loan interest rate at the seginning af the leage will
bver L.

Method of depreciating and amortizing fixed ossets
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Degreciatian s charged towrite Off the cost af fived gssels an ¢ shagnt ling
ks s ouar their estimated useful lives Useful life meansg the duration in shich
the tengizle fived dssets prodoce their effect on production ond Business,
The estimated uzelullife for ozsets is as follows:

Bui dings cand stiustares M) yedrs

tachinery and equipraent (13 — 2 yedrs

Trotnspertat on and focil ties (16 — 20 yaars

Office equpment (07 — W) yedrs

Fimancal leqse fived ossers (1% — (17 yedrs

westment Neense B yedrs
Construction in progress
Coastrucion in pragress reflects directly relates casts (includicg interest
prpensss; relafed in noeRrdonce with the Cormpeny's occzunting palicy o
pesers Jader canstuctior, machinery and equisment being neto led for
production purpesas, lensing ang rmonagemeant g5 wel 03 casts associated
with ongeing fied nsset repairs These dssets dre recogrized of 20gt ond dre
not Ll ect f depacintion,

These casts are capitg ised 5 an addironal cost of asset when tng works bowe
bt cormpleted Afrer the weorks howe Been Fral7ed, the asset will be handed
vl ang pJt into Jse,

Accounting for business cooperation contract [BCC)

B in Ehe fgnr of jeintly cantrel ed aperdhions is o jont vaature Thot does net
regpuaire the establishimert ofF 0 new business antity, Waaturgs shall ulfill
phligatians ond  exercise rights ancording 1o the BCC, The (einf-ventu g
aotivities oy be carfies out clohgside ather ardinary actwities of edach
vEPELre,

The Grolp inifial y reco ds amounts coatiburad ta BrO g te ofigir ol £ast and
reflects tnem o5 sther receivablas,

The Group records receipt ta HCC ot eriginol cost ang reflects as arher liabilites,
Mo i Quwiners ey

& B 7 the Farmm af shares of ofter tore prof™s s controlled by ohe 2oty in
wihich

If & BOC st that each ponty s entit e tee o Peed armcunt of prefit segordlaess
f the gerfomaace of the RO, ™ is a lease of oasets insubistance,

If the 20 states that ench party s enhit ed G profits when te BCC s orofitab e
ord is requTed 1o bear Fesas wher the BOC s 055 mading, in sabstance, the
ROC porhies shore revente ond expenses bhecduse each porty con ointlhy
cantrol the gperation gnd cash flows af the BCC,
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0.

n.

12.

Whan the Compety 18 cnarge of accaunting and tex Fralisotaon, the
Compdny 1& requred 1o recogmse the entire revenue ard exsenses n7sing
fram the BCC, and then gllocate the paportionote snares of revente and
e¥penses o the ather pot’es in the parind.

When the Company s natb i cnarge of account ey and tox findalisatian, the
oMy dCCoLnts Sarn ity praporticnote share of revenue ond edpenses from
the BEC.

Prepaid expenses

Frepaid expenses irclude gxpenses that actually molred ot relate 1o The
eperating result af several accolrting periods Method of allacaring presaid
prpenses The getermining ord ollecating of prepaic espensas infa casts af
productiaon and doirg slsivess of eooa seriad is o0 ¢ shraigat-ling boass.

The Grous s prepond expenses irchade the follow ng mon expenses

Teols ong sapphes 1ools ard supohes TRab PDowe Deen put mta use are
pllccated to expenses Jsirg the shgight-ne bosis wthoan aleegticn pedod
not exceeding 36 months

Fiegd Qgget repar costs: One-time asset repon costs of greot value ore
pllceated o axpenses Jsirg the shigight-ne bosis wh an aloesticn peiod
hol excaading 36 mohths

Liobilities

liakilites ore recogired for arounts 10 be paid in the uture far goods ond
Seonces rece ved labilities dre recognized based onredsanabn ¢ estimotes of
the armaunt payclle

The clossification af payables a5 payables 1o vendars, internal sovables and
pther payollesis bosed o0 e follow ng princisles

- Payakles fo vendars -eflect trade poyables arigsing from purchases of goods,
sewices, nssels and the verdar is an ndegsendent Lo of the Group,

- Dtner payables reflect non-cameerciol poyables, not releted 1o ransa crions
ef Bloying, selling ar prowding goods and serices,

Eorrewings and finance lease liobilities

Barrcewings ore tordl onclets the Group awes o banks, irstitubions, fingrcial
carpanies ond other objscts {excluging borawings under the form af bond o
preferred stock issLance which regure the issuen e repurchase ab o certain
tire in the Futarg)

Barrcevings and finoncial lease habilites are mehitares in detail gecording 1a
craditer, ogrearert ond Dorrewed gsset.
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13.

14.

15.

Borrowing costs

Prirciples for recarding booeoawing costs Sorrowing costs include loon interest
o other Costs neurred directly relored 1o 1o s, HRorowing S0305 are recorded
fg eXpanses when incurrad

I cases wherg Sorrowing costs dre doectly related fo comstr  Jction investment
of producton of Lnfinshed ossets that read ¢ loag enodgh periad (aver 12
monthz] fo he put inte Lse for the irtended purpese o sold, then hese
e aviing casts dve copitalized, For separcte leans serving the canstraction o
freed fssats or investment real estate, interest s copitalirzed even if g
canstustion peaod is @55 thar 12 manths, come srising fram the fermparary
imvestrment of laans is recarded 08 o decrense nive cast of the relevont aossats
Foogenesal Iodn Cogital which s Lsed for Construct oninvestiment Surfaases arn
produchan of unfrished assers, capitehred Darrowing Costs dre Cetarmired
accordivg o the capitclization rare for the weghted cverage cooamulered
castsincurred far copital canstraction irveshmert o praduchion af that asset,
The capitalizotion rote s caleuloted according to the weghted overoge
interest rote of autstanding leons auring the year, excludng sepoale 1000s
serving the purpose af creoting o specific asset,

Bonds

The boak wvalue of & band g Lsuolly reflectas on o net Biosis equaol to the Bord
vl f Sor wglue mings the baad oiscount plug the band premigem.

The Cotmpaty monitors discounts ard premidms ‘of easn bype of coramcn
bornd isgued ond the ollacatian of eacn ciscount ard  preraiorn wlhen
geterraring borrdawing casts ncluded in adpenses o cdpitalizoticn for each
frerind, specifically

- Bang discolnts are gradualy allocates 1o calculote borrowing casts each
frerioo] targughout the band's b,

armartizericn of the dscaunt or premiurm may Lse githes the effective irterest
Foate metnad oF the stright-Tre methad,

- Accordng 1o the straight-Tne rethod The discaunt oF premidm s aven y
cllccated thraughout the band's fem.

Salary policies and compulgcry insurance

Salary caloulated and cccountad for expenses in the pericd accarging fe tng
lbar contract and the salary regu dhion of the Corasany accodingly, social
nsdigrce, Fealtk irsuronce and unemployraent insurance are dlso deslcted
ot the rate of 25,5%, db% ard 2% carresporoing to the employes’s salony. The
rote of 21L0% will e neluged e the cast of 5acid insuronce, bealth ingnance,
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16.

17.

18.

unermployment ingsurance in tng sengd; and 160.5% will be deguctes friem the
BTy eE's Saldry,

Accruals

Accrunls irclade interest expensg, salasy and boags edpenses, ransporialion
grpense, | which Dove cean aagsed i the report ng perod, but bove not been
settled. Salary and banus experses arg recorded irto cost af producticn,
busiress e¥penses in the periog according fo the princizle af conforeay
Between revenle ond expense s

Owner's Equity

The owners capital

The cwrners copal is recagrized aocording fo the actun condnbuted copital
of ot ers,

Retained eornings

Frofit after corporate income tox sholl be distibutes ta shareholders ofter
setfing nzige funds in cocardnee with the Coarter of the Srous oz well as the
provigiors of low and dppraved by the Genero Maetirg of Shareholders,

The distbuhion of profits to shorebolders tokimg nta corsiderctior noe-
honetdry iterms includad mungistabiutes after-tox prafits moey effect cosk flow
and the ability ro poy divigends srofits such o inferest due to revaluaton of
nssets contrhutes *o cap™al ntersest dug o revaluafior of wonstgy items,
Frgnc alirstrrents ongd ofber ron-monstdny ifems

Dividenes/prafits are recogrized as ldsiities when approved oy the General
Meeting of Snareholders.

Revenue and other income

Revenue from goods zold

Revede from the sale of gond should be recognized when all the five (2]
fallowing conditions have been sohshed: | The enterprsa bos ransferrad 1o
by the significont risks ond researds of oweneeship of the goods 2 The
gRterprige retairg neitnes Continuing manogeial ruwed verment a5 ar oeensr hor
effectve contal cwer tne Qoods sole: 3 The amourt of revenue con be
trecisurad reliably, Wher the cantroct specifies thot boyers ore entitlad 10
refurn prodJacts, goods ey Pove bought under specific candiniars, the
grntarprisg will record the evende only wher those Condimions ro lengsr exdist
ond the buyers da not bove dgnt o return products gands (excent ‘o
chongrg to other goads. services] 4.1he economic bensfits associnted with
the rronsdacton bgs flown or will Fow o the antarprisa, 5, dentify the costs
relaredd 1o Tna S0 es fransastion,

Revenue from service rendered
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18.

Reveade frim seraces retdeaed 15 recordad whea the result of the supply af
seowices 1% determmined ralionly 0 fose where the sewvices ore rendared n
sevargl pericds, the revanue will recorded by the port of completod works at the
enid of the 2coadnting pericd

Revange from sevices rerdered is getenrines whan ¢l tha fours £4) faliceanneg
conditiong homwe beer satisfied: |, "he reverus 5 deteamingd firmmily; When the
cantroct spacifiies that brapen s are ent™led 1a return the seraice thay hiove Bought
urder specific conditians, the enteiprise will recard the revernue only when those
canditions no onger edist dnd the bayers do not nove Aght 1o refurn service; 2
The ecorom e berefts gssacioted with the froansoction hos fown or will fows
fram the suaply of the provded service, 3 Port of completed woks con be
pheterramed db the end of the Goeaunting pericd, 4. 106terming the Cosks nolrred
fon the trarsactian gnd Tne costs 1a complate the service pravision ronsact’ on,
Financial income

Incorme arging from interests, distribiuted divdends ond profs of the enterprises
shall oe sgcogrred if tney sirultoneously satisfy the hwa [2) conditions below: 1
It is gessible o abton econor’c benefits from the coacermed hronsochions, 2,
Incame is determired with relative carrairty,

Fimdngral mmcomes nelude rrerests, distributed dividends ond prafits and
incame ham other finoncing achivities hquidation of cosirgl: Fareign e hongs
gaing, Caepital fransfer gain).,

- Iterests recoqnized 00 anaceual bas’s, determined ontae ba ance of deposit
QCCELnEg farnd interest rores in gach period,

- Ingtribted gividends dand prefs sholl be recognizred when shorekolders dre
gnhit ed 10 receive dividerds o profits from the copital cordribiation. widends
received in shores arg orly tracked by the rumber of addit onal shares, the value
of snores receved ecordes of por valLe is not ecorded,

When on omount which hads beer secorded a5 on mcome beconmes
irrecoveab &, such irecoweab e ar unacertd nly recave ch e cmaodnt must be
Qooountes s expense incuced in the perias, bot nar recarded 0% noome
tecredse

Cost of goods sold

ot of gonds sold is the cost of progucts, geods, services and other axperses
recarced i the cast of goods seld or recorded o decredse n the cast of goods
sald w theesirting petioo. The cast of Qoods sald is ecorded at the date the
trosachion nelrredd oF heely teoncur in the future regard ess poyment s been
mddde ar gt e cast of goods sald ond reverue shal be recoded
girmultarecusly o corformily prociples bPopenses  gdcesding  nomal
cansumption level dre recocded itmmedictely o the cost of goods sald oh
prJagent pring ple,
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20,

2.

22.

Financial expenszes

Financial expenses include expenses of lass rearted fta the financial
ivvestenent, Borrdaviang SOk ong captal Borroawing, provision for desaluation of
Francal irvestmert gad orfber ingncial exeenses,

Fincingicll expansas dre recorded ir details by then cantent ond cetarrmined
religbly when there are sufficient evidences or these expenses,

General administrative expenszes

Reflectirg geaeal admivsiroton expenses of the Corasony that nelude
selory expenses: of Monageraent segrment, social, haalth, unerp oyrment
insgnces, whion fees effice matericls, taals, deprec’anon of assetrs; lord
rentol, business gperdation oy provision for doustfal debits, cost ef hired
seewvices ond athers poid by cosk,

Taxes

Corpordte mcome 1oy includes current corparate incame fos ond defarred
carporale come e neLrred n the yeor and set snsis For getenmining
Efeerdting result affer fox in current facol yeo-

Cuaent ingdme x5 d tay caleulated based o mosoble incorne, Toxabls
ngame difers from accountivgg orofit due 1o adiusbrent of termnordey
differences between tax gnd accaunting, nen-deductible expersas s well as
adjustment of nen-taxable income and 1085 Carmed Teradng,

Deferred neorne 102 05 The coporote noprae 1y that wil e soyable of
refuaded dug te the terrparary difference between 1ng Sook walle of O35e1E
ord Fabilties 1o prepore finarcicl statements and the basis far calculafirg
ingome tax, Defarred o habilities dre recognized far oll tasable terpaariry
differerces Deferred tox assets e recognired only when it is probable thot
trawcaby & prrofits will Be gworlckle in tha futne cgaingt which these dedactible
terrparary Qifferences con ke dtiized,

The hagk vd ue aof ceferqed 1o gssersis ecorsicered of the end of the finoncial
veor and "5 reduced to the extert thot ™ is 24 longer prosable that sofficiont
ek & preafit well e crvailable o cllow the benetit of part o the entire defe rad
tow gsset to be used Previously unrecognized aefered Corgordte iNCame Tox
pssels dre reassessed of the eag of the iindncial yedr ard dre ecogmred 1a
the extent that s prebable that sufficiert taxable prafic will be availabla
ngainst which The ne oM tay 0ssers con be Lkil7ed

Tow rates of gefered tax ossers dand deferres tox liohiities are deterramed at
the tas rates expactedd 1o dpp yir the yaar the ossetis realzed o tne lichrling g
paid bozed on the tox gres ir affect of the end of tha fiscol year, Deferred
inCame o 15 recargded in theircame stoitement ond recerded directy in eguity
enly when the 10 relates M items secorded Sirgctly ™ ey
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23.

24,

Deferred ncorae dy ossers ond gefead income M iotsiities arg affset when
the Compdny hos the lego fgnt ta affser curent neome Wy ossels against
current mcorme tax lichilities ang the deferred ircome o assets and deferred
incame ta2 abilities ore releuon?t e oo porote income o wkict 15 Jadar the
trcingement of ane tox uathanty of the same susject 1 corpoale P eome fax
ond the Compoay Dos infeation 1o poy cuirert incame M iahilities ondg
CUIFRNL IMCome Tax Assers an anel basis,

The tax amolnts poyable to the 5tare budget wll be irdg izedwith the tox office
Nifferences hefweet e fax ormaunts payoshe specified in the book gng 1he tox
armaunts under finalizotior will be agusted wher the tax findlizarian has been
issued oy the toxe office,

The carporate income tox rate apploabile to the Srodpis 20% Far salar pawer
imvestment projects. the taxe rote ond 1ae incertives of the Inveshment Incentive
Cerfificote for anch proect grd the corpargte income 1ad inceatives unoer
Arficlhe 23, Creulor mgleoe 11-810 Ui rculor 87 will be cpplied, speaifically os
Faal s

- At Cledn bnergy Visicn Develapragnt JSC ond Homwha BCG Bong [oondg
Frgegy JEO The SBroJds dppies o corparste income fofs rote af 1% for 1h yeors,
1o exermplion o De vears from the ficst vaar of taable income (from 2021 1
2024) and a BD% regcuctian for the next C9 yeoss [from 2023 r PeEdl,

- AT HOG Bong Duang Foengy J50 The Group dpplies a Corperote income fag
roate of 0% far th yedrs, 10x exempticn for C4yeors from thea fist yeor of Mgk e
ingorme [from G018 fo 2027) ang o B0 reduction for the rext 0% yeors [from
PO E fo AT

Earnings per share

Basic edrnings per shave i coalculates by dividirg net income avaloble to
carrinon shoreholders after apErop T ating 1a Botug ahd Wedlfare Fund by the
weighred- average nurakxer of Coraman snares autstandieg during the peiod
Divted FPE i colculates by diwiding net income dealsh e 1o cormeh
shareholders (often adjustng dividends of sreferred cornversible shoes) by the
weighred- average rumber of Comrro snare oltstonding and the weaighted-
fverae aumber 1o beissaed in cose where all dilutive potention Cormmen dre
camverted into camrman shores

Related parties

According to Accolrting Stardard Mo, 26 - Informotionr chaut reloted porties
fat the Cormparey 15 0% fal owes:

(i) Asseciate companies;
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25,

(i} Ingividuals with direct or indirgc* witing nghts in reparting emterprses that
leadd to sigrificant mflugnce ower Tnese enberprises, noloding Clese formiy
rermers of these individuals, Close formily memners of anindividual dre those
who con sonteal ar be cantralled by tnat pee son when dedling with o busiress
suLn s kather, Father, wife. Pusbhand, chilgdrer, bircthers, and 5 5ters;

(i) Key manogement employess bowe the rghts and responsibilies far
plorning, Franogmg and cantreling the actwties of the repot ng ente prisa,
including leogers chnod marogemert staff of the corapony and close family
rrernbers of these individuals,

(iv) Fater otises wherg the ndividuals ment oned in case (7] ar cose (i) diectly
et mdiectly nald an impartont part of the wvoting rights or througn this, that
persor has con bove ¢ signifcont mpact on the busingss, This ingludes
businesses thot are awned by the directars ar mojor sharehalders of *he
reporiing erterpose and businesses that shore o key rernzer of manageraen?
with the reportirg enterprise,

I comsidering eack relatiansqig betweenreloted porties, itis necessdny o poy
aftertior to tha noture af tne re ahoashig, not st the legal form of thoge
relotionships.

Aszsets, revenue and operating results by segment
Arepartoble segrment irclades Qusiness segment or o geagraphical segmeant

A buzingss segrment is o distinguishable companagnt of dn enterprige thot is
gngaged in praviding onoindividuol prodact of serdice of a group of relited
products or semvices and that s subiject t rsks omd retams that arg differant
frar those af oTer susiness segments

A geagraphical segrhent 15 o distinguishable corapenent of Qr erterprise thot
5 engoged N providing roducts or sesices within o parbicalor eeonamic
grvirgnmert aond that g subjest o risks ond setunsg that are different from
thoxse af Corsonents aperot ng inather ecobomy s envirgmrents

Fothe purpase of managemrent, the Camrpany aperotes in d lorge scale of the
Cauntry, ot presents madpo’ segrment esorting Dy L5iness sector, the minar
segrent reparting by genochpmico sagrment,
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V. ADDITICHAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWHN IN THE CONSOLIDATED
EALANCE SHEET

1. Cash and cash equivalents
Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Cash 183,549,150,657 74,531,B80,B65
ash or hand i3, b18 B E Fed, R (18, B el

Cash in boark (*)

Cazh equivalents

Bark depasit with tenm of lass thas 3
mMgAths [irterest rate: 1L6% - Eaayaar)
Total 271,5631,500,097  3124,257,431,673

154, 4840, 540,86] FA,4658,3 1,150
38,014,749,440  249,725,552608

AB,0114, F45, 4410 wAH, FehERY 8IS

(=) Of wbicn, the graount af bonk depasits being used as collateral ‘or laars of
ROG GA A JSC ard Adrgi Wird Frergy JSC (subs diaries] is Va0 vh6 06284, /84
{Bee note v b
2. Trade receivables

Cec. 31, 2024 31.12.2023

Value Provizion Value Provizion

a. Short=-term

656,444,229,847 (191,657,800) 117,800,737,762 -

Local customers

Reated poities (see Note

v 1) SL17,085000  (OBLAE LHO0) 13,1084 5,480 -
Fectric™y  Powa®  1rogle o . o
. . BI16, 715,191,140 - RhhEHE A SR -
Company (7
Othar Custamers 8,01 b, wd A - 6, A5, FEE,H S -
Foreign customers (USD
298,986.97)
leader  Enar Holgin

Sy s B,E16, 885,200 - - -
Rerhoe
leadar Fagrgy Wentures
- : b, SRS - - -
S0OM, BHIY,

b. Long-term

41,009,327,.331 - - -

Fectic™y Powsas 1rogle
Coampany (7

1,001, 3% 4, 5 A - - -

Total 697,453,557,78 (191,557,600}  317,800,737,762

(73 as ar s 200e and 310122005 the Srous has mortgaged the debr £ gims
arising from the power surchose cortrdet between the Grodp and b echnicity
Poseer [rade Campany far baak leans [ete v.in)
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The haolonce of short-tenm receiviiples of the Flecinicity Power 1Trogde Coragary
s ot e 31, 2004 includes the fo lowing rain itermn s

- 1he short-tenr recaivalle bolonce af the Hectnicity Powsr Trode Corazony s
Gt Nec, &, 2024 of Harwna - BOG Bong DUeeg Fiegy . ont $tock Campany (o
subsidiary - referred 10 g5 Honwha Bang Duorgy with the armount of v
FhASRNMBEBO/ fam the GALA Baldr Poecet Flart, Accarding ra the Government
INSRRCToIgie S Nanice Mo, 26 T H- 170 dored e, 7h, 2023, the GALL S0 dr Power
Float preject invested oy Hanwbo Bong Duang wos put into cammercial
lerdtian withodt the Departinert of Hecncity ong Renewable  bnergy
nszectirg the occestonce word and issuing o document cporovirg the
ivestor's ocestonce sty Howewer, by Lan. 24, 2020, Hoawne BAng 1Huchg
hiod the epotrvent of Hechncity ong Renewal e Fnergy afsroving The project
nooeptance esulrs.

- Snart-tenm and lang-tenm receivizles of the b ectndity Powet rade Compony
of Clenn bnergy Wision 2evelapment JSC (o subsidicy - refered o as Cean
Faergy] includes receivobles wh o vilug of YN 1247840049 Grising from
reverue that bas been seftled daring the year accarding ta the cantract,
canfract oependis sigaed before Decermbar 41, Y028 and up Lo this point, Cleon
Faergy has recovered the entre amourt recewables with o value of WD
103,30 888710 ansing from prowsicnol revenue cd CLlated oaodirg e the
celing unit poce for the electricity capac™y of phose 2 of Phu My | e 3 50 dr
Poweer Prgject in the period from ko 2003 {exclu{;ing rece wables Tngb howe
bt sattled accerdrg ta the pravisiond elect ity purchase pricae equol 1o 50%
of the cailing price seeaified in the cortract, opperdces signea sefore Dec. 4,
2024 “he Coragany 1os reached an aFficial electricity selling price oo eement
fon ths electricity copacity after the ng of *he fiscel year (Nate in sectian vz
+ Ragorching the astirmaled revanig for the 300 MWD Cogacity of P b4y T 5ol
Power Blant - Phase 7 fiom ddoy 2003 1o Dec 20248, the vwilug i (e, 30 2024
15 VNP ITLEALGEE T, The haa porties will moke settiertent of this amound within
1 e fiomn the effective date of the gmanded contract (Fetvugry 200h),

+ Ragorching the astirmaled revanig for the 3110 MWD coparcily of Pl My 3 Soior
Powar Plaot - Phase  from Moy 2003 10 Dacamibar 2024, the value ot of e,
AP0 i VR ALABE MR ERN The portigs mall moake serflermant of this omount
withun 2 yeoars fram the effective dote of the ormended contiact FApri) 205 5T,

Cleon Foergy uies the delat collaction nghts desing frerm the Pawer Purchose
Agragiment betwaon the Compony and the Powar Burchase Compony
sacurd (pons ar Yigthom Jomt Shock Sommercia) Bonk for industry ohd Irade
{higte 114 ),
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&g at Dec 3L, 2024, the balance af snot-tenm eceivaobles from castomers thot
wiere averdue frm O moatis 1o th mortbs bot had not yet made provisions
wieas VI 18R AIR 0,550, Hoveews: Th Feb, 2025 the Gioup recovers O partian of
the ooove detxt balance with fan crrount of WA 12403 HR0,008. Bosed an fha
informotion avo'logke of the dote of these cansalidered finoncial stotemeants,
the 3card of Mofagerneat assessed thot the abowve overdue debts we e
recaveratile and did nat make pravisions,

1. Short-term prepayments to suppliers

BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 — DN/HN
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fewr thre Fiseesn woar aomed Deceminam 310 705 Lirifs win
4. Otherreceivables
Deg, X1, 202 32023
Yalue Provizion Value Provizion
a. Short-term 5,77%,210,330,031  (408,055,966,182) 5,522,093, 196,071 -
L oth “vables from thid
. =INar TEEE wiialas rarm thl ESOEA4.229043 (306264057442 3205745173168
portics
Intorost recoivakie Tom loars.
fitoroet ToREhUli o loars IOCEFEE000 (3002041574421 3205 145173 164
{Iﬂl:lﬂsltﬂ. 1Pzt mmcn Cﬂﬂpﬂrﬂtlﬂn
Gopost for Ms. b “Fi Gigh ,
CRaatrertys. hglyen RIS 542 BAE BCD D00 (G2E4I5T442] 2345050008 615

Lar (7]

Value Provizion Value Provision
Ngénhgn
Local suppliers 694,762, 308,752 (1,025 506 600) 0G5 564,608 834 -

Copast “or Heor g Yu Gonerol
Procuctior  Imejzart [eport
Tra<'ng Serve'ce Co, Lta. (1)

Na.5%35. 220020

Re ated parties [see

nete VINLA)

P12, ERE, 010

b3, FEd,30 4,501

Rocoiwabsles Lndor business
COCPITATon contracts (v)

755 5G] 200220

Huynh Fhat By Qe

hAerbnzr 1o diﬁg
Service o, L

LR I T RN TN

B 03,815 4 100, 0

Arlyoinoos

1408572 534

(ICO0C0C00C0) 3032598000000

Cthors

503363 B0

JOB33TIEIED

HLJI‘I{_'E; | G CFenerD
1r|::|ding e, L]

Fa, 2 AE 6 L B0

FAPAE G A B

.z Other rocaivab os froes
relatocl parties [*)

4 250 526 107 7hE

(B?LBCEEID) 1327648032 6A3

e suppligrs

T 430,958,144

{1,0096, 5016, K00

145,14 4,156, 4 55

Copost ‘ar Tracodi
Construction Holdings J5< (i

29000 000 0C0

Foreign suppliers

Achvances ta K. Ooarg O'nh
Syt (il

B11416812 674

dcvances to ot ~or indiv duaals
|:' A
Wy

BCD D000

Rocoivobles ondor basinoss
COC Peration conkrocTs

411 791 635,067

2292 071455 067

142,837, 642,745 - 142,937, 642,745 -
{UsD 6,138,389

Povea ' g

Ifgneticrn Group 14285 B, fAR - 142 8E 4 R, FAR -
Firitesd

Total (*)} B37,719,851,497 (1,025,506,600) 1,708,502551,657% -

() Mainy prepayrerts o the Groups 1o peiforn supply ond coastructicn
CONtrocts foe Tha Growgd & Srojects, Howwaver, up M now, the project hasg ot yet
carpletadd the legal documents, 5o the nest work has net been camsd ot The
balgrce af prepoyraerts to the saler withaut € response canfirmaticn letter is
VNI 142 BE 7 A, AR,

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Imterost recoivalle ‘o loors,
busincss cooporation [v)

12BEF2A419,052

3070 |40 23T

thors

838440545

(BE71BCE R0 2012419 366

b, Long=-term

22, 507,299,906

= 500,250,948, 352

b . Sther rocoe wables from thiqd
portics

126 258,806

490 250 8498 JES

Intorost rocoivable rom lears.
bosinoss cooperglicn

473 100,000 000

La~g orm depasit

1,207 250,000

077 2c0000

thors

49 255 BCE

FCR=E 1IR3

b2, Sthar rocaivab os froee
reloted oortos (4]

11281 200,000

REHIHEHIH O H

Intorost recoivabkle rom loars.
busincss cooporation [v)

11281 280,000

QU

Tatal

5,795,717, 629, 537

(308,955,066,192) 5,123,24.4,144, 333
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el wiin
{*] Reloted party detai s sea Note Wil 3

(i) Purgticnt ro Resolution Me. b/ 2024 NG-HDQ - BOGE signed an NRec 31, 2024,
the Board of irectors of the Cormpdry cpproved g rranster of lgad use aghs,
hioLse cwrership rghts and ofther essets attgoched My land of 13 plats of land
lagated in | ac Cuang Corariune, 300 Lom distich Lom Dong provinee owred Dy
M, Nguyen Thi Bicn . an On tha sdme day, the Sompoiny and 5. Nguyen Th
Hick Ton sigaed o cortract on deposit ond panciples of lond use aghts frangha
signedd en Dec, 31, 2024, [e fransfer pericd is O year from the gote of sigrng
the comtract or o lenger perod dependirg on the agreement of the parties of
euch fime.

(i} 12enosit for the tronsfer of 17,190,000 shares, accounting for 29% of the charrer
capdl of 3G Virk lang JSC [currerely alsa o subs diary of the Corasarry ) from
Haorg Vo General Productiaon - hrpart - Feport - Troding Service Cormpany
limited under the snore purchdse canfroct WNo, w2 HOMBO R 4y - BOGE
sighied o Decermbier 31 2074 witk a trangfer price af WD 25 196,200,000 A of
the ddote of this repert, the oo partie s howe fat pet cdrried cut the farsfer.

(i) Denposit for Mgcagi Canstraction Group JSC (former nome  Ingustricl
eve oprrent and Trongpart Ineestmert JSC) [Trocodit oceording 1o the
gepas targfer arder dotedd Aug. 30, 2024 By Jul | 2006, aecording ro the
payrient corfirmotion rminutes Ma Q0725 BOGEVI- 100D deted July 1, 2008,
Trocodi acknowledged  ong agreed 10 confinm the  amrount of WD
F9,000,0005,000 thot the Cornsary ransferred 1o Trocodi or Alg 30, 2024 03 the
e 0sit to engure the sigrirg of the Contract o trong’er the capita cantnzutian
prvhiedd By Trocood of WD AGBDO DD D af Thanbh Mguyen Brargy meestraen?
ord Developmant Compory Linited (@ saesidicary], equaivalent *o 49% of the
chorter conitcl of  “harb hguyen  Frsqgy meestraent and Developrnat
Company Himited with the taesfer wvolle WD ISSOCOOO.000 after the
frerscUisibe s re mst,

(iv}) Advonces o M Dang Jirk Quyet far the purpese of site cledrgnce for the
Graup's prajgcts Inchoding dodvances from BOG ien Bieh Dong Wind Paves: Jaiat
Stock Compory Gnd Atan Jeint Stacs Corapary {bvo sussidiarias] ra mMr ang
1iah Quyer (DepLty Genera Director of BOG Erergy Jaint Stock Corapimy | with
fvglue of WRID 345499 hillian on Koy 24, 7024 and Jun, 79, 2074, 1hese odvances
wis nade fram the company’s bank accaunt immediately ofter BCG Frerdgy
Joiat Srack Corrpiony ond other shorebolders cordnibated copital to thase hwd
subsicl drigs.
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Details of receivables from investment and business cooperation (BCC) os at Dec. 31, 2024 are as follows:

Short-term

Profit distribution of BLC
Curirg the project construction poricd: The Group

enjavs a “xed pro'it of not less thar $%fyear ontho

Khoi Leng S0 Moo Tousist Argag teool contributed capral balor oo

Wnd ocawer Plact Froject Prasc |

i
1, ]
=
[+
L3
=
B
o
2]
]

BCC termm

amount [VND)

BCC PaOrtner

Atear oxIonsion:

GC G <hai

Atter the pproject cortos imto aperation, hos revenuo.

framn &pr 20, 202

QE13ESS D67

"BE

La~g 1Wina
Paower JSC

ig imeested by MEG Khoi Lomg 1 <-d gererdates pro® orofiz distribatio is asod on

cctool pusiness results reultplicd oy v} tmo contributed

caoital rokia;

Wnd Fawer 502,

D225

1o Apr. 2

shor.

The projoct is under co=stra

The partics hiows
agroed to

khai Lo~g wWir<d Fower Pan:

Curirg the project coenstructen poricd: The Group
cnjovs a “xed pro'it of net less thar :fyvear ontho

total con

GC G <hai

Prasc 2 Procct is invostod by

GES Khai _ong 2 wnd Foower

termnoke thie

SGD

-
—

G237, 7

Lang 2 wi~d
Powno- LS50

ribuzed coapital kalance

T cooperatian
an Desz. 250 2024,
% ~antks fronn

ko daoate of

i

Atter tho project cortes imto aperation, has revenac.

t.al

-
-

<I~d goncratos profit pro't skarng is lrased on a
busiress resqlts mulipliod by (3 the copital

signing the
cortroct

456593,200 000

(.2

cantriodtiaon rat o

Tom Sith

The 90 Farmne-(Cantro ling Porty is the parey that

CIstributos the protics.

Waste 1o

Tom

Mghia

3'nh Mghi
v 2ot Projoct

Ime sl mcrt

(Nylaldw]

Acoarcling to the actoal situction o-d profits of tro

=

Covelopr-cnt

% ~anths fron
Aog. 20 2024

hiz

r'luticn roTice.

The protit dist-ibat’on 'l De corr'ea autan

cantract tormninatios oo

prgjoct dccarcling Lo the capital con
cgroeertcnt o the Portics.

RO E N I s R

(.2

1
0
:
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E. Receivables from loans
Crec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Value Provizion Value Provizion
a. Short-term 509,202,506,502 (163,454,483,575) 109,645 483 576
Reates parties (see _ .
AR A0, (ReR2I0000,000]  0H,088,483,8 5
Mate WIIL,4)
b Powier 1050 126,016,423,9 58 (10/,244,483,0/4) -
Cthers g0, 3% (000,000 - 03 FCI0T00, 0011
b. long-term 187 557,000,000 -  10,698,022,627
Re ates parlies (see )
154 ¢, 58 P16 103 - W0, EEE, 9 B
Mate Wl ,4)
Total (*)} 706,799, 506,802 (163,454, 483,875) 120,343,506 502

(=) laore are hased an specific loan controcts and controct extension
oppetcices, laoan tenrs carge flam 12 months to 36 menths . odn nterest rates
ore based on egch cortract, wh a roximum of 14,085 vear

Cfwhicn, the lagr helonce ot Decermoet 1, 2004 i udes:

= The balarce loan recemab & romm 306G Kho' oong 1 WIird Power Joikt Slacd
Company | Khai iy I i5 WMIZ 222 BR0000,000 grd the rermncining lean intergst
receivable i YD LOOLEE BED Khai Long |is negoticting the bid srice wath the
gererdl controctos After that, Khai Long el centinue the constraction imems o
ot e proect ikto operatian. The Boord of Moaagement 55es5es the feasibality
tard the ability fo deve op the abows Wik Power PI0nt ropect 'nae utune o5 high.
Therefo e, the Hoord of Monagernent Gelewes thot therg (s a pasmbility of recovary
org ssesses that therg is no provis on that needs ta be rade for the difficulty in
recavering the gatire principal and interest af the leon of Kagi Toag 1

= The halance oF nsecured loan eceivib s 10 Tom Sinh Nghic Ivestment -
Dervg pRImEnt JEC ang TSN Taag A S0 with o tare] wolue af WD 500,000,000,
ug to the lacs of sufficient approsriare evidence o acourataly determing tha
recoaveribile net volue af this itremoatb the tre of prepoeng the finoacio
staternents, the Bood af Monogament appled the srudence sringc’ple ond
deciged to make ¢ provision of IC0% of the Gook v e,

¥ 122 ANNUAL REPORT 2024
i,

O

ENEEUT

BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Form B 09 — DN/HN

MOTES TG THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Fewr thre Fiseesn woar aomed Deceminam 310 705 Lienfs i

6. Capitol construction in progress

i} Krong 2a 2 Salar Fower P art Frolect ool o8h . 4,62 TE2, 489196805
(il Deng Tharh 1'Wind Fowe- Plont Project LLENB D0 RRE (54,247 0E4 A0
(i Dong Thonh 2 'Wind Power Plant Projsct VAE07,£08,043 T091C,802,204
(iv]  Wingmilk Juong Wgaoi 2 2oottop 2awer Project B7E,57,430 B,70E,D2E4
(iv]  Yingmnilk Cuong SNgci 3 Koottop Power Project 8794538, B,7659.052.919
(iv]  wincrile iauang Moai 4 koofiop Fower Project BIBS27,802 84002007
(iv]  wincrile iyuang Mgai & Foofiop Fower Project o, LLGLEY,B4S 428,330 0h0
fiv]  Yinoraile Zuang Mgoi G koottop Fower Project TR RC L 1 RTREL A KR
{iv] Power Flgn: Project Fhase 2 3aGCR2E 8T S, 057,083,230
(vl BCG Sac Trarg  Wind *ower Plant Projsct MLEEY BR300 BN an3ET2
Krong 2a 2 3alar Fower P art Fro ect 8,456,054],073 £E96,200,66
Tetal 1,102 226 502,008 1,072,.431,031,4943

(i) “hisis coo’ral constrection in proqress of the Krong 2a 2 Solar ®ower Plant Project
invested by Thamh Mguyen [nergy Irvestment ord Revelop~ent Co, Lid. ~he praject
has been opproved tor irvestment paicy under Decision Mo, 239/30-UEBYD dated
Moy 25 20°8 ond Decision No. 534/ Q2-UBND datea Oct. 15, 2023 approvirg the
odjustrment of invesiment poicy and approving the Investar of Gia Lol Provinciol
People's Comrittes. Al propsrty rights o the Krong Fo 2 project have bsen
rmortgaged for tne bond issuonce with cooe TNEC] 2227001, ssued from Dec. 8, F0E2.
under Morigoge Controct Mo, 02022/ TCD75-KRONGRAZ!TPS-"HE datea Dec. 15
£N22 A% the tirre of tnis repert, the Growp nos been qpproved o odjust ke
investment colicy ond approveao the project irvestor on the progress og fo [ows:

+ [or 21 WMwWp project; Commercial apsrotion ot workloas in G4/ 2025,

+ [or 268 MW p project: Cor-mercia operation ot worklooao in G4/ 2026,

“he bolonze asat Dec. 1, 2024 of this pra’ecrincludes construction costs equprren:
puUrchase Costs, compensation, sapport and -esettlement cosks wit~ o 1otal va ue of
VWG TOFNE 825753, capitalized interest costs o' WHO 89358375342 and ather
projgct-relnted costs, “his project is currertly ¢ colloteral for bonds isswed oy Thann
WL yen Energy Irvestrment and Development Zo, Lid. occording to Mote W5

(ii}) "his is coptal conssruction in progress of the Dong Tranh |Wwird Power Flont
Frojectirvested by Jong Thank 1'Wind Power Co. L1d {n subsidiary} This project was
npproved tor the first irvestrert polcy Jroer Dezision Yo 213/UAKD-KT doted Feb.
26, 2021 ond opproved tar the secord odjusimen: of the invesiment palicy wnder
Decision Na. 1045/ 50-UBND doted Jun 14, 2054 issued by the Feople's Committes of
“ravinn province On fen 28, 20239, the Company was granted the rigot o use the
cenqgrea by the Feople's Committee of Tra Y nh provnee under Oecision Mo, 392/50-

BCG ENERGY }::F
- lu-:-l-:?l
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Fewr the Fisesd enar anmed Decomiae 310 205
LB, The bo cnoe a5 ot Dec. 31, 20E< 'noludes the cost ot purchog ng egquipmert ot
VNG QB LODGEE T copital zed interest expense iz WHD ASL35 7SR and otner costs
relored o the project as at Jon. 01, 2024 ond Jec. 3. 203£4 al aszets onc =0l
docoments of the Dorg Thanh 1 Wind Powe- Plont project hove ogen used to secare
the conof Au-qiwind [nergy J3C TsE2E note V1), At the time ot nreparing this repars,
the project implemertation preqress is Renind the approved schaoule. Howeawer, the
Ganerg Director ossecses that the “uture realizebls ret wa ue of the oroject is not
impaireq,
(iii) ~his i canitcl construction e progress ot the Dong Thonh 2 Wnd Fower 2lant
Frojectinvested by Dong Thank 2Wind Fower Co., _rd. (@ subsidiory). This project has
besn oporoved for imvestment policy oncer Decision ho 12770 JBND - KT dated Apr.
Y, 202 and approved for the thiro adjustment of invesiment oolicy under Decizion
Mo, 1048, Q2 - UBMD dotad sur 14, 2024 issued by the ecple s Committee of Tra Wink
provnce. Or Jun. 7, 2024 the Company wos assiqned therright to use the 520 aren
by the People s Committes ot “ra Vinh provnce under Decision Na. 1089/ 50 - UBND.
“he balance as ot Dac. 31, 024 includes consultirg and nanagemsrt costs with a
total valae ot YHDO1E,32:.888,700 coptalized interest experse iz WHD £7.523146 ard
otner costs related to the pro’ect ds atJom N1, 2024 and Dec. 37 2022, al assets ard
legol documents ot ke Deng Thank 2 Wind Fower Flant project Fove been used o
secure the loan of Auroi Wira Cre-gy JEC (see note W19}

U i

(iv] 2z 0t December 1. 2024, tnese projects are collaternl for the loors stated in kote
Wa

7. Financial lease assets (Transportation & facilities)

Cpening balance INGrense
LA ATIIC
273BA2BEE 234756,708

955 589,904

Decreqse  Tlosing balance
"2A3ATIIa0
SCE B3I 534
723,833,196

[isToricsl cost
Accunmlgioc depreciaticon
Met book value

lease enewal o aght 1o purchose the asset The Group wil purchose the osset ab o
purchase price egudl B the remoring walue of the asset ofter tne lease tenm expirgs,
WG 5 RIS 1 R00,000000,
8. Intongible assets [Project investment license}
Decreqse  Slosing balance
A20,B36 0453 652
TO02191268G  C191Nal7E 27193205544
405,624,752 385 393,633,638,108

Cpening balance Increass

[HsSTOrCs Cost 4Z0,BZ6 043 BOY
Accunilgioc Jepreciation

Met ook value

The carrying valee of intangible Yixca assets pleaged/mortgoged o3 lsan scourty: none.
The origing costs of intangible tixed azscts fuly deprociated ot <till in uso: noec

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 — DN/HN

MNCTE= TC THE CONSCLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

T e B waoar aormed Decomnom 31

el vwiin

8., Doubtuldebts

Jan. 01, 2024

Book Recoverchble

Dec. 31, 2024

u
a
=
%
4]
)
T
o

Cebtors

Cebtors

Book value

amount

value

amount

= Total overdue or undue

receivables and prepayments to

475 B57,020,184 2 228 515 687

suppliers that are unlikely to recover

Receivabiles: or dehlirs
puverdug more

yErr s

tHhor 3

W, FEE 5 TR

F Poester 1050

Develapment JS0C
150 Lo AN S50

1o =inh Mahio Irveshirert
Mege: Salar J50

S LTI,

Promisicn (1000 )
Promisicn (1000 )
Promisicn (1000 )

B 3,20 (0,00
T AR NIRRT H

Receivable: or debits

cverdue from B months

b 1 yeors

A, HEE, PO

B, 5,00

Reccivoohes from ofther CLsiomers

Receivabiles or  debits

L/8Learnaar owerdue frgtm & mgnths

5,5 16,5 5,E T

e receivolples

b 3 years

Prowisicn (1005 )

The -ecovergble amolrr presented ig the partian of the net amauant of receivosles thot hos net been srovisionsd for becoase ™

hog not exceeded the prescribed averdue paiiad,

1176, R 1E, B

Prepoymments 1o ofner supplies

BCG ENERGY ?
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BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Fewr the Fisesd enar anmed Decomiae 310 205

12.

13.

14.

Prepaid expenses

a. Short=-term

8,777,245,122

Form B 09 — DN/HN

U i

Cec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2074

B,452,4591,05%

Tels and sLpplies owaiting for
aall Catich

AR LTS

w RS 30 ER7

INgJdriarncg {:-.-.-ﬂiT'ﬂg for allacartion

h5P4,004 555

Bang service axoenses

1310 EEL, 136

Credit Qency edpenses

1,010,454

Emer expenses dwaiting far sllocarion

(RSN = o

b, bk, 7,447

b. Long-term

658,713,347,344

61,131,031,553

g Jrance Leit ng for allocarian

2o (176, b P, A4

v, 4% 4 HER, FEY

lond ¢ edronce g¥panses

71, 05,840,074

199 5354780

Prepaiod load rental oawairing far

) b, B9 006,514 1,0 A,27 4 E1h
clloc cation
Teols and sLpplies owaiting for _ o

_ 248,200, AE, 5 6
aall Catich
Ctmer expenses dvwaiting far sllocarion 0,83L,375.473 14,,888,4323:58

Total

79,490,556,666 69,583,525,052

Ceferred income tox asselts and Deferred income tax liakilities

Cec. 31, 2024

Jan. 01, 2024

a. Deferred income tax oszsetz incurred from temporarily deductible

difterences:

- Unrealred qaing related ta sales

witlin the Sraup

8,180 06, B S

a,bh8, 401,250

Total

g,180,006,533

B,558,450,265

b. Deferred income tax liabilitiez incurred from temporarily deductible

difterences:

- NDifferance due b revdloation of fon
vidloe af sussidicres ot ooqusiiion date

S, A AN B

S AEN0PE,844

Total

78,722,404,687 79,350,028,044

Good=-wil

Cec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2074

Goodwill orging from the Groups
ncgJisition af subsigicries

b 5,310,215 48

B, BEE, 6 E, 174

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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MCTES TC THE CONSCGLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Ul wiin

Fans

e thie Breen wnar oo Decominonm 31

31.12.2023

o
=]
o™
=
0
(=]

Amount to be able

Amount to be able

1,386,183,332,10% 1,223,109,690,620  1,223,109,690,620

1,386,183,332,109

a. Short-term

Local suppliers

A8, 88 07h, M3
ADA,IE (158,490

A8, 88 09, S5
ADA,IE (158,490

168,014,245 504
Alh,d R, 7 8014

1EE,H1/,240 504
Alh,d 7R, 22,8014

Payabiles to releted porties (e Nate w1 13)

Powearching viet Mam o, 1T,

Raoresantative office of Paweachiro Jiongxin
Fectric Power bnginesritg o, d. in Vietnomn

219,50, i, 44

218G, 4

PR TA R R

218,930, HE3, 444

R THE R IH RN IH

VIR TH AR N AR TH

"I £arig

Mr Hgo LG

1B, 18 50, 2 uE

T, T 5, P

LAl R LA LIRS NN AY

PR AR Ry

Cithers

Foreign suppliers (USD 2,028,172.67)

Pomerercbine

Flectric V=]

..Jimg %in
| ted.

Ab,BEE, AP E S

Ab,BEE, 4B E

R1,H7L 14,240

ETLHYH 14,30

b. Long-term

-

Fagingearing Ca,

250,864,145 604

166,157,333,090 250,864,145 604

169,157,333,280

ThILEE 145 H0Y

ThILEE 145 H0Y

316, AR 155, J5

AR, TR, 1A JE

Payaliles to releted porties (e Nate w1 13)

Cithers

L ETLT AP

1,755, 340,666, 089 1473973636 618

LT T AL IE

1,755,340,666,089

1,473,073,B36,618

Total {*}
{*3 17 whic, the bolance payvahle to supp isrs inclades:

he overdus olonce of poyob ez to sapoliers is VD 12057620862, The Compary aklwoys believes in tg ability to arronge funding

sources to ensure the abil'ty 1o poy thase poyobles 1o sappisrs

;-

ion Croup Corporation arc the Sroup has

-
3

2 231

-
a
=

er g MO ZE7527,

he lorg-term supplier payahble oqlonce as ot Jec. 3, 2024 belongs to Trocooi Corstruc

he Galance poyvable o supplers without o response confirmat on let
reached aon agreemert 1o extend tne debt until Dec 31, EN26.

+ -
-

BCG ENERGY
PREEL S
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MOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
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16. Short-term occrued expenses

Cec. 31, 2024 31.12.2023

Accruad payable 1 lroced Covstraction Gradp
Conporatian (Relared party - See note wiLae) (1)
Barroawing irrerest, bond infgrest excense

10,312,035,073 -

L1535 48,1904 206 EEDE. 0

lerrpargry incrense in fived assets costs SN LR
RO imterest expanse o 18 56 AP 8140, 88E,800
Dthers 32002 EEBA ThEdh, IR0, R0
Total (*} 284743649258 265181718, 6813

() These are the corstruchion costs of the Krorg Po 2 Solor Power Plont priject
C G P o CONStrucian Contrasts No O R0o9 [HIWA TH_ G0 goted Jon 9, 2022 and
Mg, S B0 T8 =100 HIX doted Dec 20, 200 and arteches appendices

17. Qther poyables

Cec. 31, 2024 31.12.2023

a. Short-term 184,7886,872,612 189,30%8,03%,132
Lnior dues ang moanddatary insJdrence poyments W, P00, AL BT
Povakile 1o related pont es (Mare WIL3) E,14514 5 R a8, 0,0 P
- hveshiment coopanation cantract poyaile f,d AR RO 1, S, S O, O
- BOC interast exppense, DosrQwing mtergst P, AT, Madd TR I e P
- Igthe peryrnant inrarast AN FALAST -
RO imterest eepenge, interest paydble 1o
thirgd proart e

Dividends poyable

Otnes poyables

b. Long-term

westment coosartion cantroct payesle (i)
Total (*}

WL FILESH AW 1206, SHSLHE teh

P 1AR, ] R -
FAGD FAD A3 13,547, 2035 0130
£56,000,000,000 E56,000,000,000
Sk, (0301 010300, (10310] ShE, (0301030, 010310]
1,028,785,6872,612 1,045,309,038,132

(*} of whicn, the ather poyahle bolonce witnaut ¢ response confirraatian leter is WD
A A AR R
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o thre Finesn pnar aomed Decnminm 30 205

Henfs 0

1 as at Dec, 31,2054 ore as follows:

.\_
-

(i) Details of the ba ance poyable ham leng-tenT business cooperation [RCE

=
10
=
£
[ =4
hes
2
£
oF
=
=
=
B
Lk
b=
i =
[
i =
E
r

Thi han BCG

S0 tién YND

BEn gép BEC

Iveshment

Cofperatian in

arnocunt  af  the

Curi~g the 2rocc: <onstruction porigd: poitimdm

053 vecs on the contrlutior

Wing Powe Flan® conmributing Party

13y Tkt 1
frraject

2afaf200
2316205

200,200 2C0.0C0

Gz Loind

After t-o Projoct ig (>at into aperation based on actual

buosircss resu ts gcocorcitg te che capitol cotribotion

Iveshment

SoTowCly ST

Protit distribautican will o caried qut once o year tromm

iC g1 thez tirne ot distril>aticn,
Wing Powea: Plant tra oo of copital cortributor.

L% ]

casperatian in
Der Thonk Y

207
23061205

23/

196000 DC0000

freaject

Iveshment

I0.5% wear o the actual amcount co-triboted by the

casperatian in _
ConTributcT

54 D12 E021 HE

v
£
=
2
=
.
'
2
= o
— -
=
o o=
L o
— o
&z
2
=
]
=5
2
—
=
S
= 1o
=3
o
e ]
o
=
bl
o
=
.
o
=
2
'q-
o
L]
=
-
=
L
=
e
]
=

Prctit sharirg will be carried oot periadically overy B

freaject

B56,000,000,000

Tatal
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MOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

P thre Bscnan paar anrned Desnmine 31 PR L Wikt
Cetail of borrowings and financial leaze liabilities is as follows:

(i} shart-tenr unsecured orrowings fram companies occardirg o specific barrowing
cantricks Harrdwing termm i 12 manths nhecast rates range iom 0% - 10 (R My,
Barreesing purpose 13 o supelernant vweark ro cdpital.

(if} Shart-tenr barrcwing from Sermboorp snerdgy Wistnam Project | Pre Ttd under <
specific bor-awing agreerment, The barrowing tenm 75 12 ronths, "he purpose of the
bvor saring i 1o supplement working copital. 1vterest rate s % fyaar, The bolonce os o

@

ENEEUT

BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 — DN/HN

MOTES TG THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

Fewr thre Fiseesn woar aomed Deceminam 310 705 Lienfs i

Mame of the

guarantor company

BCCr CoalA 5

Collateral

- Copitgl cortribution to Hagwha - BCG Bong Duong Cnergy J50
ond BTG - Bang Duong Crerngy JSC;

- Accounts recewchle, bonk accounts, bonk deposits and
equiprment

Copital cortribution to B2G GalA )52 Hanwha - BCG Bang

g, A1 202405 50 2 A0000000,000 enju e ale At to WD SESE 000,000,

o loterdl for this :::-n::-rrt:-wing incluges:

Woma of the quarantar

company

Aurai Wind  Energy
JALC

Collateral

- Copital cortriogtion to Dong Thank - Wind 2ower Co, Led

- Copital cantribation to Cong Thann 2 Wind fower Co. 1td ]

- all bark occounts of Aurgi Wind Enargy J5C ot Hom A
Cormmearcial Joint Stack Bark, O~ ent Commearciol Jaint 3tock Bank,
Vietnam Joink Stock Commgrc'cl 2ank for [ndusty ond Trade,

Dong Thanh 1 Wira
Fowser Co., Ltd

- allossets ond egol decuments of 2ong Thank D Wind Fower 2 art
Froject;
- &l bonk deposit accounts at Mom A Commenzia Jaint 3tock Bank,

BCE Energy J5C [wong fnergy J5C: BCG - Bang Dueng [nsrgy JSC: Deng Thanh

CwWind Power Co. Ltd and Oong Thanh & Wind Power Co, L1d,

l'arwha - BCO Bong Froperty rignts atigng trorm contracts and other movahble
Duong Energy J3C OSEEE.

BCG Bang Ducng Energy  Froperty rignts atisng trom controcts and other movahle
JEE n55ets,

bAr. Nguyen o Yam Lrrillion snaraes in Barmboo Coptal Group,

- E2.500 shgres gt BCO GRlA I5C;

br. Phormn Kimh Tuon
) - £.2689 million snores at Bomboo Capital Sroup.

ke tlaang Th Minh Chau 900 shargs at BCOS GALG 15C,

Deng Thanh 2 Wind
Fowser Co., Ltd

- allassets ond egol documents of 2ong Thann 2 Wind fowe- Plont
Froject;
- &l bonk deposit accounts at Mom A Commenzia Jaint 3tock Bank,

BCS Khai Lang 1'Wind
Fower .5

- allossets ond egol doecuments of the Kha' Long Tourist Area Wind
Fower Flan: Project Fhase |,
- &l bonk deposit accounts at Mom A Commenzia Jaint 3tock Bank,

BZS Kkhoi long 2
Wind fower J502

- allossets ond egol documents o Khai Long Wind Power Plant
Froject Phose &
- All bonk deposit acocounts at Maom A Commenzia Jaint 3tock Bank,

B3 Khoi Leng 3
Wind fower J502

- &llossets ond egol documents o Khai Long Wind Power Plant
Froject Fhose 3:
- 4l ponk deposit acocounts gt Mom A Commencig Joint Stock Bonk,

BCG Wira oc Trang
JEL

- allossets and legal docurnents of BCG 5o Trang VW nd Fower
Flant Project;

- Bank depost accounts ot BCG Wind Soc Trong Wind Power J5C at
Mors & Commnerciol Joint Stock Bork orao Fhuorg Dong Comr-ercial
Loint Stoce Bork.

Bamboo Copital
Croup

Copital cortributiar to Hgwha - BCG 2ong Duong Ensrgy L5355 ACG
- Bang Duong tnergy J5C.

& 199 ANNUAL REPORT 2024
s,

(i) lang-terr unsecured borrowng Fram Bombod Capita Groun accord ng o
goch specific odn Gontrach Rorrowing term unti Mow, 19, 2205 Barrosing
puranse i M purchase, netdll equipmert and construch wind poweer 2lart
project Inteiest rate s 15% fyeo

{iv) lang-tenm unsecured borrawing from Semicarp Fhergy Yietnom o, e, for
the purpese of supplermaatng the woarkicg cdpitol of BOG GAlA S0 [
subsigiary} The ortowing e s 02 yedrs fam tng datg of o sburserasnt with
the gotian o repay the lagn early when possib e ar extend the roturity daote uatl
BOG Galn )50 completes the repoyment of outstoading debirs erd athe:
canditians according te the debt restructuring praposal with 235 Bank L,
singoparg ond Cilifford Copital Pre. Lid. Interest rate it 8% vaar, [he baleroe oz
af e 31 A02d 75 VR 20, R0O0 N A BB,

{v] Darails of I - terrr Borrowing s froem Danks

- Details af borwings friim Vigthom Joint Steck Cammercial Bomd For Incuastey
ond Trode ore 0s ollows:

+ nugshment profect DOFFWING Controct N, S8 AHIRDCVANDTFNRC TR44-M 5
dated Dol S, X0F0 and The doclument armending ond sogpiementing the
veshiment  project o cofrasth owithy o mcxomum fatod wale of WD
AEZRODNNLAND for the purpose of inanacing the constrhcon nvestimeant of
Fhis py S0lor Povvdr Plant Progect - Phase T ond Phose 7 The e s 126 moanths

BCG ENERGY iﬁ:

aclelalde

:.?|.
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Fewr thre Fiseesn woar aomed Deceminam 310 705 Lienfs i

frorm the dahe the Dorronver wathoionas e st Dosrowing  Inlarest rate 15
datenringd by the sowmgs mobilizohon ntarest kote n VD plug o oanlmlm
rargin of 4% vean. 1he collotecal for the Borowing (5 the propeety oltnchad to
the Jand Foomed in the fubuie and all reo! estate Delergling to Pho My Solar Pouer
Flont Phase 1 andd Phose ¥ {Note V700 the dght o clgam debt arising from the
Povear Purchoge ong ol confroct between the Company and the Pouer
Puvchose ood Sole Cormpdny frote vl ol shares ang relarad Fights in Hhe
Compony OF M Noven Von Tus, ME Hul Thanf Pom, L eocler Fnargy {vigtriom)
Fre o angd BOG Feergy J8E The bolonce as ot Dec, 5 2004 Jg VWD
LA S35, 6540, of witich the long-trer loan due s WNFY 222, BR0000,000

+ Investment profect borguing contract No. 8572058 R0cynant iNRC TRdd-1 5
dated  Oct 24, 2nr4 ond  controct  apgendic No,o 35 2024-ANCVAIT -
P NRCTIA-N S dated Oct 2R, 024 for imvestmant project Joams with o
FAEITIA OLGl weie af VNEY @200 for the purpose of payving iegol
veshiment costs of Ph My Solor Poder Profect Cluster - Phase 1 The term 1g 139
months fiom the date the ook disburses the first Bosrowing larest rate s
determinad Dy the saemgs mealzahion nfeeast iote m VN plas adcitionol
capital mokalization costs end g raniruem o glo of S veoe However, of the
tFng Gf sigeing fhus SONRRCE, the Borroneen 15 enjoang o preferentiol mterast rale
of B.3%/vaar for Wi orrgnvngg for g omaxrmern of omenths o e hrsl
disbiarsemnant dote, The collotaral for Hhe booowmg 75 secorad By colictendl
ganers wndar the termys of alhar valld lean conhraols The Bocrowing bolonce os
o e, AL 202 is VNG GAE 00006000, of which the leng-terrm Dorrowing dugs for
FACIy et 5 WY AL GO, O ERG,

- Barrpeving bam Ten Prgng Commercial Joint Stock Bonk undes long-ter
bnr sgneinag COREFEICS No, B 2020 HITR TIKHRML N2/ doted Jan, 4, 2020 The
tenm i urkdl Jon th, AOE6, Irterest rate s Of Dec 41, Y0548 05 B h% - 1[2-.[]'.1".?*'-,;"'}'&{“.
The purps s is 20 fitdnce the inveshrent Costs of the Mnedo Winh Lorg Sa ar Pauwer
Plant Project, The ca loteral for this barrGewing is the prapetty aftacned ta the o
farmedir the future crd the aght te ¢ gim debt arisng fram the power purcgse
canfrict. “he bolonce s of e, 31, 7024 is WD hhi 374,078,848, of whick the
lerg-tent loom dug for poyrment is VNI 4/,858 Ehd Bae,

- Barrgeving frorm Visgthom Morrtime Cormmencic Lot Stock Benk under o specific
credit cantract, The term "s until Fely, | 05, Interest rate og at e 31, M074 05
t s year {according ro Official Msporch Mo 08/20e0Cv-MsE dated Apr 4,
PUDY, Gnnodnaing the adjustment of inferest rote to A3%) year until Aar 4, P0oh)
The purpose s M fingrce the construction cost af the Rooftap Solor Power Plaat
Frovect The oo lateral for this sorrowing 15 the rocftap salar power systam of fhe

ANNUAL REPORT 2024

Sussichary at Go oty SLpesnoret 1on Cong [ang Biah KD are,  ong Bob eedrd,
Hiern Hoo city, Dong MNai srosince - af the worehouse of Tan Winh Cou J5C, 1ohng
Binm, Ber Heq, Jong Mai The balgrce o5 of (e 31, 2004 i YN 22407407307, of
which the loag-tenm o rowing dae for payrent is VMR B.BEBE. 888,204,

- Barrgawing Fram Wighnorm Progperity Lont Stack Commercial Bond - Ben Thanh
Branch undar Dorrowng ogresment Mo, BE SPEAn coted e 18, 2000 and
BEMS20226-07 dated Dac, 27, 2040, 1he tarm is Ll 2ec. 18, 2027 Interest rate s
13.8% ] veon Borrow g purpose is 10 inve st it solor power project, The oo loterdl is
the rooftop sa dr power systam of Vindmilk Guang Moai 1 pro’ect, debt cellectian
Fighets, udrarntes af Mr. SNguyan Ho Nars {Fanmer Charmgn of the Compony ) and
all shares of the Campany af Seglor J5C. The 20 dnce 0 af e, 31 2004 15 VNI
100,438 hud 4

- Barreewing From RS Bonk TR, Dingopsre unaet o specfc coaedit agresrnant. The
Bordeirg termn s whtil Jan 30, 2038, Ivterest rate s SOFR + 2 lveor, The surpose
f the harrgwing “s to fingace projects, 300 contracts and buginess plons, ha
balence as b e, 31, 028 05 5D J0448 S8R0 equivalant fa WD AR NES ABE AR,
of whicn the lorg-tenr Botrowirg cue iz LED b1V B aguivdlent ta WD
130LH 71 0HE 270

Ca loteral for thes B raveing ing udas:

Name of the guarantor
Collaoteral
company

Capite contribaticor to HROG GALA IS0 Hamans - BEG
Barg Raoag Free gy JBO 09 BCG - Boang Do
I-nErg'!,.' S0

BCG Frergy S0

- Capitg corributon 1o Ao ho - BEG Bang Muohg
By JEO g BEG - Barg Duong Fnesgy J50;

- &l boaak aocolnts at [DAS Bank - Ho Chikink City
Bigrch:

- Al rights end berefits oosing fror the bus ness
Casperatian contract,

BOG GAls I

Crapitdl contribiation 1o Honvahio - BOG Bang Dueng

Barazon Caprtal Group . . -
Foeegy JEOC 00 BEG - Bong Duang Erefoly 50

- &l boaak aocolnts at [DAS Bank - Ho Chikink City
Big:irch;

- All real egtate and pee sonal properrty Belonging 1o
the project;

- All rights ¢rd nterests ariging fram the project

He:Peahid - BOCG Barg
i =hergy s

BCG ENERGY
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. . . . |\ w i oo > F F = £2 =
vidlue of WA REO killion, “he representative owner of the bond is Ten Pheng E -4 ol 3 o o o TL R ::‘ AR g
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b. Owners contributed copital in details

% of
. Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024

shareholding
Baragon Cap+al Group AF 1M 3,483 (00 00000 98,000,000, 0100
h%, L Thi Mo oo 4.7d% 40, N0 0], T 240, (LT, G

RS, Ryl i K
} 2.00% FI0 G]G0 100, CT0 1, 010000
LIy

it sharebolders Ah BEY 3,530, 000000, 10100, 01030 3,16, (0100, 1030, 010100
Total 100% ¥,300,000,000,000 7,300,000,000,000

c. Capital transactions with owners and digtribution

Owners’ capital

Al the Reginning of the wedr
ORI ted COfaton merectied
cringg e veon

Confribnstes copntol decracrsed
cringg e veon

Ced TR CPOICN CICRR CRTIT 2 SO O AR (R

- OO OO OO C)

At the end of Hhe pericd ST RO IR, OIS TS SRR O CROMC, (IS TS
Dividends, profit distributed - -
d. Shares
Mumbe s af shores regsteres for issodnce FEOLD00,D000) £ 000,000
Mumbes af shores sold ot FEOLDIC,D000 FE0LD00 00000
Qrchinory share LTI OO AL CACA
Praferred shane - -
Mumbe af shares solg out 1o the public FE0,000,00000 -
Qretinory sheare Rl R H IR el -
Praferred shave - -
Mumber af shores repurchased - -
Qrainory shotee - -
Praferred shane - -
Mwmibes af shones in circuloton FE0L00,000 FE0L1001,0030
Qretinory sheare AHELTIL OO AT, CACA
Praferred shave - -
For variue, VNI sheig 11,00 11,00
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22.0H balance sheet items

Cec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024

FOrginin currencias - LSI 135,424, 56 103, B8, 55

Wi ADDITICHAL INFORMATICH FOR ITEMS IN THE COMSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMEMWT

1. Total net revenue from sales and services

Ravonye from serv ce [}rt}\f—dﬂﬂ AB,. 8815000 AL, r07

Revende from electacity sales 148, 814,008,454 L0840 5180, /R

Total 1,277,694,761,494  1,125,647,318,634

2. Costol =oles

Cost of service providedd s, P19, 448 G Fa A1), F 78,106,118 7
Cast of electricity sald B B LA EE b A8, BP0, FIL 5
Total 650,282,414,331 590,598, 766,182

3. Financial income

Inbgnest on geposits, margie, Benods and

19,86 114, /CR 19,0198, 068,157
l2ging
Sain fram reolised f-:::reign exch Caru) &
. 3,217,158 4, [E,34%
clifferemnces
NDividends - €, B E 0010, 000
Gain from isposal of irvestrnents it ather _
. LUEREE, 80 £ 13,420,040
2rtities
Bus ness cooparaticr intergst B8, ER RS guy F4346,10° 144
Other incames - F 01,000
Totial 629,765,534,705 744,073,568,740

BCG ENERGY ﬁ
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4. Financial expenszes

Harrpwing, financio eose and bord
! = BEAAGE, A0 9ELAP 1487/
nrgast SNEFR NS

Proveisicor far irdngigl investirants A0, 000,000 -
lass frora realses fareigh exchange )

. Th, BE1E, 10, A2 2,511,580, 4005
f e encas
lass Fam unreabsed foregn edchoage . o _

. - Nd,526,440,2 ¢ N8, FER14 4,140
clifferences
Bandissugnce costs {1,490,314,% /6 19,200 005 f,a8 T
Hus ness coonarafinn ezpenses 1001, 248, 124,108 0,83 18,85
Cithers 16,001, BE P18 hh, 174,018,514
Total 080,937 607,031 1,345,278,223,29%

5. General and administration expenses

salaries LAY, fER AL 14606, BEHE,TRY
Materials, affice supples FELORE,TE LEEL S17E 6
Neprecicricn B3, 2EE, f2d w08 EE
Toses, fees and guties 13,312,876,53049 B, 12,000,880
Proveigior far cowakatfy clekats 455,678,514 0016 -
Cost of hired sevices 4,080, 0FE,7E TNE N BRR
Allecaticn of goodwll 8,300 80,016 8,350 80K, 016
Ote axperses oo By cosk 4,47 56LR0E 14,729 00%3, 059 ¢
Total E465,B6%5,945,113 70,35%,394,627

6. Other income

Profit fram bargain purchose - by, AR R CIE (16 7
Receive compersoton for  construcian L

- P REE 114, FR
el s
Proceeds from bark inferest withdrowal (7] 38,995380,684 -
Profit fam bargain purchose 4,5 R ilha,14 PLIANAOERETS
Total 43.872.443.838 49,115,675,413

(=) 1his "3 the omount recewad fram lign Fhorg Commerc dl Jont Sace Boak
pocrdivg fo sotice Na 0240201 1B 1PR-IRCE doted ke, 28, 2024 ragarding the
Bark's ogreament 1o redace interest for the Corasomy on the nterast collectod
i s
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7. Other expenses

Form B 09 — DN/HN

Lheaf wiiin

Tox reldarad cosrs

ABA,2A4 400 B EE S 3441049

lags frorn digpasal of fived dssets 163,368,864 -
| ke paymeat nterest casts 4,141, 081,371 -
Cost af coatrech volohion peno Yy, caompensation 3,045,1000,140 -
spenscrshie aond caority costs B, MR BT RS -

Cithers

wRALLFELOES 574458384

Total

17,213,184,551 5,504,722,132

8. Cosis of production and trading by factors

R miaterials cost 1,494, fhlE

34,575,58050,143

| &:baar cast 47 H16, 030 R ER

3,300,574,

Finend sl depreciatizn,
goactwill Gl ation

A3, 514,451,517

AT, 517,52 A, 190

ot of hired sevices N B0, 246,529 9,09 4,454,790
Oine experses soid By cosh AP, R AR A1, 88,018,249
Total 723,523,844 538 E60,570,6879,523

8. Currentincome tax expense

Cufeeat corparote income tox exgense incuired of Corpanies

BCG Fnergy S0

B0, 010300

Wiolet Salor s

wAE SR

Chehrd Solos 50

15 SR

He b salar 50

145,80 ,305

BOG Bang Duong Fnergy JS0C 1,307,348, 064 016,451 2 h
He P - BOG Bang Ruong Frerdy J505 P14,30,4870 hiEh, (185,010
51 Huy Hectac evelosment J5¢C 816 85 SR 18,1894 030
ROG W S0 Trang S50 10,182 880,425 1230 BELROP
BOG Wirk Long 20 186, 31,0108 41/, 453,88 7
Shiylor JHC - ) P H e b
Dang thanh 2 wWind Povee: o, 11d, 0,382 51,047 -
Clenn Eretoy Vison Develaprent JL0 THLEMIBE 2rA 0 eH0,7 08
Total 24,006,730,499 6,608,375,513
BCG ENERGY
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10. Basis earnings per share

Accounting profit after corporate
] {766,019,596,581) 152720,426,064)
Income tax

In which:
Inferas! of FOR-CORn R

g fAagsgnd e (e ngsasdn)
shorehaldlers
Frofit affer tox Gf goiienl Cormpanys CraLnansaznn)  (A000.a868094)
shorehaldlers (27302, 50, .

Adjustment to decrease - -

Fanus and walfora fond - -
Profit or loss attributable to

shareholders who owned cordinary {731,041,342,553) (35,511,485 594)
shares of the parent company [*]
Avergne ordinaty shares aubstonding
thaimg the perica

Earnings per share {1,001) (77}

SECLIICL 0] Ae53, 416,502

{*} 1he hanus o welfore fund has ror been deguctes from the proft
attribiataby e e the shoreho des holding oridinary shares as stotutorly required.
Basic edmings per share ond diluted edrmings per sharg af 2024 will e odjusted
ond represented after the ploan of predt distrbution is gpproved by the aanagl
Sharetolders’ meating

1. Diluted earnings per share

Profit or Iess allacares M shdrehalders
i arddingy shires

Profit or loss allocoted to shareholders
owning ordinary shares ofter odjusting  (731,041,342,653) (35,911,486,594)
dilution factors

Average adtstandieg ord ndry shoes in
the preriad

Average cutztanding ordinary =zhares

{731,041,342083) (365,901,486 54%4)

SECLIIL 0] Ae53, 416,503

in the period after adjusting dilution 730,000,000 463,415,322
foctors
Diluted earnings per share {1,001) (77}
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VII. ADDITICHAL INFORMATION FORITEMS IM THE COMSCLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

1. Borrowing armount in the period
- Proceeds from the Bormowng
urdes nanmal agresment
2. Payment for principal debts
- Payment for princizal dests
urdes nanmal agresment
- Payraent for mincipal bands
- Payraent for principal ledse

LAGBHEIL, F P25 ¢ 1,9hi0,0148,54 /64

175 U AP AR R 2,314 R4 308, 6L

B (1010, (1010, (2030
w144, 000

w144, 000

Wil. OTHER INFORMATICH

1. Contingent liabilities, commitments and other financialinformation
o Cantingent hatilites

- The Group nes and lease cortrdets dirgctly from the State 1o serve the Brods s
BCG Rong Duang and Ga s salar paver projects. Based an the tenms of these land
lease cantroces, Tne setlament of ssets orfached o the lend ofrer tne end af the
lease coatrgcts g corried oJt in gocordonce with the prowvisiaons of current 1o,
Accordirgly, of the date of presarng these consalidated finoncicl staternents, the
Graup assesses that the phligatian ta restoqe and clear the lond relofed 1g e
Graups BUG Bang DJaang and GALL salar sower Srojects s uncerton becouse e
Graup has not deterrmned whether the Srods will bear tne costs af dismontling
assels ortached ro the dand s reddred by the State or whether the State wil
reciaim the laro along with asgets atached te the lord ond hove the right ta Lse
er transfer it to the next lesses

- The Growp s eftop lease cantroacts 1 serve the Group s rooftap selar povwer
projcts Purstiont 1o the tertmg of 1775 ronftap lease cortrast, after the end of the
leqze contract, the Group will be alliges 1 ecloim the mefton 5o dr sower syatern,
restore ond refurn the instdllot on gred o the condinion stated a0 e nitial site
hondover minutes if tne reof lessor 2oes not buy bacs fhe systam, Athe date of this
congaidared Franc al stateraent, the Group nssesses ho? the abligoation fo restare
ard release the roof relates o the reofap SRIGT powe Srojects is uncertclin,

BCG ENERGY

£x

sl -H;F.



.
E

iy

1

L

adhime g

BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form B 09 — DN/HN

MOTES TG THE COMSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

e the Fimera wnar aored Desnmim 30 255 Vit i

- PursLont to Articles £F ang 8 af Decree G000 MIE-0CR guicding the |1 ow G
Frawirgnimentn Protection (“Recres”) ssues by *he SGovermmant an Jan O, 2077, Gio
Huy Power Develapment JSC oad Clean Erergy Wsion Development Jse [2
subsicicries) arg respongible fon recyolng solor parels LSed in soler power frajects
when thair Lsaful ife hos expited PursLont to the glidance of this Decrea, ecycling
car be corried out by self-recysling, hiring o recycling unit 1o recycle, authorizing
ar intenmediony orgonirot on, ar g corasingticn of these forms A5 of the date o this
Francal repart, these two suhsid'anies haove nat yet determingd the recycling
miethod ar calculoted te cost of recycling due o the lack of specific guicance,

- 1lhe Gwup has receives Deoisian MO AR 0N-UBMID dateg Mo 31, 20E0
(recisiant) on e css'gnirert of the fgnt o use the seq are dicectly fror the
People's Committes of Ira Wk srovinge 1o implement the Dorg Thonk 1 wing
Powver Flont investrment praject, 1he terrm af ass griment of the “ght foouse the sen
ored is from the effective dote of the Decision {Mar, 51 2072 to reb. 26, 200,
According o the tems of the Decisicr, the Group s osliged 1o implemrertmeasures
te pratect the Paaring ervircmment, restare ard improve the marine @nvirgmmsent
whean the fenr af use of the 2ed dreg expires, However, at tne date of these fingngial
staternents, the Group bas nal campleted mast of the Nong Thanh 1Wird Power
Float Project, sa the Cost of restoring and irmgrowing the hoaded owe 560 orea hos
holk Bean deterrmimen Therefar, the Group hos not yet set oside any Costs related
te the restargticn and imiprovernet af the honded - over sea dreg,

- 1he Growp hos received 13ecision Mo, ICHSIOD UBND aoted  Jun, 2/, 2004
{recisionT) on e css'gnimert of the gt o use the seq ares directly fror the
People's Coramittes of T Vinh previnge to imp ement the ehg Thanh 2 windg
Poreegr PIorrimvestmert roject. The term of gssigrnment af tha right 1o e The sed
oreq is from *he effective dare of tne Zecisian [Jun, 24, 20040 1o Apr, 1h, 204,
Accordirg tothe tems of the Decizior, the Gradp s osigec 1o implerrert mecsures
te pratect the Farine envirgniment, restaqse and impreve the morre gnvirgnmesent
when the term of use af the sed dred edpires, Howewer, Gf 1he dote of preparing
these fingrcial statenents, the Cormpany has not completed most of the Dang
Thor 2 Wind Powet Plant Praject, so the cost of restoring and impmaving e hondes
el sRa gred has not been determined Thaefore, the Grous hos nal set asicde any
gEpenses aloted ta the restarctior and mproverneat of the handso owe sen oiea.
b Coamrrmitrments

- 1he Group comirits o cont hute suffitient cagitgl 1o the Camrpany’s ossociates
by 22k,

- The Groupr ensures B contrue o F T The commibments signed in Contiocs witn
artners,
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- BOG Frergy J50C cormmits 1o unconditondal y and irrevocnsly Slocries payrmeet
ef dll poayrment obigations arnsmg from and reloted fo tna Baads of Thanh Mouyen
Fresgy Ibwestmert ang Develaprment Co, 110, 1a the Bandholders in cose the
Carmpony forls r perfanm or doe s rob fully perform the soyment of such okl goticns
(Nate No. VI - Barewings ond fingaciol leasng gebis),

- Dang “hanh PWind Power Ca, 12t [‘[:-c:mg Thanh 7] ang Dang “honk 2 Wing Poceer
Company lirated {Torg thanh @7 iove mortgaged all nssers of ong Thanh 1, 2
Wingd Power P ant Praject and ol bhark acceunts of Dong 1hanh 1, Rorg thoan 2 o
Mo & Commercid Joint Steck Bonk ta guorantee the lodan of suro Wing Energy
S50 (subsTdiary) ham Sermocarg Fnergy Wetnom Project | Pre 11d, (Nete ho, W 1w -
Barrewings ond financial lecse Fabilities)

= Mr. MEuye Ha Mo (Former Chairraan of the Componay ) bas G raed YO guarontes
with all of Mg assets, unconditondlly dng irreveechly guardantee the perforrnance
ef all cuaeat ang futuqe obigations arsing from loan contract Mg Br 20206 goted
e, 18, 2000 of wWighngrm Progpeaty Jaint Stack Coemmerciol 309k - Ben 1hoah
Hrabh uncder gudrandes contract M. i R, JWPBANEK -1 dated Dec, 18, 2070 af the
Graup 5ee also note M. v 14).

- Capital commitments: Cormemtrments an fised assel crednon Mrgets that nove
beer s'gned contracts of the end af the fiscdl yeon but have nar been gccounted
far in the finonciol storaments ore as follaws:

Factany. machinery and egquipiment 4,808,812 %0, 08! 344,50 0213,40

C. Ot firctncio infanmotion

- The Grauz was notfied by e competent outhority of the decision 1o niticre o
Criqmigl cdgse and Hhe decision o prosecute MMr, Nouyen HE Naim {Farmer Chairman
of Te 3odrd of Divectors of Bambao Capital Graup Joint Stock Sompoay (ineestor)
ord the Growp) and ks, Huynb Thi Kim Tawen (mamber of the GSrous s Cantral Iyl
Bagrd singe March 20, 20240 an Feb, 28, 2035, Or war 1, 2008, the Group rece ved
the resigrotion af oy senicn persontel o exploired v Section 1l - Report af the
Badrd af Monageraent, The Boord of Monageraent nzzessed that the above
inciddent ¢id not offect *he Grolps ope-aticns The Grolp ssessed et al
produchan and susiness activites werg still oparating narnmrally,

- Regarding the glectric™y curchase price en oyed under Decisian 3/2000fQ0-11g
glarad A, B 2020 0F PR My Solor Poveer Plant profacts ang VMRS Vinh Tong Solor
Fowever Blant pro’ects with comrraercial cperatian dote before e, 21, 2020,
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+ Cleon Frergy Vigion Dgvalapmant J50 (@ suksichiony) sipned & power plarchose
cgresrment willy Vietnoen Hlecto ety Groun for e Pl My 1 50dar Powsar Plant - Phdtse
PR MYy Z BN My 3 - Phase T prgects, enioyvingg an glectncidty purchase price of
/08 Uscentfewh [HT price) within 20 yaors accending to Decision 1372051/ Q0-11g
for gricl-connastad soior ponver rofects that have Dean oporoved Dy competent
outhorbies for wveshment pohoy decisions Defore Now 23 2009 and hove o
commerciol operation dote {CO0Y of the project of a nart of the project in the
pecicdd o Ju 1 FIRE ha Dac JI, N80,

+ BOG v Long JRC (o subsigion) signad o power purchose ggreameant with
Vietnoim tectnicity Grodg for the VYNECD vinfy ong Solar Fower Plon! project,
arawing ot slactricity purchase price of L0H UT cents/kawh [0 price) within 20
pEOrs Qoooriing to Decision pafrnraion-T fg oo grid-connected solar povwer
projects thot hove been aporoved by commoarant authicortias for nvestmeant policy
pecisions bafore Mov F4, FIRE and have o commaersiol operation dote (000 T of
the praject in the penad from Jol L 2004 ta e, 31, 2007,

+ According W the inspachan Conciusinn No, WIZAN - THCP doted apy, P8, PURd of
the Goverament inspeclorgte, referding o e review and congideration of the
eruumient af the Bl price mechaoism ior projgcts Hhot Oe nat have o ociment
of gccaptance rasults’ af the tirme of COM.

+ Roweesr, G the e of prepoariog these fnonem! stolernments, heee hove Dean
ne igdgol docterents mesned By competant authoihes ragaiding chamges in the
conditions for enjoying Hawe Bl DHce machoesmt Dhder Decision N wafnafon-
Hogo thavaforg Clean Foergy Vision Developrmen! Jont Siock Sompony continges
ReoreCcord revenue Onder the Dower puvchose contract sigpoed with Vighaorm
Flactrigity Group ond has been settled for revenue uolil the end af 2004

Lpr ra the trme af refaoting, the Graup hds no contirgent liobilities, coramitment s
trgd ctber financial micrration scourred snee the ending dote of the Fsoal yeoar
thot reqpares dny adustmerts or dsclosures in the cansoidated  financial
srarterments

2. Popst balonce sheet events

Foe the BAID MWD capacity of the Pho Sy | Solor Power Project - Phoase 2, Clean
Fogrgy Wision Developmert aint Stock Campohy signes on araendiment o
suppleragnt confroct Mo, Db of the PRL Ky Solor Power Plont Powser PLrchose
Agregrrert with Wighnorm Flectricity Srads o bebiruary G, 2000 Accordingly, the
plectric™y pJrchase price at *he e ectricity gelivesy point is 11E3 88 Dvroah) ond
is epslied far 20 years fram the Commecial Operatian 1o of this Power #lart (20
vedr s frorn Moy 50, 2003),
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Foe the 3100 MWD copocity of the Pad My 3 Solar Powser Project - Phase 2, Cleon
Fraeagy Wision Developmert aint Stock Campony signes oh areendiment chd
suppleragnt contract Mg OR of the =ho My 3 50lo° Power 2lont Pover Purchose
Agreenrert with Mistnom Flectnc ™ty Graup o Adr, 2R, 2085, Accarging v, the officicl
plectric™y purchose price at the e ectricity delivery pontis L1812 Oenfkwng ard o
opplied far 20 years from the Cammercial Operation Dote af *his Powsr Slant (240
yEQ S rom Moy AL, B2,

(3 MGy 234, 2070, the Compony receives Decision Ne. 667 Q- 5GIHN Fam the Hong'
Stock xchange o placing itoan e restiacred roding hsr Accordirgly, the
Compony 5 BGE snares were ploced on the restrictes tradirg ISt fram Moy 20, 2025
becodse of tne deloy mosubimitting the audited finoncicl stoterments for 20024 marg
thon 4% days from the deadling for imvformgricn disclosure n occordarce with
Fe Al Ction s,

1t of the motters g5 rertianes dbows, There are ro significnm avants accurredd
since the peticd ended thot need o be adusted ar noted in the finoncial
shorternents

1. Related party infoermation
a. Related parties

Related parties Relationship

Barago Captal Grop e star

(i} M v Nges Nen Inwestar

He b Salar 15 Incirect sabsicioy

Chehrd Solor J5E Incirect sabsicioy

wiolet Solor JS0C Inchirect sabsicioy
Hereshia - BOG Bang Duong Fnengy J50 Inchirect sabsidioy

BCG Bang Duong Frergy J5S0 Inchirect sabsidioy

51 Huy Hectac evelosment J5¢C Inchirect sabsicioy

(i} Gieenzky Infritive J5C Indirect sabsidioy

(iii) Cosrnos Salar )50 Indirect sabsidioy

Shylight SOt o, Ll Imwestment intg osses dres
Hoarwhbe BOGE Clabd O, L Imvwestment inta assos ares
BOG - SP Greensky IS0 Iwestiment intd Geses dras
Torm Sinh Mghio inveshment Deve oprrert 150 IMwestment infa assee ares
150 Hamn 124 50 IMwestment infa assee ares
15% Hue )50 IMwestment infa assee ares
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. . . Related parti Relati hi
Related parties Relationzhip

Mz, Phom Nguyen Moo “huceg Deplby Geonerdl Direcror

15M Ho Moy LS00 Iwestiment inta ossos ares

) ) ) . hAr. MLy Gidng Mom Deolty Gena gl Directar Lappairted since
Troc o Construchion Holoing s lelygle i gty by - i (AP
i ) RAqr, 200, #174)
J50 (Formerly knowa as ndustial ] : ; i
M Dareg Dikk Olyet DasLby Ganaal Directar {Appoirted singe
Deve opmert oind Troasport
_ S [, 202 4)
Investimert J50) ) _ _
. ] . b Pharm Le agng 1MoLty Ganeal Directar (Appoirted singe
WIETE M T oy SO Owrner Nov, Ih, F1e)
Cass Manno Resort Tounsm J50 SO owner M H r el I;} r. | Nirectar (A irred si
. r. g run i 2. SE e ir r I n
AAA IPSLIFCICe Carparalicn SO owner aung Trung Tha Lty General Qirectar L Appoirtet since
- _ L. (4, 2104
MgLyen Hoang Development 50 Sarme owner L . . .
I i - _ RS, VL Van Ngoo Mok IJazuty General Directar (Mesoppoirted
Crombors Feolog ol 1ourist 2o, lelygle i gty * _ S
Ited 5iNCe 5ap, 01, F2e)
) . i} M7 MG Lyen Yan Luc Chainmon of the Baoard of Directors of the
BOG Iehd 50 SOTE wrer ® - Suzsiddicr
i h - EIIG
BOCG Khai Tang 1Wird Power JEC Same legol reprasertotve v
BOG Khdi Long 2 Wind Power J50 Sarre legol repraser ot ve In which:
HOG Khal 1aag 3 Wird Power J50 Same leqol represerionve (i) 1hese ndividucls and comrparies oreno longer related parties of the Company
(i} MegaSalar J50 same legol reprasertofve os ot e 3L9d
(i} + Power1Jsc Sarme legol refresertotve (i} Greensky Infintive J5C 8 2a langer ¢ eloted party of the Company Bam Sep,
Tulipr Solon Co, 1 Sussidiary of pssccialas (15, 21124,
M. Mgy Wee Siang, Leono g Chainron (Apecinted since Mar, 25, P2d) (ii”) zosmas Selar Jeint Stock Compony was afficio ly dissaleed on beb 20, 2004,
RAr. ML e H MEm Chgineon s painred since o 249, . . .
i l: FE b. Keytransoctions with related parties
10 4)
e Pham Mok Tuar aputy Chairmar - 202a 2023
M Mguyen Monn Chign Deputy Chdiimon Bamboo Capital Group
B Rggyen Toungy Trus Dasuby Chairman (Appeinted since Mar Faroweing T2 (RO CRORCR, OGS -
P, F0ad Rapay the principol Dorrowing 6322, CRONR, CRONCR, ERERI -
K. Hadmgy Trung Thanh Ingependant merher (Appeintad snce HBarrowing expense HE 2L 832166 AL NHGERIIY
hAcir, 28, 202a ) intarast poic G SO, 435,81 -
MY T Thamb Tuag ke ber Lanvices racaived 12 VALOGOCLONG 122 H0, O 0
bz Nguyer Thilagr hermber Skylight Power Co., Ltd.
kAr. I:lﬂl'lg Hrn Hea Heaadd SLIF’JE‘I"'-..'-ISi{}I'I b g oo TN toct B AL _
RA7 NgLye Viet Cuong RDeplty Heod supervision oo roon pringipol colaction A1 CAEN, 00 -
BAZ, - n [ EDm TLyer Mermber (Appointes since Mar, 26, 2024 INtarest income from (oo recaivobios b £IRL, A -
M TGN 50 QLOn Ardy Member (DisappaTrted since Mor 74, Tam Sinh Nghia Investment Develocpment JSC
. #24) . Contdbute copito) MR, PO, D) -
v PR bmk Todn Gene ol rector [0 grontad ¢ 40 L1750 _
inrarast incorme froim (a0 receivoles D O5E, A -
£ £
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mtarast collactad

Od. 0060, (A4

B cantribubicn

LOG 6 AL ORI

Collestion af BOD

AUTE GO OO OO0

Laried Provwiciar

AL SRE 0

TEN Long An J5C

BCC cantribua e

L 385 (OO

T5H Hue JSC

BCC cantribua e

1208000 (RO

TEH Hon Dot J5C

B cantribubicn

LA GO O

Vietnormn Taxi Company

Intarast ncorme (o 500

KD UL G

Racovaring prafits fram o B0

15 B4 A0 R s

Sarire Provwicior

AL 000000

A 5D 000000

BCG Khaileng 3 Wind Power J5C

Ty grron [F=14)

LB, G0

AR ]

Fagey pringloent codlaction

£i, GO0

&, A (N

Intarast incormne o faon racaeieakblas

LR EN

LA IR I

Sardite Prowisioy

AhOA00.000

AN

EPowerl.J5C

faony gron [F=143

ML IR QM

Interast iocorme from Toon reoaeivablas

LA SR

Services recgaiserd R e L Ly o alhsgd Mﬂgﬂ colar JSC
Casa Marina Resort Tourism J5C mtarast incorme froim (a0 receivobies - g a9
Serwices recaner AR S L2 A Al -

AAA Insurance Corporation

Prinnzigaql Faprayrrent

LT R e

intarast ol

A0 T A

Sen 'L-"lil:'E'S .T'ECEI:'.-"E‘D' Gald A, 8hF 14 6 A8 84 iR Y Infaraogk -'-l":llf.‘ll_-.:ll'ﬂ{:.' rn"'l:lm N - JJ_I:_.;._I [ ;I.-IH ML AR
Nguyen Hoang Development 5C Trocodi Construction Holdings 15C

f':"ﬂl":' gr 2 I‘E'Ii.'l' - fi f}f},f}f}f},ﬂf}” J’ﬂ?e EJ{T}-'-""IE-"'IT I.."'I I‘-e_-"."ESF 'd_: 15 -"l.-:'?:il-l_.H o -
mitarast incorme fom faon racaieakbias S, 1ef S ERA N g0 -

Conbap Ecologicaol Teurist Co., Ltd.

Refay thae princizol DOrrowmg

ACLCAMR AR O

oy olepog

AL T MR

Senvires receised

1 P LA

BC& Land J5C

FBorroiving eipense - S B L2 Sarvices recaiver ML) CARC ML CARCR
mtaragt pﬂ-in::l' - - Collestion af BOC W LN AL -
EC& Khai Long 1 Wind Power J5C Racovering profits frarm a 808 AR, L EE S -
Iy CIran ract EH, S OO OIS S IT DD S Intarast income (ko §0C G 1ML FiE LI E G (0T
faoe pringioat codgction 19k, (RO M) SOOI CITIT Honwho ECGE O&%M Co., Lid.
intarast income fom (oo reoaivobiias £i, SE 0 S, A AHA P2 ServiCes recener SRR AL SR A AR HE S D
BOC portng siwp anrara st AAE ARG AT RN Rl servite Proviriar G LR 80 GO MR
Service Provider A 6dh A0 000 AHZD, AFOLG imvicdenois cisrribuated WL EER AV NN f HEC 00000
BCG Khai Lang 2 Wind Power JSC BCG - 5F Greensky J5C
Focny gran ract e T A OF OO AT Sarvicres recaier SRS ST 8 G0 5, 000
Fogn pringioat codlgction A B OO0 - Barraning - G GO, (0
mitarast income figim 1oon receivoabias R LW Rt e fE 08580 FOrrmwing gipense g, 185,294 A8 HTE, 2E4
RBOC contribulion B X3, A0, DG - Conthibute capita)l Mk, BN ENNLENND -
Colestion af BOC RY e A ] T -
i ¥
EM'ANNUAL REPORT 2024 BCG ENERGYTLH_I*:?,_
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Tulip Solar Co., Lid.

Senvices recaived

EMERA LT S

IIspaso, soles

PRASE ARG

Refoy the prnciool DOrrowmg

o, ATLTEE 20T

Ht_'.l.l".l"lj-l.-'l.-'l'.l"lg LApenie

b | PR

LA0E BRI

Mr. Pham Minh Tuan

H-;:urrr_:-l.*.-.ir‘.ng

R LT P

Rapoy thae princizol Dorrowmg

R LT P

Mr. Vu Ngoce Tien

Copital ncrense

LR OO, RO

Mr. Nguyen Manh Chien

H-;:urrr_:-l.*.-.ir‘.ng

0 O D

Refay thae princizol DOrrowmg

08 O N

c. Az at December 31, 2024, bolances with related parties:

Short-term trade receivables Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024
Harwhg BOGE Chbahd o, L hEYEZ0000 5 AL OG0
Tom %inh Mobkio Investiment eve opiment . _

: FER TR 100 -
50
R{ZG - BP Greensky JS0 1,400 H5a, 1010 FEE,EA 100
B3 Khai Ee (¥ Tt Poeaer JS50 100, 3 0,010 8, (100 b B8 E,EPE, (00
BCG KR Long 2 Wind Power J50 b, ARSI, G000 S0, (00, G030
BEG Khai [ang 3 Wird Power 150 by, 8, 100, 01030 RN (IR H
M MGuyen Monn Chign - A0 308,480
Total 11,172,783,000 13,102,847 480
Short-term prepayments to suppliers Cec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024

Trocodi Construchion Holdings J5C

23,147, 306,00

i, FE, 304,30
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Lheaf wiiin

Jan. 01, 2024

MgLyen Hoong Devalopment S0

101, 010300, 010360

Tom 5 rnk Nghic Irveshmert 2evelnpreat

S5

o, (L O (T

150 [ o) An IS0

B3, 2 100 T3]

MLy Hiong Dewelopment (S0

F10], (10301, (1000]

Megie: Salar )50

1,030, (10300, (1630]

F POt 1050

W1 4,A003, 483,58 15

Total

132,789,022,527

109,038,483,575

Long=-term trade receivables

BCG Khai lang 1Wird Power JSO

Cec. 31, 2024

Jan. 01, 2024
7IB00225927

BCG Khdi Lomg W wWind Power J50 193.4C00C0 200 251300 0en
BCG Khal Tog 3 Wik Poer 50 4197 000 280 B25,00C0 0C0
Tatal 197,547,000, 000 10,698,023 927
Qther short-term receivables Dec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024

Trocodi Construchion doldings J5C 31,4959 4401 585 A A1, A8
Re2E Khai lang 1Wird #ower J50 1,684,845 60, /87 2 AB0,46E, 0 0A
Re26 Khai Lomg 2 Wind Power J5O t,h S, a0 5 h L T B b, B, Gl ¢
Re2G Khai lang 3 Wird Power 150 A6h, R340 105,386, 44

MgLyen Heong Devalopmant S0

b, A, B Ed

11,0085, 5 40

Shyligght 2ot o, L,

b TGS, FAG

F Power 10500

£ 520,85 4040

Mege Salar J5e

BUIE 5 A, SO NE S

BG land L5

w0l (1010, 001 %

B gy Dink Ouyet

#1141, 5126 74

M PR L (G

S, 001, 0

1 winh Nghin Irwesthimert
Develaprignt JSiC

BB, EE £ 00,00

150 1o AN IS0

A4, 38 L1001, 01010]

15% Hug JS50 14 2,5 010, (10100, (3630 -
150 Han 134r 150 20,142 0100, 00 -
Total 4,250,625107, 7868 3,127,64B,022 683
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1,361,000, 0100

Other long-term receivables
BOCG Khdi Long & Wind Power JEC
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Jan. 01, 2024

BOG I end S0 S R a[a [a e Ta [ uTHn;
Total 11,381,000,000 10,000,000,000
Short-term trade poyables Cec. 31, 2024 Jan. 01, 2024

Trocodi Construchion doldings JEoC 1410, FELEIE b 1 14 333,339 58,6584
Baragoo Capral Growp @R, PO, hBEBIESE A
NMIETP O 1o Oy MRS TH I F1L 00
Hoarwhio BOCGE Cdba Co, Led PP, SR 14,01 £, ¢ A, B2
BOG Land L S0 20,0030 S T NHH W
Cass Monng Resert Tourism 50 RN [H -
AAA IPSLIFIEE Carparaticn 0,103, S0 63,474 R Y

B WU g Ten -

42,381,360

M Mguyen Monn Chian -

5,012,745 200

hAF MEyen Von Luc -

B 0,000, 030

Total 168,826,356,294

408,897,525,712

Long-term trade payables Cec. 31, 2024
Trocodi Construchon doldings J50C IR, 2R 104, FE S

Jan. 01, 2024
145, A8, 154, 757

hAF MEyen Von Luc -

Wb, B ¢ D 2

Total 115,236,163,767

250,6864,145,598

Short-term occrued expenses Cec. 31, 2024
Trocodi Construchion Holdings J50C 10,E12,030,0 73

Jan. 01, 2074

Total 10,312,035,073

Qther short-term payables Cec. 31, 2024
Trocodi Construchion Holdings J5C 4140523150

Jan. 01, 2074

Mexga: Salar J50 -

1h, 30 R d, A5

Tl Solon Go, . 1d 1,01 743,426, £

1, /60,14, 56

Boragnon Captal Grolp PEAZASREILS

E1,A0E,T14,9T

RG - 5P Greensky J50 IBFARKRI

D0, A443,935

Total 14,147,137,521

48,750,037,226

@ ANNUAL REPORT 2024
adhime g

BCG ENERGY JOINT STOCK COMPANY

MCTES TG THE CONSCLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENMTS

e the Fises penar anmed Decomiae 310 2005
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O

LR

EENT
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Jan. 01, 2024

lease liabilities
RIG - SP Grecnsky 150

B0, 00

DI, (030

Tuligr Solon Co, 1

o, 01322, 8100,0148

14,544, (130,110

F POt 1050

- o, 01 M0, 010300, 00000]

Megie: Salar )50

- Th, 5001, (10101, 1 030]

Total g,832,610,098

11,604,000,000

Long-term borrowings ond financial

lease liabilities

Cec. 31, 2024

Jan. 01, 2024

Barneon Caprtdl Grop

10D, 010301, (1030, (10T 0]

bI0], (010D, (130D, (13 0]

Total 100,000,000,000

500,000,000,000

d. The Board of Directors ond Manage ment's income

Cec. 31, 2024

Jan. 01, 2024

Fxpenges for key manoagement personresl

B, 1408, 1114 B 5,000 15 4 520

I ek

- Mg BHodng T rAien's S

- NI S 0]

LA gl Horl Her

Slre, OO CIC] AnE 833,338

- R MgLyan Wit U

LR e R £ SO0 M0

= M, Pl i Fuon VAR A O

SERCL SRR O]

- R3¢ Mglyan Glong Nome

Gk DM 104 -

- WA Hodogr Truog Hwakah

b AL RS T B -

- A5 VL VOR NGOC Mk

2 GO0C P o T EA T

- e 3S0g iinh Qliyet

2SO -
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BCG Energy Joint Stock Company
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Website: www.bcgenergy.com.vn
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